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EMERGING MIARKET

ECONOMIES HOLD SIGNIFICANT POTENTIAL
FOR WEALTH AND VALUE CREATION.

Expanding urbanisation and the growing savings pools of
everncreasing Emerging Markets populations are catalysts
for iInnovation in asset management The opportunities
we have today to create wealth and value are as diverse
as Emerging Markets themselves

Over the past two decades we have developed and built
up a secure foothold in Emerging Markets across the globe
because we recognised early on that they would become
the engine room of global growth Today, we are strongly
positioned to caprtalise on these opportunities and translate
them into real value for our investors, our shareholders,
our people and the communities close to our hearts

Take a look at what we've achieved over the past two decades




Two decades of experience

A TRACK RECORD OF DELIVERY.
A PLATFORM FOR GROWTH.

World events

1989 - Fall of the Berlin Wall
1990 — Nelson Mandela released
1991 — Fall of Soviet Umion / Gulf War i ends

1994 — End of apartheid in South Afnca
1997 — Transfer of sovereignty over
Hong Kong from UK te China

1989 - World population reaches 6 billon
2000 - Putin becomes President of Russia
2001 - 9/11
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Office openings
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Financial highlights

ANOTHER YEAR OF STRONG
PERFORMANCE

:\é?‘:)ravenue B g -g‘ g _ g -g g &r::;t before tax
£355.5m |° IS £257.6m
up 7% g % up 6%
09i10111112113 0910111112113
Assets under 3] ™ ] EPS basic
Management 2l = ® 2= e
(AuM) (US$bn) a ?j N o 30 0
US$77.4bn i} 30.0p
up 22% @ -
0911011112113 09(10111112113
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Chairman’s statement

A YEAR OF SUBSTANTIAL PROGRESS _

Solid performance and resilience In the face of tougher
market conditions towards the end of the year

Market conditions were buoyant for most of

the year, thaugh in the last months there was

a sharp and largely indiscnminate sell-off in nsk
assets across most of the Emerging Markets
largely caused by concerns over the tming of the
withdrawal of quantitative easing by the US Federal
Reserve Ashmore's specialist knowledge and active
mvestment management style come to the fore

m such difficult penods

Qverall the Group has had a successful year

with strong growth 1n assets under management,
up by 22% to stand at US$774 bition, coming from
both new and exisiing clients, and 1s a direct result
of the investment we have madz in our distribution
activities We have also conunued to build our
domestic asset management presence within
Emerging Markets, establishing offices in Indonesta
and i China

The Group s financial performance was solid
Profitability was mamtained at an industry-leading
level wath an EBITDA margin of 71% Protrt before
tax mcreased 6% to £2576 milion and diluted
earnings per share rose 11% to 28 69p

Recegnising the financial performance achieved
during the year, and the Board's confidence in future
growth, the Directors are recommending a final
dnadend ot 11 75p per share for the year ended
30 June 2013 which subject to shareholders’
approval will be paid on 6 December, to those
shareholders on the register on 8 November

The Board intends 1o pay a progressive dividend
over nme, 1aking nto consideration factors such
as prospects for the Group's earmings, demands
an the Group's financial resources and the markets
in which the Group operates

Corporate governance

The Board considers corporate governance
matters and adherence to codes of best practice
10 be of upmost importance As Chairman of the
Board, | believe that 1t has operated effectively
through the year and that its role and i1ts
composition are well defined appropnate and
support the long-term development of the Group
As a unitary Board one of our pnncipal tasks

is to ensure that our membership has the nght
skills and knowledge base relevant 1o our business
and to plan for succession, as existing directors
come to the end of therr tenures These 1ssues
are a regular 1opic of discussion during the Board
evaluation process, and where we have a specific
vacancy to fill or where we have decided to add
further to the Board, the Nomimations Committee
will engage an independent search consultant
with no connection to the Group to assist us

In this process

Jonathan Asquith retired at the Group's AGM

in October and | should ke to thank him for the
contribution he made to the Board over four years
In February the Group announced the appointment
to the Board of two Non-executive Directors
Dame Anne Pringle DCMG and Charles Outhwarte
Dame Anne has considerable and valuable
experience as a diplomat with the Foreign and
Commonwealth Office focusing in particular

on the EU, Russia and Eastern Eurcpe including
serving as Ambassador to the Russian Federation
from 2008 10 2011 Charles has over 25 years of
experence In corporate finance with a particular
focus on financial services He s currently a senior
adwisor to Evercore Partners
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Chairman’s statement continued

Both the new Directors have undertaken a full
induction programme, with the support of the
Board and seniar management 1o familanse them
with therr duties and responsibilities and all relevant
aspects of the Group's business In due course they
will be appainted to Board commitiees to suit ther
particular expenence and expertise

Good business momentum as a result of prior investment,
and an enhanced Board to support future growth

The Board now comprises eight members

of whom six are non-executive and two are female,
| am therefore pleased 1o report that the Board
complies with the best practice recommendations
of the Davies Report in respect of its composition
The Nomuinations Commutiee considers diversity,
including the balance of skills, expenence, gender
and nationality amongst many other {actors when
reviewing the appointment of new Directors, but
does nat consider it appropnate to establish quotas
or targets in this regard Furthermore, and consistent
with the emphasis the Board places on maintaining
high standards of corporate governance | am
delighted that in May this year the Group becamsa
a signatory 1o the UN Principles for Responsible
Investment A mare detalled report on corporate
governance Is provided on pages 40 to 46

Ashmere s Investment processes distribution
platform and operational infrastructure are well
placed to cope with the prevailing uncertain market
conditions Notwithstanding the accomplishments
of the year there remams much to do, to build

out the Group s access to capital and investment
opporiunities around the world and the Group
faces this task with confidence

The Board recogrses and 15 grateful for the
hard work and commitment of everyone across
the Group s operations over the past year

Michael Benson
Chairman
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Our strategy

A CONSISTENT AND
COMPELLING STRATEGY

1. Estabhish Emerging Markets asset class
Status Mostly completed

Description

— Establish Ashmore Emerging - Prowide access 1o Emerging
Markets investment processes Markets and therr rapid

~ Enhance understanding of development opportunities
Emerging Markets in the ~ Develap strong performance
developed world track record

— Increase developed world
Invastor base

2 Dwersify developed world capital sources and themes
Status Underway - significant growth available

Description

~ Establish new investment themes to diversify — Broaden and deepen developed world
Emerging Markets product offenngs investor base

~ Develop new product structures — Delver strong performance consistenily

and capabilities
- Establish Ashmore as trusted allocator

3 Mobilise Emerging Markets capital
Status: Commenced — enormous future growth opportunities

Description
— Mobilise Emerging Markets capital managed ofishore - Dewvelop netwaork of domestic asset
— Capital sourced inimally from largest pools, 1 e management businesses

central banks, governments, reserve managers and - Manage domestic capital locally

sovereign wealth funds — Create strong local performance track record

For more information on
our financial performance
see pages 20-31
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Chief Executive Officer’s report

OVER TWO DECADES OF EMERGING
MARKETS INVESTMENT EXPERIENCE

Emerging Markets GDP will be the driving force of global
economic growth over the next 30 years Ashmore Is
positioned at the heart of this growth

The resulis for the year ended 30 June 2013
illustrate the substantial progress made in building a
more diversified business wath strong performance
across the Group record subscrnpuions following

a penod of Investment in distribution, and an
operationa! platform that is capable of processing
and managing far higher levels of AuM The
experience of over two decades of investing solely
in Emerging Markets, across equines fixed income
and alternatives, 15 Invaluable in assessing the nsks
and opportunities inevitably presented by a penod

of market turbulence such as we witnessed towards
the end of the financial year Dunng this pernod
Ashmore continued to outperform and to achieve
strong client flows

AuM development

Assets under management ncreased 22% from
US$63 7 bilhon to US$774 bilion dunng the year,
wath average AuM nsing 13%, prinaipally the result of
strong net inflows of US$13 4 billon Good investment
performance over most of the year was offset by
prenounced market weakness in late May and June

Record gross subscriptions of US$272 billion
(FY2011/12 US3$13 O billion) were pnmarnly into

the debt themes, and pariicularly local currency
and corporate debt where the investrment universe
and potenual invesiment returns are both attractive
Demand for blended debt 1s also strong as it
represents a natural first step for an Emerging
Markets allocauon as well as satisfying the
increasing trend for clients to specify bespoke
benchmarks against which to measure investment
pertormance Pleasingly the Group's equities
theme achieved gross subscrnptions in each

of the four quarters dunng the year

(Gross redemptions increased in absolute terms

to US$13 8 billion {(FY2011/12 US$11 7 ballion) but
at 19% of average AuM (FY2011/12 18%) remainad
at a reasonable level and low by industry standards

Investment performance

Investment performance contnbuted US$0 3 billon,
however, this masks good performance for the
majerity of the year negated by the sharp market
dechines 1n the fourth quarter, catalysed pnrmarnly by

concerns over a reduction In quantitative easing {QE)
in the United States Local currency assets were
particularly affected in the sell-off, as technical
factors, such as the presence of leveraged and
speculative positions that were particularly sensitive
to the Federal Reserve's tapering message in

May outweighed the largely benign fundamental
backdrep Thus served as a reminder that Emerging
Markets sull compnse a broad spread of relatively
inetficient asset ¢lasses, where misconceptions
abound However, mstoncally such a divergence
between market movements and underhying
fundamentals has provided good opportunities

for Ashmore's value-based investment approach

For the Group overall the percentage of AuM
outperforming benchmarks at 30 June 2013 was very
good, at 92% over three years (30 June 2012 86%)
and 96% over one year {30 June 2012 23%) tis
parucularly pleasing to note the improvernent in the
equites theme with 39% of AuM outperforming
over three years (30 June 2012 21%) and 87%
over one year (30 June 2012 22%) as the specialist
funds have continued to perform and the actions
implemented to refine the Broad Global Active
investment process have delivered

The recent volatile market emargnment tughlights
once again the benefits of being a specialist active
manager in Emerging Markets, and the investrment
returns described above demonstrate the benefits
of bringing to bear over two decades of Investment
expenence for the Group's clienis

Financial performance

Revenue

Net revenue for the year of £355 5 million was
7% hugher than in the pnor year This resulted from
a 4% increase In management fee ncome net
of distnbution costs to £311 2 milllon driven by
an increase i average AuM levels offset by a
reduction of average net management fee margins
by 6bps to 68bps

The margin reduction was primarily the result

of theme and client mix effects, together wath
notable success In winning relatively large mandates
parucularly in the tocal currency theme, which

6 Ashmore Group plc | Annual Report and Accounts 2013




naturally attract a lower revenue margin Specifically
among the local currency mandate wins durnng
the penod was a number of segregated accounts
over US$500 million in size These funds eam

an appropnate management fee margin and are
efficient to manage Sorne competition 15 also
evident, although its nature and intensity varies
by theme, and in the context of an asset class
that 1s growng rapidly and where many investors
partcularly those in the developed world are
profoundly underweight, the presence of other
Emerging Markets advocates 1s welcome

Performance fees increased to £33 4 million
{FY2011/12 £25 4 million), with the second half
contribution shightly stronger than expected due

to continued market strength in the third quarter
Performance fees represented 9% of net revenues
far the pertod broadly in ine with the prior year
FY2011/12 8%)

Cost structure

Ashmore keeps a firm control over 1ts cost base
while continuing to Invest appropriately, including
In the expansion of the international office network

The structure of staff costs 1s a defining charactenstc
of the Group's business model, with a relatively low
cap on basic salanes across the Group and a strong
bias to performance-related vanable compensation
The latter element places an emphasis on long-term
equity ownership In the year to 30 June 2013,
variable compensation as a percentage of earnings
before vanable compensation, interest and tax
(VC/EBVCIT) was 20% (FY2011/12 18%)

Profitability
Operating profit for the year was £232 0 mllion
(FY2011/12 £225 1 milhon)

EBITDA, defined as operating profit excluding
depreciation and amortisation for the year was
£252 2 million (FY2011/12 £236 2 million) The
EBITDA margin of 71% for the year was unchanged
(FY2011/12 71%) and, consistent with the view
expressed IN Previous years, our expectation 1s

that the Group's margin will move into the '60s’
over ume

Net finance income increased from £18 1 million

to £25 7 rmulhon Asin the prior year itincludes
several tems relating to acquisiien of AshrmoreEMM
now operating under the Ashmare brand, and seed
capital on which more detail 1s prowided in the
Business review

Profit before tax for the year increased 6%
10 £2576 milhon (FY2011/12 £243 2 mithon)
Earnings per share for the year were 29 98p
(FY2011/12 26 82p)

Strategic progress

Distribution

In previous periods we have invested to expand the
Group's product range and to support rapid growth
in distnbution headcount This year we demonstirated
success from this investment through stronger
gross and net subscriptions

Gross subscnptions of US$272 billion represent

a record for the Group and were sourced from a
diversified range of clents both existing and new,
and were invested etficiently in a range of fixed
income and equrty products The nature of our largely
institutional business 1s that the pattern of client flows
¢an be irregular, but the flows generated dunng the
penod are testarment to the relationships established
and developed by an enhanced distnbution team
some of which can take many montns, If not years
to come to frurtion Many of our chents are making

Capital Markets Day

In April, the Group held a capital markets
event to enhance understanding of our
strategy, the business, and the drvers of
its future growth, as well as to introduce
members of the iInvestment, research and
distnbution teams to investors and
analysts The presentations were positively
receved and we will continue to pursue
similar opportunities to further the
understanding among stakeholders of
Emerging Markets and our business

View the
presentation of our
Capital Markets day
on our webhsite
ashmoregroup com

Mapping the Main Fixed Income Investment Themes

EM Local
Rurency

1 EM Looe Commeysasmts () USO-demamunemd sases
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Chief Executive Officer’s report continued

lang-term allocations to the Emerging Markets asset
class, providing us with ugh-quality resilient assets
to manage and therefore we experenced relatively
imited impact from the market weakness at the end
of the year Understandably in our view, some clients
saw this re-pncang of assets as an investment
opportunity and increased allocauons accordingly

Ta target particularty the third-party intermediary
business, the Group established and expanded
arange of open-ended fund conduits in late 2010
and through 2011, 1in the US and Europe, which over
the course of the next financial year wall establish
three-year investment performance track records
This 15 of partcular relevance to the US 40-Act
mutual funds whaich rely heawly on this factor to
sumulate demand Nonetheless, wath a relatively
small and focused distnbution team, we are pleased
1o have raised AuM of nearly US$1 bitlion in the US
intermediary market 10 date We plan to modestly
and steadily increase the headcount in our
intermediary distribution teams to supporn growth
in the 40-Act and SICAV funds as they reach ther
three-year milestones

The distribution team’s headcount at the end of

the penod was 45 (30 June 2012 41) and while we
will iInvest further in distnbution on a selective basis,
headcount increases in the foreseesable futwre are
unlikely to be as marked as in previous periods The
Group s distnibution priority 1s to continue to deliver
diversified profitable AuM growth onto s scalable
operating platform

Local asset management

The third phase of the Group's strategy seeks

to benefit from the rapidly growing pools of
investrment capital within Emerging Markets which
are growing at rates far in excess of the equvalent,
though tcday larger, pools of capital In the developed
world The traditional investor preference for
deposit-based products, typically manufactured

and distributed by banks 1s being challenged as real
interest rates have declined and regulators scrutinise
the services provided by the incumbents There

15 a clear opportunity for independent managers
such as Ashmore to offer credible and attractive
investment opportunities to domestic Emerging
Markets investors

During the year we established businesses in
Indonesia and China The subsidiary operaton in
Jakarta, Indonesia was established in July 2012 and
launched three funds in the second half of the financial
year two equity funds (8lkcap and smalkcap) and a
fixed income fund The Group’s strategy 1S 10 combine
tocal talent with Ashmaore's global asset management
expertise, this approach will enable us to grow a
leading business in the Indonesian asset management

market and in support of this ambition the Group
has committed seed capital to the three funds

In China, we acquired the maximum permitted 49%
stake In a Shanghar-based fund management joint
veniure with Central China Secunties Co (CCSC}
and we launched two equity-related funds towards
the year end

Today we manage approximately US$1 billion

In our local Emerging Markets businesses and we
aim to grow this substantially in the coming years
as previously high barners to entry are broken down
and the ments of allocating to an independent
manager with a strong investrment pedigree become
increasingly apparent The Group has an ongoing
focus to develop the scale of existing domesuc
businesses and also envisages supplementing

this growth with opportunities in further markets
over time

Seed capital

The ability to seed funds 15 an important competitive
advantage for Ashmore, as 1t supports both entry into
new markets and the development of new product
structures and distnbution channels such as the

US 40-Act funds, and can be considered to underpin
{future AuM growth Dunng the second half of the
year the Group committed seed capital to support
the launch of three funds in Indonesia Other seed
capital nvestments made dunng the penod enabled
the launch of investment grade blended debt funds
as well as providing greater scale to enhance the
distribution potential of several equity funds on the
SICAV platform

The seed caprtal pregramme Is actively managed,
has inherent value wath funds recycled back into
cash when appropniate and 1s subject to stnct
monitening by the Board within a framework of set
lirmits s scale has grown matenally nearly triphng
from £610 rmillion invested three years ago 10

£170 6 milhon at 30 June 2013, dunng the financial
year £149 0 million was invested in 15 different
funds and £129 9 mithon was recycled from
investments previously made in a similar number

of funds While not its prmary purpaose, the active
management of seed capital has generated profits
for shareholders The accounting treatment for seed
capital s explained fully in the notes to the accounts
but for clanty the aggregate income statement
contribution from seed capital-related activity was
£172 million {FY2011/12 £17 miflion)

People and culture

The Group s headcount has increased to 291 at the
end of the year (30 June 2012 257} reflecting further
investment (n support functions and the Group's local
fund management businesses
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The commitment expertise and motvation of
colleagues across the Group were manifest in

the ability to source nvest and control the strong
asset flows that Ashrmore generated duning the year
| should hike to thank everycne for their tremendous
effort over the past year, and | am confident that

as a team we will contnue to deliver for our clients
and shareholders durning the current financial year
and beyond

Qutlock

The fundamental Emerging Markets story

remains strong and reslient and 1s represented

hy the established and powerful GDP per capita
convergence trend While Emerging Markets GDP
per capita has grown rapudly, in absolute terms it

15 still only comparable to Developed Markets in
1880, with many economies at a tar earler stage of
development Across Emerging Markets, poltical and
fiscal accountabilty 1s leading to improved economic
stability, and caprtal markets and domestic poals of
capital continue to deepen As a consequence the
balance of world econormic power 1s shiftung in favour
of Emerging Markets such that it s increasingly
difficutt for Investors to justify ignonng the asset class
or to persist with a profoundly underweight position

The factors behind this positive long-term view
should not be confused with the norse that anses
from the inewitable, but shorterlived, volatility
associated with the business cycle In recent
months the cyclical slowdown in certain Emerging
Markets has been extrapolated by the market

into something abysmal, and at the same time,
expectations of a sustained and inflation-less

US economig recovery have increased, influenced
by the Federal Reserve’s signal n May of imminent
QE tapenng Our expectation s that both of these
projections will be wrong

Developed markets remain structurally challenged
Ther immense indebtedness will dampen economic
recovery and will have to be addressed in due course
through inflation and currency devaluation with the
US furthest down this path, albeit still wath total
public and private sector debt in excess of 400%

of GDP

In contrast, the ability of Emerging Markets
towithstand cyclical and external stresses has
improved dramatically over the past two decades
They have on average one-tenth the leverage of the
US economy, the debt they have 1s overwhelmingty
in local currency and owned by domestic institutions,
they operate with increasingly orthodox and effective
inflation policies, they control 80% of the world's
foreign exchange reserves, and where It occurs
currency depreciation restores competitiveness

Mark Coombs

Chiet Executive Offce/

Yet inefficiencies, miscenceptions and prejudices
stili abound Developments in one country or region
are often extrapofated across the Emerging Markets
asset class The pnice volatiity induced by these
myopIC swings In sentiment should not be rmistaken
for higher nsk economic fundamentals ulurmately
reassert themselves Emerging Markets are not
homogeneous and the presence of idiosyncratic
nsks and rewards across more than 65 countries
provides tremendous opportunities for a specialist
active investrment manager

Dedicated long-term investors recognise these
charactenstics of the Emerging Markets asset class
and can take advantage of the asset re-pricing that
results from technical factors rather than a change
in fundamentals Demand for Emerging Markets
themes with relatively low correlation to the

US treasury market will continue equities, local
currency assets blended debt and shorter duration,
higher yielding corporate debt offer attractive
prospective retums

The market volatiity of recent months should

not mask the fact that the Emerging Markets
opportunity 15 undiminished, and one that Ashmore
purposefully seeks 1o capture on behalf of clients
The Group's Investment expernence over morg
than two decades 1s a powerful tool in this regard,
and our long-term investment expenence 1s strong
However, we are not complacent we will continue
1o strive 1o generate outperformance for our clients
and to deliver profitable growth for our shareholders
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THINK EMERGING MARKETS.

The engine room of global growth

2013
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2020

It 1s expected that the Emerging Markets equity and debt universe will
grow to US$79 tnlhon by 2020 compared to US$28 5 trillion today

Source Bloomberg (equity data) Bank of Amenca Memill Lynch
BIS Size and Structure of Emerging Market Debt, July 2013
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THINK ASHMORE.

A wide range of Emerging Markets asset classes

Overay/Liquidity

1 2%

Altematives

3%

Blended Debt

23%

/ya

/

Local Currency

23"

Multi-Strategy

50/0

Equities

7%

Corporate Debt

8%

N

Extemnal Debt

1 9%

Ashmore manages assets across a wide range of Emerging Markets
asset classes with AuM totalling US$774 billion as at 30 June 2013
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THINK EMERGING MARKETS.

GDP per capita 1s outpacing Developed Markets

2013

667

433

100

L 1 3 1 1 1 1 1 H 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 i J

1980 1982 1984 18986 19BE 1990 1992 1984 1996 1998 2000 2002 2004 2006 2008 2010 212 2014 M6 2018

[0 Emerging Markets [ ] Developed Markets

The convergence of emerging economies with
developed economies I1s still only in its infancy

Source IMFWEQ Apnl 2013 GDP growth re based
to 100 as at 1980 based on PPP per capita
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THINK ASHMORE.

A diverse investor base

Dvercigrt
waglth funds

/

S

As at 30 June 2013 Ashmoere managed US$774bn on behalf
of a diverse investor base, both by type and location
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THINK EMERGING MARKETS.

An increasingly diverse investment universe

80
[
O Equities
[ Fixed income
52
S
S
<
s
14
12 |
—_—
sS4 ~L~L ~LU LU
1992 2002 2012 2020

The raptd growth and the investment opportunities 1n
Emerging Markets are clearly demonstrated by the growth
in the number of countries included 1n these indices

*Please noie JP Morgan index was l[aunched in 1993
Source JP Morgan MSCI Ashmore forecast {2014 2020)
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THINK ASHMORE.

A global network Investing across Emerging Markets

O Emerging Markets invested Ashmore office locations

Ashmoaore has offices in 11 countries and invests across
a significant number of Emerging Markets

maineno aifalens
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Qur business model

HIGH-QUALITY PROFITS FROM
A SCALABLE PLATFORM

Investors

Investment themes

The majority of investors in Ashmore's funds

are from Developed Markets, but an increasing
proportion will originate from Emerging Markets
as Phase 3 of Ashmore's strategy grows

Investor type

Institutional

— Central banks

— Government sponsored
pensicn plans

Intermediary

As we develop our
distnbuticn platform we
will focus an increasing

— Sovereign wealth funds the AuM sourced through
— Supranationals intermedianes such as

- Governments - Prvate banks

— Public pension plans — Brokers

Private pension plans
Corporates

— Banks

Insurance
Funds/Sub-adwisers

= QOther retall distributors

AuM by investor type (%)

2] Govemment-elated 41% [F Central banks 18%

£t Pension plans 30%  [1)Sovereign weaith funds 8%

[<] Corporatesy [%] Govemments 15%
Financial instituticns 12%

[ Funds/Sub-edvisers 4%

[=] Thurd party ntermedianes 11%
[£]Foundatior/Endowments 2%

Ashmore invests the funds 1n a diverse range
of investment thermes

Investment theme
— External debt — Eguities
- Local currency — Alternatives
— Corporate debt — Multrstrategy
- Btended debt - Overlay/Liquidity
> For movre information on
E';g our Investment themes
3 —)| seepages 1819
AuM by theme (%)
[CJExternal debt 19%  [investment grade 5%
[Cioeal currency 23%  [INoninvestmentgrade 95%
[(carporate debt 2%
[(Blended debt 3%
[Jequies 7%
[CAiternatives 3%
OMultrstrateay 5%
CJOveray/gudity 12%

16
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Maximising the Ashmore advantage

Qutperformance

malnano oibalens

Ashmore delivers supenor long-term investment performance through
the expertise of its people, through #s relationships and by rigorous
adherence to a proven investment philosophy and a continuous
cormmitment to Emerging Markets

Expertise and commitment

- Two decades expernence of investing in Emerging Markets

— Team-based approach not a star culture

— Quality of Ashmore’s employees, depth, breadth and experience in Emerging Marksats

- Relatonships wath investors, investees and other contacis in over 60 Emerging
Markets countries

Underpinned by

A nsk aware culture throughout the organisation

- Investment teams and support departments follow robust and controlled processes
- Risk and Compliance ensure approprate governance

= Internal audnt provides independent assurance

Investment philosophy and process

- Global and local asset management biinging together macro views and deep analysis
of indvidual investments

- Disciplined investment committees wath specialist long-term appraach
- Proven across a wide range of rarket condions
- Active forward-looking fund management of portfolios over market cycles

By applying this unique
business model, Ashmare
continues to outperform

Global macro overview

Y% V WV
External debt Local
currency & Blended debt Corporate debt Equities
A4 ¥4 A4
Macro, top-down cverlay
\/ Top down country
Country analysis allocation
WV Sector strategy W
A%
Bottom up stock Bottomn up stock
Instrument selection selection selection
A\ N A%
L Portiolio construction ]
N
L Execution process

Assets under
management {AuM)
at period end

US$77.4bn

2012 US$63 7bn

EBITDA margin

M%

2012 7%

AuM outperforming
benchmark over
three years

92%

2012 86%

souBWIOHaY

SOUBLIBAOTY
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Our iInvestment themes

EMERGING MARKETS DIVERSITY

Themes External debt Local currency Corporate debt
Theme Accesses an established and Takes advantage of the Focuses on the developing
premise dwverse range of typically US rapidly expanding local corporate debt asset class
dollardenominated Emerging currency and local currency in Emerging Markets
Markets debt instruments denominated debt market
with low correlations
to other asset classes
Global — Broad - Broad — Broad
Emerging - Sovereign < FX - High yield
Markets
— Sovereign, investment grade - Bonds - Investrent grade

sub-themes

- Inflaton-inked

Local currency

— Investment grade - Private debt
Theme Blended debt
Theme Mandates specifically combine external, local currency and corporate debt measured against
premise tallormade blended indices
Regional/ Russia Asia Brazi, China Indonesia, Latin America Asia
country Turkey
focused
sub-theme
Theme Multi-strategy
Theme Dynamic asset allocatton across all investment themes
premise
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Equities Alternatives Overlay/Liquidity Themes g
o
3
B
Offers exposure to global Invests mainly in corporate Separates and centralises the Theme 8
Emerging Markets equities restructurings through currency nsk ofanunderlying  premise
trends, complemented by distressed debt, private and Emerging Markets asset class
a range of specialist equity public equity and equity in order to manage them
funds with a country, region linked securities effectively and efficiently
or small cap focus
- Broad global actve - Specl situations - Overlay Global %’
- Global small cap - Distressed debt - Hedging Emerging €
- Private equity Markets g
- Fund of listed funds - Cash management b-them =
— Infrastructure sub-themes ®
-~ Global frontier
— Real estate
I
&
3
8
Africa, Brazll, China, Indonesia, Asia, China Colomnbua, Regional/ @
L.atin Amernca, Middle East, Russia, Indha, Russia, Turkey country ot
South Asia, Turkey focused 3
sub-theme 2
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Key performance indicators

MEASURING OUTPERFORMANCE

Measure Year end Aull/ Average net management
Average AuM fee margins
Definition The movement between cpening and The average net management fee

closing AuM provides a good indication
of the overall success of the business
dunng the penod, both in terms of

net subscriptions/redemptions and
investment performance

The average AuM balance during

the period alang with the average
margins achieved, determing the level
of management fee revenues The AuM
and margin trends are lead indicators
for short-term profitability

margin1s calculated in US dollars,

and s assessed after management
fee rebates The average 15 affected

by ¢hanges in the product and investor
mix Certain themes attract higher gross
tee levels, generally where investment
return opporturities are higher

Relevance to strategy

Ashmore’s sirategy as a specialist
Emerging Markets fund manager I1s to
grow AuM firstly by establishing the
asset class secondly by diversifying
developed world capital and thirgly

by mobilising Emerging Markets capital

Ashmore ams to mantain hgh revenue
margins reflecting the specialist
charactenstics of many of the iInvestment
themes it manages

Long-term achievements

US$77.4bn

2012 US$63 7bn
_ 1|2
wlpinl2lB

AuM increased by 22% and average AuM
increased 13%, through strong net inflows
of US$13 4 billon and pasitive performance
of US$Q 3 billon Record gross inflows were
dniven by strong client demand across all

of the Group's fixed iIncome themes and
specialist equity funds institutional
investors account for 89% of AuM

20 Ashmore Group plc | Annual Report and Accounts 2013

68bps

2012 74bps

£01]

The reduction in management fee margin
was the result of clent and theme mix
effects and the influence of large segregated
mandate wins, particularty in the local
currency theme




EBITDA margin

Variable compensation
(VC)/EBVCIT

Year end
headcount

EBITDA margin measures operating profit
{exctuding depreciation and amoruisation)
against net revenues Net revenues are

The Group's vanable compensation
represents the majonty of the overall
personnel expenses payable, and s

The Group analyses its headcount
by function {investment vs support) and
by business {global asset management

Mmanano oifaleng

calculated after deducting distnbution costs  assessed as a percentage of earnings vs local asset management subsidiaries) g
and any rebates Included within costs are before vanable compensation Interest 3
both fixed and variable personnel expenses  and tax The amount includes performance- g
as well as other operating cosis related bonuses, and share-hased payments ]
and associated social secunty costs
Ashmore ams 10 mamntain an industry The Group mantains a tightly controlled The year end headcount highlights the g)
leading EBITDA margin while growing cost structure, with a low proportion of overall scalability of the business platform @
the scale of the business recurring costs and a large proportion of The local asset management headcount 1s B
vanable performance-related costs This a vital part of the third phase of the Group’s §
enables the Group to achieve an industry strategy — mobiising Emerging Markets
leading EBITDA margin caprtal managed domesucally
% 20% 291
11% 0
2012 711% 2012 18% 2012 257
N — ™ o] T
a1 | — | — — = — o B a7 =
SR =1 [E NI — |ER|I4 g
Wil | o)1= o =
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Ashmore has mantained an EBITDA

margm above 70% for each of the

fast five years Consistent with the view
expressed in previous years aur expectation
1s that the Group's EBITDA margin will
maintain an industry leading level but will
move Into the "60s” over time

The Group s (VCIEBVCIT ratio s determined
by performance in the penod The ratio
increased for FY2012/13 to 20% to reflect
conunued good performance of the overall
business aver the year and partcularly
strong relative investment performance

and net asset raising

[ Global asset management [ ] Local asset management
[ Surpost sttt 7 Investment professionals

The increase in headcount 1s In line

with the Group's strategic intiatives
surrounding domestic Emerging Markets
fund management and operational
support functions
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Business review

ASHMORE'S PROFITABLE
OPERATING MODEL HAS
BEEN MAINTAINED

The Group recorded operating profit before tax

for the year ended 30 June 2013 of £232 0 rmilion
{FY201112 £225 1 rrullion), EBITDA of £252 2 million
(FY201112 £236 2 milion), an EBITDA margin

of 71% (FY2011/12 71%]) a proht before tax of
£2576 million (FY2011/12 €243 2 million), and

a profit after tax of £201 8 million (FY2011/12

£185 7 million)

The table below reclassifies items relating to
seed capital and acquisitions to aid clarity and
comprehension of the Group s operating performance

Summary non-GAAP financial performance

FY2012/13  FY2011/12

£m fm

Net revenue 3555 3333
Adjusted EBITDA 2492 2370
Adjusted operating profit 2400 2271
Net interest income: 16 25
Seed capialrelated items 172 17
Acguisition-related items 11} ng
Profit betore tax 2576 2432

Adjusted EBITDA has been amved at after deducting
net gains on investment securities of £4 9 million
(FY2011/12 £0 4 millon loss) other expenses of

£0 7 milon (FY2011/12 £mil) and £12 mithon of
changes in third-party interests in consolidated funds
{FY2011/12 £0 4 million) from EBITDA Adjusted
operating profit1s based on adjusted EBITDA

less depreciaucn and amaruisation, but excluding
impairment of intangible assets relating

10 acquIsitions

The financial results including the reclassified items,
are analysed further below

Assets under management and fund flows

Dunng the year AuM increased by 22% from
US$63 7 billion 1o US$774 billon comprising net
nflows of US$13 4 bilion and a small contribution
from investment performance of US$0 3 bilhon

Ashmere achieved strong levels of gross
subscnptions which totalled US$272 billion
{FY2011/12 US$13 0 hilion) Inflows from new and
existing clients reflected in the man the investrment

the Group has made In its distnbution platform over
the previous few years and the instiutional nature
of the majority of the Group s clients provided some
resihence when markets weakened towards the end
of the penod

Dunng the financial year there was continued strong
demand for local currency mandates, particularly,
though not exclusively, from government-related
institutions such as central banks and sovereign
wealth funds We believe this growth has a structural
element to 1t in that such instiutions will seek o
dversify substantial US dollarbased asset holdings
over time and the strong fundamentals, growing
1ssuance volurmes and attractive yields available

in Emerging Markets local currency markets

will continue to influence allocations positively

Simitarly, corporate debt experienced strong AuM
growth through net subscniptions from a diversified
range of new and existing clients Strong new
1ssuance levels, a benign default emironment and
an appreciable yield pick-up versus equivalentrated
credits in Developed Markets all underpin continued
growth in this asset class Demand 1s concentrated
in US dollardenorminated assets, but the Group can
access the much larger jocal currency corporate debt
market, which has had relatively little invested in it to
date from interationat investors The Group s also in
the process of launching a private debt fund thereby
providing 1o clienis one af the most comprehensive
opportunity sets In this asset class

Blended debt continues to be a natural starting

pownt for new allocations to Emerging Markets

fixed iIncome, and 1s the most popular theme on the
US 40-Act mutual fund platform The theme s also
attractive 1o clients that are Invested elsewhere in the
Ermerging Markets universe and wish to define a
bespoke performance benchmark or to extend their
investments beyond a pure external debt mandate
These factors were evident during the period in some
of the outflows we experienced from external debt,
that retumed as subscriptions 1o blended debt funds

During the period there was ongoing client demand
for external debt exposure, across both public funds
and segregated accounts A proportion of the gross
subscrptions reperted in this theme arose from
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chents moving from public funds to segregated
accounts, with corresponding gross redemptions
also being recorded In the theme

It 15 pleasing to repor that dernand for high-
perferming and higherrargin specialist equity funds
was strong throughout the penod from a wade range
of chents, including public pensions and government-
related entites

The absolute levels of gross redemptions increased to
US$13 8 billion (FY2011/12 US$11 7 bilhon) but were at
a reasonable level of 19% of avarage AuM {FY2011/12
18%) and remain low by industry standards

Equities outflows were lower in the second half
of the year compared with the first six months as
focus on and iImprovements to the Broad Globat
Active Investment process have increasingly led
to outperformance against the funds’ benchmark

Qutflows from Japanese retal mult-strategy funds
were also rased towards the first half of the year
Redemptions in the second half of the year were
lower as Yen weakness benefited investment
performance and guantitative easing led to greater
investar risk appetite However this remains a
market that 1s highly cyclical

New funds and accounts

With record gross subscniptions the year was a busy
one for new account openings and fund launches
There were more than 30 segregaied accounts and
white label/dual brand mandates won during the
penod across all debt themes and also equity and
multi-strategy themes The greater number of
segregated mandates reflects increasing client

demand for this structure, and we have seen a
number of chiems move exisung capital from public
funds to new segregated accounts The investment
rade in operauonal support In recent penods
ensured we were able to dalver the additional
complexity that typically sccompanies such funds
We also increased the public fund range, including
three funds in Indenesia and additional equity local
currency corporate debt and blended debt funds on
the SICAV platform The Group ended the penod with
177 funds (FY2011/12 136 funds)

There continues to be chient demand for investment
grade assets driven in some cases by regulatory
requirements and therefore this 1s 5 trend that can
be expected to persist On a dedicated basis, such
funds now represent 5% of the Group’s AuM

AuM movements by investment theme

In ine wath the interim results and the histoncally
reported quarterly updates, the AuM by theme as
classified by mandate 1s shown in the table below
This detalls gross subscrptens and redemptions
investment performance and average net
management fee margins for each theme

Reclassifications typically occur when a funds
investment objectives investment guidelnes

or performance benchmark change such that its
charactenstics cause it to be included in a different
theme Dunng the penod this was particularly the
case with clients that were previously invested in
external debt funds and chose to define bespoke
benchmarks incorporating other fixed imcorne
themes, these funds are then classified as
blended debt

AuM movements by investment theme as mandated

MODIAIDAD DIﬁBIEJIS

a0UBUIOLa ‘

SoURUIA0D)

Average net

AuM Gross Gross AuM  management

30.une 2012 Performance  subscriphions  redemplions Net flows Reclassification 30 June 2013 fee margns

Theme (USSbn) (US8bn) {US5bn} {US%hn) {USSbn) {US%bn) {UStbn) {bps}
External debt 159 01 41 45 0 4) 11 145 65
Local currency 100 04) 95 (18 80 - 176 &0
Corporate debt 24 on 47 09 38 - 61 93
Blended debt 124 01 35 05 30 21 176 55
Equrties 62 06 10 23} {13) - 55 73
Alternatives 26 o1 03 (05} 2 04 27 240
Muit-strategy 56 00 19 (2 4) (0 5) {14) 37 118
OverlayfLiguidity 86 01 22 12 10 - 97 17
Total 637 03 272 {13 8) 134 - 774 68

SIUBLLIDIELS |BKOUELIY
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Business review continued

AuM classified by mandate 2012 (%) AuM classified by mandate 2013 (%) [ External debt

[ Local currency

[ Corporate debt

[ Blended debt

ClEquities

O atemanves

D Mult-strategy

O overlay/iquidity

AuM by investor type 2012 (%) AuM by investor type 2013 (%) [ Government-related

rension plans

’ % {7 Corporates/Financial
nsttutions

[ Funds/Sub-advisers

3>
s
S

[ Thurd party intermedianes

o,

[ Foundations/Endowmants

«e
i

AuM by investor geography 2012 (%) AuM by investor geography 2013 (%) [ Amencas

] Europe ex UK

Ouk

SN § BT
N\ Nl
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AuM - as invested

71% (30 June 2012 67%) of AuM Government-

The charts on page 24 show AuM as invested’ related entities account for 41% of Group AuM but 5
by underlying asset class which adjusts from this 1s diversified across central banks {18% of Group t_g
'by mandate’ to take account of the allocation into AUM), sovereign wealth funds (8% of Group AuM) ;
the underlying asset class of the mult-strategy and and governments (15% of Group AuM) g
blended debt themes, and of cross-over Investment The proporuon of Group AuM sourced through g
from within certain external debt funds This analysis third-party intermediaries — including electronic
conlinues to demonstrate the greater significance platfarms, brokers and other distributors — was
of the local currency and carporate debt themes, stable at 11 %, and increased by US$1 4 bithon to
with the former baing the largest single theme on US$8 2 billien in absolute terms notwithstanding
an asnvested basis the cyclical headwing from Japanese redernptions
The Group's AuM ‘as nvested’ remains diversified described above Developing AuM sourced through -
by geography, with 29% invested in Latin America such intermedianes, where the end customers are g
29% In Asia Pacific, 12% in the Midd!e East and typically retailfugh net worth indiiduals, 1s cne g
Africa, and 30% in Eastern Europe The Emerging of the Group’s strategic opjectives B
Markets universe compnses more than 65 countries The appeal of the Emerging Markets asset dass 2
and with substantial opporturities not covered by to investors globally 1s demonstrated by the Group s
benchmarks thus highlighting the benefits of being continued diverse geographic investor profile n Ine
a specialist active manager capable of investing with with the prior penod
the support of a network of domestic platforms
Management fees and performance fees
Investor profile As the Group's AuM are predominantly US dollar
Investor type based the majority of management and performance S
The Group s AuM is predominantly institutienal in fees are also US dollar-denominated The table @
nature (30 June 2013 89%, 30 June 2012 89%) and below sets out AuM, net managsment fees net =
the most significant sub-categones of iInsttutional ranagemant fee margins, and performance fees, 3
Investor are government-related entities and private by theme in US doilars §
and public pension plans, together accounting for
Underlying US dollar management and performance fees
Net
managerment Average Performance
AuM AuM fees  management fees
30June 2012 30 June 2013 FY2012113 fee margin FY201213
Theme {US$bn} [US$kn) (US$m) (bps} {US$m)
External debt 159 145 1008 65 252 o
Local currency 100 176 850 60 08 =
Corporate debt 24 61 347 93 49 2
Blended debt 124 176 872 55 22 o
Equities 62 55 439 73 15 @
Alternatives 26 27 618 240 06 3
Mult-strategy 56 37 587 18 75 7
Overlay/Liquidity 86 97 157 17 -
Total 637 774 4878 68 527
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Business review continued

Management fees

Management fee income net of distnbution costs

in Sterling terms increased by 4% to £3112 milien
as a function of ncreased levels of average

AuM (FY2012/13 US$72 2 billon, FY2011/12

US$63 2 biliion), stable GBP/USD fareign exchange
rates (FY2012/13 157 effectve, FY2011/72 158
effectrve) and a reduction in average net management
fee margins (FY2012/13 68 bps FY2011/12 74 bps)
The average net management fee margin reduction
was the result of a number of factors Theme and mix
effects, including the respective weighting of the
Group's higher and lower margin themes as they
were differently affected by flows and performance,
accounted for 2 5bps of the 6bps mavernent

The margin was also influenced by the winning

of several relatively large mandates particuiarly

in the local currency theme, which naturally attract

a lower revenue margin Specifically, among the

local currency mandate wins durning the period was a
number of segregated accounts over US$500 million
in size These funds earn an appropriate management
fee margin and are efficient to manage

Performance fees

Total perfarmance fee ncome for the year was

£33 4 milhion (FY2011/12 £25 4 million), earmed
across the investment themes and throughout

the financial year, as the market correction occurred
late (n the period, thus not having an impact on the
performance fees generated

At the year end the Group was eligible to earn
performance fees on only 18% of AuM {30 June 2012
30%), or 31% of funds {30 June 2012 37%) Of these
funds, 56% (30 June 2012 54%) of them, while able
to generate performance fees in the future, were
ineligible to do so N FY2012/13 either as a result

of such feas only being available at the end of the
multryear fund Iife such funds not earning a tee In the
performance year or as a result of rebate agreements

Operating costs and EBITDA margin

The Group has maintained its tightly controlled cost
structure, with a low properuion of recurrng costs
and a large proport:on of vanable performance-
related costs Closing headcount increased from 257
at 30 June 2012 10 2917 at 30 June 213, with the
average headcount nsing from 251 10 280 The 11%
Increase In wages and salaries to £20 0 million
(FY2011/12 £18 0 rmullion) 1s consistent with the
increase (n average headcount There has been
further recruitment this year to facilitate the future
growth of the business, with continued focus on
the expansion and development of our local fund
management and operational support teams

Vaniable compensation €osts represent the majority
of overall personnel expenses and consist of
performance-related cash bonuses, share-based
payments and assocated social securtty costs
Vanable compensation is calculated as a percentage
of earmings betore varnable compensation, interest
and tax The rate of vanable compensation applied
in the year to 30 June 2013 increased to 20%
{FY2011/12 18%) The higher ievel of vanahle
compensation from the prior year reflects continued
good performance of the overall business over the
year, and particularly strong relative investment
perforrmance and net asset raising

The five-year trend graphs of total employee
numbers and total employment costs are shown
opposite These demonstrate how the Group s
operating model has been mantained

The overall total for other expenses for the

year 10 30 June 2013 was £44 9 milion {FY2011/12
£34 4 milion) with the principal factor behind the
yearon-year increase being a higher comiined
charge for amortisation and 1mparment of intangible
assets of £16 1 mithon described in the Goodwill
and intangible assets section below, as other costs
were broadly unchanged The intangibles impairment
charge was parually offset by a £10 8 milhon credit
resulting from an adjustment to the contingent
consideration payable for the equities acquisition

as descnbed in the Finance income section below

EBITDA of £252 2 million increased 7% compared
with the pnor year (FY2011/12 £236 2 milhkon) and
results in an EBITDA margin of 71% (FY2011112 71%!}
Reclassification of tems relating to acquistions

and seed capital Investments adds darity and aids
comprehension and leads to adjusted EBITDA of
£249 2 millon an increase of 5% compared with the
pror year (FY2011/12 £2370 millon} The adjusted
EBITDA margin 1s 70% (FY2011/12 71%!}

Finance income

Included in finance incorme are items relating to the
equities acquisition The main tems a £10 8 rmullion
credit (FY2011/12 £16 8 milkon) following an
adjustment to the contingent consideration payable
to reflect 1ts fair value at the penod end The
undiscounted value of the estmated payments

in respect of the acquisition of AshmoreEMM has
fallen to £0 & mithon (30 June 2012 £12 5 million)
The amount to be paid for the business will therefore
be some £85 million less than the maximum possible
under the terms of the acquisition, reflecting that the
transaction structure with 1ts substantial emphasis
on contingent consideration, provided significant
protection for the Group and its shareholders
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Also included in finance income are items relating to
seed capital Investments described in detail below

Excluding the seed capital and acquisition-related
temns, the Group's net finance Income was
£16 milion (FY2011/12 £2 5 million}

Taxation

Ashmore 15 committed to paying tax in accordance
with all relevant laws and regulations and complying
with all fiscal abligations in the terntories in which
we operate To faciitate this we work to create and
mamtain transparent and open working relationships
with all tax authonties As a Group we aim to
maxtmise value for our shareholders and customers
by managing our businesses In a tax efficient and
transparent manner, within the rermit of the
apphcable tax rules

The majority of the Group’s profit 1s subject to

UK taxation of the total current tax charge for the
year of £60 6 milion, £56 7 million relates o UK
corporation tax The Group’s effective tax rate for

the year 1s 2174% (FY2011/12 23 7%) which 15 less
than the blended UK corporation tax rate of 23 75%
(FY2011/12 25 5%} Account Note 12 provides

a full reconciliation of this dewiation from the blended
UK corporation tax rate Key reconciling tems relate
t¢ (1 disallowable expenses relating to accounting
entries that are not tax deductible (1) deferred tax
credits ansing on temporary differences between the
accurmulatied amortisation and iImpairment charges
booked in relation to certain INtangible assets and the
related tax deductions avarlable and () current 1ax
deductions in respect of share-based awards vesting
dunng the penod

There s a £210 million deferred tax asset on the
Groups balance sheet at 30 June 2013 (30 June 2012
£15 1 million) principally arsing as a result of tming
differences in the recognition of the accounting
expense and actual tax deductions in connection with
share price appreciaiion on share-based awards

Balance sheet management and cash flow

lt1s the Group's policy to maintain a strong balance
sheet in arder to support regulatory capital
requirements to meet the commercial demands
of current and prospective investors, and to fulfil
development needs across the business which
include funding establishment costs of distnbution
offices and local asset management ventures
seeding new funds, rading or Investment in funds
or other assets and other strategic Intiatives

As at 30 June 2013, total equity attributable to
shareholders of the parent was £628 7 million,
as compared to £6373 million at 30 June 2012
There 15 no debt on the Group's balance sheet

Cash

The Group's cash and ¢ash equivalents balance
increased by £48 9 million in the year to

£395 5 million The Group continues to generate
sigrficant cash from operations totalling

£280 2 milion in the year (FY2011412 £238 8 million),
from which it paid the following significant items
£110 9 mullion in cash dividends (FY2011/12

£106 9 mullion), £52 4 mlhion of taxation (FY2011/12
£58 2 mulhon), £21 2 million for net new seed
capital investments (FY2011/12 £6 2 mithon), and
£30 8 million for purchase of own shares to satisfy
share awards (FY2011/12 £40 8 million)

The Group's cash balances are invested with the
objective of opumising returns within a strict
framework which emphasises capital preservation,
securnty, lqudity and counterparty nsk The Group's
cash and cash equivalents comprised of short-term
deposits with banks and hquidity funds, are
predominantly held with counterparties with credit
raungs ranging from A- to AAAm as at 30 June 2013
(2012 Ato AAAM}

Employee costs {Em)
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Business review continued

Seed capital investments

As at 30 June 2013 the amount invested was

£170 6 milien (at cost), with a market value

of £182 2 million (30 June 2012 £140 1 million ang
£148 8 milhon respectvely) The at-cost investment
represents 31% of Group tangible equity {30 June
2012 32%) During the perod the largest seed
capital investments were made in support of the
launch of three funds in Indonesia Several seed
capital investments made previously were recycled
profitably duning the year

Further detaills of the movements of seed capital
items during the year can be found in note 21 to
the accounts In aggregate taking into account
censoldated funds, held-forsale assets avallable-
forsale assets and non-current asset Investments,
the income statement includes total profits of
£172 milhen (FY2011/12 £17 rmilhion) related to
seed capital Investments This comnprises operating
expenses of £0 7 mithon (FY2011/12 £mi} gains on
investment secunties of £4 9 milhon (£0 4 milbon
loss) third-party interests in consclidated funds

of £12 miilon {(£0 4 milion), finance income of
£16 milhon (£13 million) and other gains on seed
capital Investments of £12 6 million (£12 million)

Purchase of own shares

The Group purchases and holds shares through

an Employee Benefit Trust (EBT) in anticipation

of the exercise of outstanding share options and
the vesting of share awards At 30 June 2013 the
EBT owned 35 205 106 (30 June 2012 32,668 764)
ordinary shares

Goodwill and intangible assets

Total goodwill and intangible assets on the Groups
balance sheet at 30 June 2013 are £84 3 million

{30 June 2012 £98 1 mition) The year-oneyear
decrease of £13 8 million 15 explained by amorusation
charges of £5 1 milion (FY2011/12 £6 2 milhon)
combined with an intangibles impairment charge

of £110 mullen (FY2011/12 £1 2 mullion), partly offset
by FX retranslation gains of £2 3 milhion ansing on
non-Sterling denominated goodwill and intangible
assets (FY2011/12 £2 3 million) This gain is included
wrthin the Group s other comprehensive Income

As described 1in note 15 1o the accounts

the intangibles impairment charge comprises

£16 milien i respect of the intenm AshmoreEMM
brand which was replaced in January 2013 by the
Ashmore brand for the Group s equities business,
and a £9 4 millon charge n respect of the
intangible value of fund management relatonships
to reflect the redemptions expenenced in the
equities theme

Deferred acquisition costs (DAC)

The Group carres on its balance shest unamortrsed
deferred acquisition costs of £0 6 million {(FY2011/12
£4 7 million) in respect of the launch of Ashmore
Global Opportunities Limited (AGOLY, a publicly hsted
closed-ended investrment company incorporated

In 2007

M/a—rket sentiment towards hsted vehicles wath dhguid
underlying assets such as AGOL remained weak
during the year and AGOLs shares contnued to trade
at a discount to ther NAVY In the ight of these factors,
Ashmore, the AGOL Board and 1ts advisers consulted
with AGOL shareholders upon a range of proposals
with the gbjective of resolving the discount 1ssug
and delivering a pesitive outcome for shareholders
Subsequently a managed wind down of AGOL
was proposed and approved by AGOL shareholders
in March 2013 AGOL has since returned over
US$100 million to shareholders representing over
20% of its NAV as at 31 December 2012 Under
the terms of the wind down Ashmore s entitled
to receve a reimburserment of certain launch costs
which were borne at the time of AGOLs IPO in 2007
As at 30 June 2013, US$3 7 miflion of such costs

had been reimbursed

Foreign exchange management

The Group s long-standing policy 1s to hedge up to
two-thirds of the notional value of foreign exchange
exposure In connection with Its net management fee
cash flows, using either forward foreign exchange
contracts or options for up to two years forward

The GBP/USD exchange rate to 3C June 2013 ranged
between GBP100 14979 - 16228USD

The Group expenenced an overall foreign exchange
gain for the year to 30 June 2013 of £4 7 milion
{FY2011112 £2 8 million gain}, compnsing a gain

of £5 9 milhon (FY2011/12 gain of £2 7 mullion)

on the translation of non-Sterling dencminated
assets and labilites combined with a loss

of £12 mulion (FY2011/12 gain of £0 1 rmillion)

on realised and unrealised hedging transactions

The notional level of foreign exchange hedges

in place at 30 June 2013 15 US$1410 milicn

This consists of options (U$$136 0 millien) and
forwards (US$5 0 milhon) in respect of FY2013/14
and FY2014/15 net management fee cash flows

The foreign exchange hedges protect the Sterling
value of US$1410 million of the Group's forecast
management fee revenue cash flows for FY2013/14
and FY2014/15 from being impacted by currency
mavements {outside the contracted ranges for the
ni-cost option collars)
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The options and forwards have been marked-to-
market at the yearend rate of GBP1 15213USD

As designated hedges, the mark-to-market movement
In the value of the options and forwards will be taken
through reserves, untl such time as they and the
associated hedged revenues mature, 50 long as the
hedges are assessed as being effective |If assessed
as ineffective the mark-to-market of the optiens and
forwards will be taken through the income statement

Regulatory capital

As a UK Iisted asset management group Ashmore
1s subject t¢ regulatory supervision by the Financial
Conduct Autharty (FCA) under the Prudential
Sourcebook for Banks, Bulding Socieues and
Investment Firms The Group has one UKregulated
entity, Ashmore Investment Management Limited
(AIML), on behalf of which half-yearly capnal
adequacy returns are filed AIML held surplus capital
resources relative 1o (ts requirements at all umes
dunng the peniod under review

Further since 1 January 2007 the Group has
been subject to consolidated regulatory capital
requrements whereby the Board 1s required

10 assess the degree of nisk across the Group’s
business and hold sufficient capital against these

The Board has assessed the amount of Pillar I
capital required to cover such rnisks as £870 million
{FY2011/12 £65 6 milion) Thus given the
considerable balance sheet resources avallable

to the Group the Board s satisfied that the
Group I1s adequately capitalised to continue ts
operations effectively

Further information regarding the Group's capital
adequacy status and Internal Capital Adequacy
Assessment Process (ICAAP) can be found in the
Group’s Pillar Ill disckosures, which are avallable
on our website at wwaw ashmoregroup com

Risk

Risk 1s inherent In all businesses and Is therefore
present within the Group s actvities The Group
seeks to identify guantify monitor and manage each
of its nsks effectively The ulumate respons:bility for
nsk management rests with the Board However,
from a practical perspective some of this actvity 1s
delegated and the Group actively promotes a nsk
awareness culture throughout the organisation

The principal nisks, their miigants and their delegated
owners are set out on pages 32 and 33 for each

of the four nsk categones that Ashmore considers
most important strategic and business, investment

operational, and treasury —with reputational nsk being

a common characteristc across all four categories

During the year the Group's nsk contral framewark
has been enhanced to take account of changing
business and market conditions with refinement
of the Group Risk Matrix, which seeks to identify
the principal nsks to the Group as well as current
mibigants and forward-looking action plans

Further details of the Group s risk management and
internal control systems and reporting are described
in the Corporate governance repart on pages 40 to 46

Dividend

In recognition of the Group's financial performance
during the penod and of our confidence (n the
Group's future prospects, the Directors are
recommending a final dvdend of 11 75p per share
for the year ended 30 June 2013 which subject to
shareholder approval will be paid on 6 December
2013 10 those shareholders who are on the reqister
on 8 Novermber 213

An interim dwidend for the sixmonth period

to 31 December 2012 of 4 35p per share

(31 December 2011 4 25p per share) was paid on
12 Apnl 2013 Together, these result in a full-year
dividend of 16 10p per share {2012 15 00p per
share), an increase of 7%

Graeme Dell
Gr Finance Director
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Business review continued

LONG-TERM GROWTH IN

ASSETS UNDER MANAGEMENT

Assets under
Management

Over the past five years
Ashmore has increased its
AuM by 106% Net inflows
account for 76% of the growth
in AuM over this pencd

Assets under
Management bridge
During the year AuM increased
22% frorm US$63 7 billion

to US$774 billon comprtsing
net inflows of US$13 4 billion
and positive Investment
performance of US$0 3 billon

Key

[JExternal debt
[]tocal currency
[Ocorporate debt
[ Blended debt
[CJEquites
[CJAlternatives
CIMultistrategy
Ooverlay/Lgudity

s 37.5

24.9

35.3

65.8

63.7

17.4

2008

2009

2010

2011

2012

2013
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Principal nisks and mitigation

Risk type/owner

Description of nsk

Mitigation

Strategic and
Business risk

The nsk that the medwm and long-term
profitability of the Group could be
adversely impacted by the fallure either
1o identity and implement the corract
strategy or 1o react appropnately o
changes in the business environment

Delegated to
Ashmore Group plc Board

Investment nsk

The nsk of non-performance or manager
neglect including the nsk that long-term
Invesiment outperfarmance 1s not
delivered thereby damaging prospects

for winning and retaining clients and
putting average management fee margins
under increased pressure, and decreased
market fiquidity provided by counterparties
that the Group and its Funds rely on

Delegated to
Ashmore Group Investment
Commuittees

These include

-~ Along-term downturn in the fundamental
and technicat dynamics of emerging
markets

Ineffective marketing and distnbution
strategy,

Expansion into unsuccessful themes
Potential market capacity 1ssues and
increased compettion

Impact of negative or Inaccurate
press comments

These include

- That the Investment manager does
not adhere 10 policies,

— A downturn in long-term investment
perfaormance,

— Insufficient counterparties

These include

~ The Board's long investment
management expenence,

— A clearly defined Group strategy
understood throughout the organisation
and actvely monitored,

- A diverse range of Emerging Markets
Investrment themes across asset classes

— Experienced centrally managed and
globally located distribution team 10
access increasingly diversified sources
of AuM

- Product Committee with knowledge
of the markets in place,

- Detined Media and Reputation
Management Policy in place

These include

- Expenenced Investment Committees
meet weekly ensurnng consisient core
Investment processes are apphed,

— Dedicated Emerging Markets research
and investment focus with frequent
country visits as well as a physical
presence in key Emerging Markets,

— Diversification of investment capabilities
by therne asset class and tocation,

- Strong Compliance and Risk Management
oversight of palicies restrictions Limits
and other related controls

- Formal counterparty policy with reviews
held at least quarterly
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Risk type/owner

Descnption of nsk

Mitigation

Operational nsk

Risks 1n this category are broad in nature
and inherent in most businesses and
processes They include the nisk that
operational flaws result from a lack

of resources or planning, error or fraud,
or wesknesses In systems and controls

Delegated to
Ashmore Group Risk & Comphance
Committee

These include

— Comphance with regulatory requirements
as well as with respect to the monitorning
of nvestment breaches

— The aversight of overseas subsidianes

— Avallability and retention of staff,

— Fraud by an employee or third-party
service provider,

— Accuracy and integrrty of data, including
overrelance on manual processes

- Errors resulung from trade execution
and settlernent process

— Oversight of third-party providers
in¢luding Fund Adrministrators

— New fund set-up or matenal changes
to existing funds are incorrectly
implemented,

- Business and systems disruption,

— Set-up and mantenance of trading
counterparties

These include

— A Risk and Complance Committee
meets on @ monthly basis to consider
the Group’s Key Risk Indicators (KRis),

— Experenced Compliance Legal and
Finance departments to identify quaniify,
moniter and manage regulatory changes,

— Anntegrated control and managernent
framework 15 In place to ensure day-to-day
global operations are managed effectively

— Resources are regularly reviewed and also
career development and succession
planning 1s 1n place

— T Steenng Group in place to approve and
meniter progress of projects to reduce
significant manual dependencies,

— Fully Integrated trade order management
and portfolio accounting platforms

— Engagement letters or service level
agreements are In place with all
significant service providars,

— Formal procedures and sign-off in place
for launch of new funds or matenal
changes to existing funds

— a BCPand Disaster Recovery palicy
and related procedures exist, and
1s tested regularly,

— Alltrading counterparties are subject
to stnct nsk legal compliance ang
operational sign-off pnor to set-up

Treasury nsk

These are nisks that the Management does
not appropnately mitigate balance sheet
nsks or expasures which could ultmately
impact the financial performance or
position of the Group

Delegated to
Chief Executive Officer and
Finance Director

These include

— Group revenues are primanly US
dollarbased whereas financial results
are denominated in Sterling,

— The Group invests 0 its own funds from
time to tme, exposing 1t to price nsk
credit nsk and foreign exchange nsk,

- Liquidity management

— The Group 15 exposed to credit nsk
and interest rate nsk in respect of
its cash balances

These include

— Monthly reporting of all balance sheet
exposures to the Executive,

— Oversight and management of the
Group's foreign exchange balances 1s
the responsibility of the FX Management
Committee which determines the
appropriate level of hedging required

— Seed capital 1s subject to stnict monitonng
by the Board within a framework of set
limits including diversification,

— Cash flows are forecast and monitored
ona regular basis and managed in ing
with approved policy,

— Group Liquidity Folicy n place,

— The avallability of GBP and USD S&P
AbA-rated liqudity funds managed
by experienced cash managers

— Defined nsk appetite in place
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Corporate social responsibility

A COMBINATION OF ETHICAL
INVESTING WITH SOUND
BUSINESS PRACTICE

Investment

Business Conduct and Integrity

We believe that our reputation as an ethical,
trustworthy prowvider of investment services 1S
essential to our core purpose of helping our chents to
build their financial secunty We seek to estathsh and
maintain long-term relatonships with our chents and
intermedianes We believe this to be a fundamenial
pre-requisite for the growth of our business

Responsible investing across our themes
We aim to ensure that investments we make cornply
with therr own industry standards and best practice
treat their employees farly have active community
programmes and operate with sensitmvity 1o the
envircnment Ashmore has made investments in

a number of renewable energy projects in different
countries including hydro-electricity geothermal
energy and sugarbased ethanol production
Investments have also been made in a Middle East
based technology company which provides systems
products and services for the reduction and recychng
of waste and the preservation, protection and
restoration of the environment, and in China ina
company which makes battenes for electric vehicles,
principally for use In buses These Investments

on behalf of our chents reflect our overall approach
to combining ethical investing with sound

business practice

Amongst the iniiatives we are undertaking

n South America, we have established an
Environmental and Social Management System
(ESMS) for the management of investments

of a new investor fund in Colombia within the
Alternatives investment theme This fund has

been developed in a form and substance acceptable
to the InterAmerican Developrnent Bank (IDB) and
International Finance Corporation (IFC)

Cur funds and segregated accounts each have

a spechic investment mandate which sets out

the parameters for investment Within our Equites
and Corporate debt themes we are able 1o screen
our client portfolos to meet clent requirements for
geographic sector and stock specific restrictions
Stock speaific restrictions may include securimes
which meet clents’ own ESG cntena

Examples of investment areas where we can offer
screening of portfolios based on {or nformed by)
client requirements {using recognised Investment
industry identfiers and coding Into our portfolio
management system) include

- Alcohal

- AnimalfFoed preducts

- Armaments manufacturers or dealers
- Gambling

- Pornography

— Tobacco

At a geographical level, we also screen across

all of cur Investment themes for countnes which
are on the United Nations Sanctions and the US

Office of Foreign Assets and Control (QFAC) Iists

Environmental, Social and Govemance
(ESG) philosophy

Public equities

ESG critena tend to be focused pnmanly on equity
investing because of the influence which shareholder
Interests are able to exert on the management of

a particular company

Ashmore believes that the way n which companies
manage their relations with stakehclders can have an
impact on business performance These stakeholders
encompass employees local communities wider
society, governments, supply chains customers

and the natural environment There Is a wide range
of envirgnmental and social issues which could be
relevant for a company depending on the industry

1n which it operates and its specific business profile
Emaronmental and social 1ssues can become

new sources of nsk or opportunities for companies
and a company’s ability to respond 1o these 1ssuss
can therefore act as an early signal of long-term
competitiveness To the extent practicable Ashmore
moniters the environmental, social and corporate
governance performance of the companies in which
it Invests through ongoing company visits and other
information channels
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Generally, companies disclose corporate governance
practices through corporate policies stock market
listings (for example, Brazil's stock exchange has

a separate category for companies committed

1o corporate governance best practicel and market
press releases They disclose environmental and
social practices in annual reports and other reports
10 Investors

As a global investor, Ashmore recognises that
legislation and best practice standards vary among
countries and regions and that they must remain
sensitive to these differences However at

a minimum, Ashmore expects the companies

in which 1t invests to comply with the national
tegislation that applies to them

Alternatives

Ashmore’s Alternatives investment theme often
invalves our funds taking significant controlling
stakes In investee companies In such crcumstances
we are In a position to positively engage with the
management of these companies In many cases
we believe 1t 1o be beneficial te our Investors

to be proactive in promotng our brand locally by
improving the velihoods of the employees in those
companies where we have a controlling stake When
undertaking inimal due diligence on any investments
within our Alternatives theme our deal memorandum
checklist takes into account the consideration of ESG
1ssues within the investment analysis and decision
making process and the Investee company’s own
ESG practices

Fixed income

Within our Emerging Market debt segregated
accounts, we offer clients the flexibility to implement
their ESG constraints related 1o specrfic countnes,
sectors and securities (for example — restrcted hsts,
cencentraton imits etc)

Engagement

Within mature markets, ethical investing has often
been portrayed as a ‘negative conceptie, it nvolves
a decision not to Invest In a certain way Whilst these
concepts are well accepted in mature markets we
believe that they are not necessarlly conducive to
helping emerging economies develop In the context
of developing countries we believe that it is also
possible to apply other concepts such as
engagement with the ethical investment debate

In our public equities theme we believe that good
corporate governance helps to align the interests
of company management with those of its
shareholders Whers possible we seek to maintain
constructive dialogue with company management
We consider whether companies have corporate
governance framewaorks that are in ine with
applicable country codes and serve shareholder
Interests Views on corporate governance do not

constrain mvestment decisions however, ofien the
best investments ¢an be in companies where we
anticipate an improvement IN COrporate governance
practices In many junsdictions and to the extent
consistent with our iduciary duty 1o our clients

we exercise our voting nghts as a means 1o signal
our views to company management VWe have
developed detaled guidelines to guide our voting
decisicns but will as appropriate consider
resclutions on a case-by-case basis taking into
account all avallable information

ABIAIDAO DIBB1ENS

As a global investor, Ashmore recognises that legislation
and best practice standards vary among countries and
regions, and that they must remain sensitive to these
differences However, at a minimum, Ashmore expects
the companies In which it iInvests to comply with the
national legislation that applies to them

The majerity of our assets continue to be invested

In either external debt {the majonty of which 1s
sovereign) or local currencies In the case of external
deht investments cur ability to have an influence

15 generally hmited to a decision whether or not to
Invest However at a country level we believe that
we are able to exert an influence through dialogue
with governments and central banks Engagement
with a country, as opposed to disengagement, 1S akin
to many small pressures every day as opposed to one
‘big stick’ By remaining engaged over an extended
perod of time 1t 15 often possible 1o have a positive
influence and to add credibifity

Where Emerging Markets are concerned therefore
we believe that In certain circumstances it may

be more beneficial to keep investment flowing
combined with the influence which accompanies

it n order to continue being able to help a country s
population In country specific terms at the extreme
heing cut off from capital may allow undemocratic
rulers to control therr people by attnbuting blame
for economic problems to foreign actions  Sanctions
may be counterproductive and may reduce the
welfare of the population considerably Hence we
take investment and engagement/disengagement
decisions on a case-by-case basis relative to the
specttic circumstances and investment critera

in the best interests of our clients

Proxy Voting and Corporate Actions
Subject 10 spectfic mandate restncuons, Ashmore
15 generally respansible for voung proxies and
taking decisions In connection with proxy voting
with respect to equities bonds, Ipans or other
debt instrurnents held by or held on behalf

of the chents for which 1t serves as investment
manager/fadviser
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Corporate social responstbility continued

Where Ashmore 1S given responsibility for proxy
voting and corporate actions, it will take reasonable
steps under the circumstances to ensure that
proxies are voted in the bast interests of its clients
Protecting the financial interests of its clients 1s the
pnmary consideration for Ashmore in determining
how 1o protect such interests This generally means
proxy voting with a view 1o enhancing the value

of the secunities held by or on behalf of Ashmore s
chients, through maximising the value of secunties
taken either ndividually or as a whole

UK Stewardship Code

Deatails on how and the extent to which, Ashmore complies with the
principles of the UK Stewardship Code are described separately on the
Ashmore website at

nttps /Awww ashmoregroup comyinvestorrelations/corporate-governance

The Ashmore Foundation

Making a positive difference

The Ashmore Foundation currently has seven prionity
countries (Brazil, Colombia, Mexico, India, Indonesia
Philippines and Turkey) based on the lecation

of Ashmaore offices and significant investments,
as well as the existence of a strong civil sector
and clear social needs on which the Foundation
can focus Supporting locally based NGQOs in the
Emerging Markets reflects Ashmore’s desire to
give back to the countries that have contributed
to 1ts profitability supporting empowerment and
local capacity in the Emerging Markets

The Foundation channels financial support through
two schemes

1 Smafl Grants scheme, providing grants of up 1o
£5 000 to a range of eligible charties, throughout
the Emerging Markets (prioritising Ashmore
employee recommendations), and

2 Partnership Grants scheme for larger grants and
longerterm relationships with strong organisations
based in pricnty countnes where ther missions
are clearly aligned with our focus and where there
1$ dernonstrable evidence of an effective approach

Whilst the Foundation does review unsolicited
proposals which fulfil the ehgibility criteria grantees
~ particularly at partnership level — are pnmanly
sourced or recommended and invited 1o apply
following research 10 ensure a strong match

All organisations are assessed using a standard
process as outhned below

The Ashmore Foundation's assessment process

15 designed 1o review a whole organisation —taking
into consideration management, strategies, activities,
resulis resources and accountability ~ before
considenng any specific projects prepesed for funding
The level and depth of due diigence 1s proportionate
to the size of the grant under consideration

In addion to the Ashmore Foundation's Smiall

and Partnership Grants pregramme the Ashmore
Foundation supports through a funding partnership
the STARS Foundation which provides awards

to a handful of exceptional frontline NGOs changing
the Iives of children in developing countries each

year from thousands of applications This strategic
partnership brings together the resources of the
Ashmore Foundation with the expertise of the STARS
Foundation in sourcing, assessing and awarding

‘the best' local NGOs working worldwide to sclve
global challenges, and shining a light on the hallmarks
of effective NGO practice The ¢ollaboration has
enabled the shanng of methodologies, capahbitties
and resources and has highlighted new co-funding
oppariunities We are delighted that this partnership
which began in 2012 has enabled both the STARS
Foundation and the Ashmere Foundation to reach
more cutstanding organisations in more locaticns,
impacting more lives

The Foundation 1s supported solely by Ashmore and
its employees globally Crucially this support from
employees extends beyond financial aid through

to active engagement in fundraising and a network
of support which includes mentonng and he'ping
NGOs expand their network of contacts

Through the Ashmore Foundation, close to

£185 mullien has been donated/committed to more
than 45 charitable causes througheut the Emerging
Markets since inception in 2008 In 2012 alone,
grants from the Ashrmore Foundation benefited
mere than 40,000 underprivileged community
members with a range of services and support

Employees

At year end Ashmore employed approximately

300 peop'e in 11 countnes worldwide Ashmares
people have always been its most important asset

at the heart of everything it does Ashmore has rmany
talented people and 1t remains a pnority io develop
manage and retain this talent 1n order to deliver the
potentiat of the organisation Ashmore wants to be
an employer which the most talented people aspire
1o join wherever it operates
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New website for the
Ashmore Foundation

Importantly the site also allows the
Foundation to showcase Its grantees

We hope that the short case studies

2013 saw the launch of a dedicated
Ashmore Foundation website The site
1s designed to help increase the
efficiency of the grant process hy
explaining the different apphcaton
stages and by providing a simple onling
forrn for potential grantees

Ashmore seeks to ensure that its workforce reflects
as far as practicable the diversity of the many
communities in which 1t 1s located Ashmore

also recognises the diverse needs of its employees
In managing the responsibiities of their work

and persenal ives and believes that achieving

an effective balance in these areas 1s beneficial

10 both the Company and the indwdual

Ashmore encourages employees to act ethically and
1o clearly uphold the standards of practice which its
clents have come to expect It also means ensuring
that sts employees understand the strategic ams and
abjectives of the Group and are clear about therr role
i achieving them

The Group recegrises that the involvement

of its employees s key to the future success

of the business and adopts a practice of keeping
employees informed on significant matters affecting
them, via email and in meetings arranged for the
purpose The Group has consistently operated

a remuneration strategy that recogrises both
corporate and individua! performance

The Group Is also committed to following good
practice in employment matters recognising the part
this plays n attracting and retaining staff The Group
promotes the importance of high ethical standards
to all employees and staff have the opporturity

to voice any concerns they may have enther direct
with management or on a confidential basis via the
whistle-blowing process

Equal opportunities

The Group 15 committed to ensuring that all
employees are treated farly and with dignity and
respect This commitment is reflected in the Staif
Handbook that all employees receve on joiming

The polices and practices in place wathin the Group
to deter acts of harassment and discrimination are
regularly menrtored

It1s the Group s policy that no employee shall be
treated less favourably on the grounds of their age

of beneficranes will help NGOs o
share best practices and also hapeful
applicants will better understand
the types of projects funded by

the Foundation

www ashmorefoundation org

sex sexual onentation race, religlon nationality

or mantal status or on the grounds of disability
This policy apphes wathoui imitation to promotion
training placement transfer dismissal remuneration
grievance and disciplinary procedures and
decisions This policy also apglies to persons

from outside the workplace and the treatment

of contract workers

Health and safety

The Group has in place a global health and safety
pohicy which can be accessed by all staff via an
internal database The aim of this policy 1s to provide
both staff and wisitors with a safe and healthy
working environment The Group 1s comimitted

t¢ adhenng 10 the high standards of health and
safety set out by its policies and precedures

and to providing training as necessary

Environment

As an investment manager, Ashmore has a imited
direct impact upon the emvironment and there

are few environmental risks associated with the
Group's activities Ashmore does not own any

of the bulldings where «t occupies fioorspace and
invariably buildings in which 11 does have a lease are
mult-tenanted and costs are apportioned to each
tenant pro-rated according 1o occupancy Ashmore s
largest property occupancy I1s at its headquarters

at 61 Aldwych London and where 1t occupies

a single floor of approximately 19 000 square feet

i a mne storey mult-tenanted bulding

Wiater and gas supplied into the building are metered
centrally by the bulding management and costs
apportioned 10 each tenant pro rata according to
floor occupancy

Electnicity usage in London 1s separately monitored
by floor wath renewable energy accounting for a
munimurn of 10% of supply Energy efficient ighting
15 nstalled in the building with sensors which

turn hights off when no movement is detected

The buillding has receved an Energy Performance
Ceruficaie with an Asset Rating of 98
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Corporate social responsibility continued

Emissions reporting

As of 1 October 2013 all companies listed on the
Main Market of the London Stock Exchange will have
1o report their Greenhouse Gas ermissions (GHGs)

in ther Annual Report after 30 September 2013

Ashmore will be one of the organisations reguired (o
report Scope 1 and 2 emissions for its reporing year
1 July 2013-30 June 2014 Ashmore has however
chosen to present the required emissions data in
this repart for the current reporting year in advance
of the obligauons corming into effect Further details
on emissions reporting can be found in the CSR
report on our wehsite at www ashmaoregroup com

Aur travel accounts for the greatest amount of overall
emissions (2,099 tonnes CO,e, 78%) Nearly 20%
of Ashmere's emissions come from purchased
electricity across the business (543 tonnes CO,e}
MNatural gas refrigerants water and waste account
for the lowest level of emissions though 1t 1s noted
that data was not available for all offices for

these categones

Ashmore Group's emissions by scope

Tonnes CO,e’ Ahi‘;'t"atl:

Scope Source 2012113 Tonnes CO.e

Scope 1 Natural gas 48 9 531
Refrnigerants 62

Scope 2 Electroity 542 5 5425
Scope 3 Aur travel 20988

Water 53 2,1050
Waste 09

Total 2,700 6

1 UK erissions factors have been used for &ll data except
for electnaty ermissians where the relevant intemational
emussions factors have been applied All emvissions factors
have been selected from the emissions conversion factors
published annually by Defra https /Avwaw gov uk/measuning
and reporting-environmeniakmpacts-guidance for busingsses

Ashmore has published a separate corporate responsibility
report which can be found on its website at

www ashmaregroup com

Emissions have also been calculated using an
‘Intensity metnc’ which wall enable Ashmore 1o
monitor how well we are controlling emissions

on an annual basis, iIndependent of fluctuations in
the levels of their activity As Ashmore I1s a ‘people’
business the most suitable metnc s ‘emissions
per full-ume equivalent (FTE} employee Ashmores
ermissions per person are shown in the table below

Emissions per FTE

Tonnes CO.efemployee (FY2012/13)

Scope 1 02
Scope 2 20
Scope 3 76 ‘
Total 98

Travel |
Although we endeavour to make maximum use of |
available technology, such as video conferencing our

business model as an investor in Emerging Markets

inevitably reguires that our investrment professionals

and other members of staff travel frequently to these |
countres to Investigate and monitor opportunities |

Recycling

Ashmore has in place recyding programmes
for waste paper photocopier toners and other
disposable materals We seek to minimise the
use of paper as part of our clear desk policy
and electronic scanning 1S actively encouraged
All printing 1s two sided by default

At Ashmore we are conscaious of mimimising

our impact on the environment For this reasan,
wherever possible we choose paper stocks that

have been sustanably sourced and which are Forest
Stewardship Counail® {FSC} accredited {or equivalent}
for our markeung matenals and business statonery

Ashmere provides obsolescent computers

to Computer Aid Internatienal (Computer Aid),

a UK regsstered charity that ams to reduce poverty
through practical ICT solutions Computer Aid sends
these PCs to vanous projects across Afnca and
South Amenca and furnishes Ashmore with details
of where they are used Any units that are not
usable are disposed of in an environmentally
friendly fashion

By gyder, e Bgar

A P

MicKael Perm
Company Secretary

9 September 2013
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Board of Directors

The Hon Michael Benson

Non-executive Chairman (Age 70)

Michae! Bensan was apponied to the Ashmore Group plc Board

as non-executive Chairman on 3 July 2006 Me 1s Charman of the
Company’s nominations committee Michael began his career in the
City in 1863 and, atier a senes of senior pasitions in the investment
management industry was from 2002 to March 2005, Chairman

of Invesco and Vice Chairman of Amvescap plc Prior to that he was
CEOQ of Invesco Global {1897-2002) Michael s Charrman of Hayaat
Group a Non-executive Director of Trinity Street Asset Management
and 1s the director of the York Minster Fund

Committee membership N, R

Mark Coombs

Chief Executive Officer {Age 53}

Mark Coombs was appointed a Director on the incorporation of the
Company in December 1998 and has served as its Chief Executive
Cfficer since then He held a number of positions at Australia and
New Zealand Banking Group {ANZ} and led Ashmore's buyout from
ANZ in early 1999 He s Co-Char of EMTA the trade association
for Emerging Markets hawving been on the Board since 1993

Mark has an MA in Law fromn Cambndge University

Graemae Dell

Group Finance Director {Age 47)

Graeme Dell was appointed to the Board as Group Finance Director
in December 2007 Prior to joining Ashmore Graeme was Group
Finance Director of Evolution Group ple from 2001 to 2007 where
he had group-wide responsibility for finance cperatians, technology,
comphance nsk and HR which included playing a significant role in
the foundation and development of Evolution’s Chinese secunues
business Graeme previously worked for Deutsche Bank and
Goldman Sachs in a range of business management finance and
opesations roles both in Europe and in Asia Pacific Graeme qualified
as a chartered accountant with Coopers & Lybrand and 1s a graduate
of Hertford College, Oxford University

Nick Land

Senior Independent Non-executive Director (Age 65)
Nick Land was appointed to the Board as Senior Independent
Non-executive Director and Chairran of the Audit Committee

on 3 July 2006 He 1s a qualiied accouniant and was a partner

of Ernst & Young LLP from 1978 10 2006 and i1s Charrman from
1995 to 2008 Nick 1s a Non-executive Director of BBA Aviation ple,
Alliance Boots GmbH and Vodafone Group plc and a trustee of the
Vodafane Group Foundation He 1s a Board member of the Financial
Reporting Council a member of the Finance and Audit Committees
of the Nauonal Gallery and 1s Chairman of the Board of Trustees

of Farnham Castle

Commuttee membership A, N, R :

Melda Donnelly

Non-executive Director (Age 63)

Melda Donnelly joined the Ashmore Group Plc Board as a Non-
executive Director in July 2003, and ;s also a member of the audit
committee Melda 1s an Australian ciizen and Chartered Accountant
She was the Founder and Chairperson of the Centre for Investor

Education Current directorships nclude Treasury Group Limited
and UniSuper Pty Limited Melda's past investment experience
includes being CEQ of Queensland Investment Corporation

and Deputy Managing Director of ANZ Funds Managernent and
Managing Director of ANZ Trustees She 1s currently a member of
the Adwvisory Committee of the Oxford University Centre for Ageing

Committee membership A N

Simon Fraser

Non-executive Director (Age 54}

Simon Fraser joined the Board on 10 February 2012 Simon has
extensive expenence of the fund management industry having
waorked at Fdelity International from 1981 to 2008 At Fidelity he
hetd a number of posiiens dunng his career including President
European & UK Insttuuonal Business Global Chief Investment
Officer, Chief Investment Officer for Asia Pacific and Chief
Investment Officer of the European Investrment Group He s

a Non-executive Director of Barclays Bank plc and Barclays ple,
Chairman of Foreign & Calonial Investment Trust plc, The
Merchants Trust plc and a Non-executive Director of Fidelity
European Values Plc and Fidelity Japanese Values Plc

Commitiee membership A N, A

Charles Cuthwaite

Non-executive Director (Age 48)

Charles Outhwaite joined the Board on 19 February 2013

Charles 1s a graduate in modem history from Oxford Univarsity
and also holds an MBA from Wanwick business school He has
over 25 years experience In corporate finance with a parucutar
focus on the financal services sector He 1s currently a Senior
Adwvisor to Evercore Partners and was a Partner and Managing
Orrector of Lexicon Partners pnor to 1ts acquisiion by Evercore

10 2011 Charles began hus investment banking career with J Henry
Schroder Wagg & Co and was a Managing Director of Donaldson
Luflun and Jenrette (DLJ), and, untl 2001 of Credit Suisse First
Boston's Financial Institutions Group following its acquisition

of DLJin 2000

Dame Anne Pnngle DCMG

Non-executive Director {Age 58)

Dame Anne Pringle joined the Board on 19 February 2013

Dame Anne graduated from St Andrews University with an MA
in French and German She has over 30 years” expernence as

a career diplomat with the Foreign and Commonwealth Office,
focusing in particular on the EU, Russia and Eastern Europe
8etween 2001 10 2004, Dame Anne was the British Ambassador
to the Czech Republic and {rom 2004 to 2007 Director of Strategy
and Information at the FCO and a member of the FCO Board From
2008-2011 she served as Ambassador to the Russian Federation
Dame Anne was appoinited Dame Commander of the Order

of St Michael and St George (DCMG) in the 2010 New Year
Honours List She s a Public Appointments Assessor and

a Member of St Andrews University Court

Key to membership of committees
A— Audit and Risk

N - Nominagons

R — Remuneration

MIINEA0 DIBENS
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Comporate Governance

Chaiman’s introduction

In May 2010 the FRC published a new edition of the UK
Corporate Governance Code which applies to financial
years beginning on or after 29 June 2010

The Group has been in compliance with the Code and
its predecessor versions since Admission to listing

on the London Stock Exchange on 17 Qctober 2006,
except where the Directors consider that in particular
hmited circumstances, departure may be justified

and explained

No departures from the Code oceurred duning the year
under review

A new edition of the Code was published in September
2012 and applies to reporting periods beginning on or
after 1 October 2012

The Group has chosen to adopt the new provisions

in the revised Code for the year under review and
references to ‘the Code’ in this Annual Report are to the
2012 version of the UK Corporate Governance Code

This report describes the Group's corporate governance
arrangements, explaiming how it has applied the
prninciples of the Code

Michael Benson
Chairman

Directors

The Board of Directors compnses two Executive
Directors and six Non-exaecutive Directors The two
Executive Directors are Mark Coombs the Chiet
Executive Officer and Graeme Dell the Group
Finance Director The Non-executive Directars

are Michael Benson, Chairman Nick Land, Sernor
Independent Director, Melda Donnelly, Simon Fraser
Charles Quthwarte and Dame Anne Pnngle With
the exception of Charles Outhwaite and Dame Anne
Pringle, who bath joined the Board on 18 February
2013, all Directors served throughout the year

The Board has a schedule of matters specifically
reserved to 1t for decision and approval, which include,
but are not imited 1o

- the Group s long-term commercial objectves
and strategy,
— major acquistions, disposals and investments
— the Group’s annual and intenm reports and financial
statements,
— intenm dradend and recommendation
of final dividend,
— annual budgets and forecast updates
~ significant capital expenditure and
- the effectiveness of internal controls
The roles of the Chairman and Chiet Executive Officer
are separate, dearly defined and have been approved
by the Board The Chairman s responsible for the
effective conduct of the Board while the Chief Executive
Othcer i1s responsible for execution of strategy and
for the day-to-day management of the Group

Qur govemance framework

PLC Board of Directors

PLC Remuneration Committee

|
PLC Executive Directors T

PLC Audit and Risk Committee

Specialised Committees

- Global Investment Performance
Standerds Commuttee

- Investment Committee
Pricing Methodology and
Valuation Committee ~ Risk and Compliance Committee
- Product Committee - Foreign Exchange Management

IT Steering Group Comrnittee

Senior management

Intemal audrtors Extemal auditors

Independent assurance
via audit of Group Financiat
Staternents and audit of internal
control procedures

Independent assurance
via audit directed at specific
departmental control procedures
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In considering Non-executive Director independence,
the Board has taken into consideration the gwdance
provided by the Code The Board considers Michael
Benson, Nick Land Melda Donnelly, Simon Fraser,
Charles Cuthwaite and Dame Anne Pringle to

be independent Nick Land 1s the Senior
Independent Director

Dunng the year under review the Group comphed

with the Code requirement that at feast half of the
Board consist of independent Directors {excluding
the Chairman}

Biographical details of the Directors are given
on page 39

The Board meets a mintmum of six times dunng
the year to review financial performance and strategy
and to follow the tormal schedule of matters
reserved for its deaision Comprehensive Board
papers comprising an agenda and formal repons
and briefing papers, are sent to Directors in advance
of each meeting Threughout their pernod 1n office
Directors are continually updated by means of
written and verbal reports from senior executives
and external advisers on the Group's business,

and the competitive and regulatory environments

in which 1t operates, as well as on legal, corporate
governance, corporate social responsibility and other
relevant matters

In addition to 1ts formal business, the Board receved
a number of briefings and presentations from
executive management during the year covering a
wide range of topics across the range of the Group's
husiness All Directors have access to independent
professional advice if required at the Company's
expense as well as to the advice and services of

the Company Secretary New Directors appointed
to the Board will receive advice as to the legal and
other duties and cbligations ansing from the role

of a director of a UK listed company within a full
formal and tatlored induction programme The
Company Secretary, under the direction of the
Chairman, 15 responsible for mamntaining an adequate
continuing education programme, reminding the
Directors of therr duties and obligations on a regular
basis ensunng good infermation flows between

the Board 11s committees and management and
assisting with Directors continuing professionat
development needs

The Company’s Nominations Commitiee
considers the appointment and replacement
ot Directors subject to the rules set cut In the
Articles, a summary of which 1s set out below

Under the Articles the minimum number of
Directors shall be two and the maximum shall be
ning Directors may be appointed by the Company
by ordinary resolution or by the Board A Duector

appointed by the Board must offer imselffherself
for election at the next Annual General Meeting of
the Company following his appointment but he 1s not
taken into account In determining the Directors or
the number of Directors who are to retire by rotation
at that meeting

The Directors to retire by rotation must be those
who held office at the nme of the two preceding
Annual General Meetings and did not retire at erther
of them or 1if they have held office with the Company
for a continuous penod of nine years or more at

the date of the Annual General Meeting The office
of Director shall be vacated in other circumstances
including where (i) that Director resigns or 15 asked
to resign, (n) they are ar have been suffenng from
mental It health, () they are absent without
permission of the Board from meetings of the
Board for six cansecutive months, {iv) they become
bankrupt or compound with therr creditors generally,
or (v] they are prohitited by law from being a
Director Notwithstanding these provisions the
Board has adopted prowvision B 71 of the Code and
therefore all Directors will retire and seek reelection
at the Annual General Meeting on 30 October 2013

Powers of the Directors

Subject to the Company's Articles, the Companies
Acts and any directions given by the Company by
special resolution the business of the Company

15 managed by the Board who may exercise all
powers of the Company, whether relating to the
management of the business of the Company or not

Annual performance evaluation

The Code recommends that the Board should
undertake a formal annual evaluation of its own
performance and that of its committees and
indmidual Directars and that an externally faclitaied
evaluation should be undertaken at least once every
three years An independent externally faciitated
evaluation was undertaken by Condign Board
Consulting twhich has no other connection with the
Company) in the reporting year FY2011/12 For the
year under review the Board conducted an mternal
evaluation of its own performance and that of its
committees and individual Directors led by the
Charrman and assisted by the Company Secretary
Meetings were held between each Director and
the Chairman in which issues and developments
over the year were discussed and performance was
considered by reference to the obiectives of the
Board and its committees The issues raised durnng
this process were discussed by the Board together
The Non-executive Directors, led by the Semor
Independent Non-executive Director also evaluated
the performance of the Chairman and gave ieedback
which was also reflected in the Board discussion
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Corporate Governance continued

Board and committee attendance

The table below sets out the number of pre-scheduled meetings of the Board and its committees and

indnidual attendance by the Directors

Board and committee attendance

Nominations  Audit and Risk  Remuneration
Board Committee Cormrmitiee Commuittee

Total number of scheduled meetings between
1 July 2012 and 30 June 2013 6 2 4 4
Michael Benson 100% 100% - 100%
Mark Coombs ! 100% - - -
Graeme Dell’ 100% - - -
Nick Land 100% 100% 100% 100%
Melda Donnelly? 100% 100% 100% -
Sirmon Fraser? 83% 100% 100% 100%
Charles Quthwarte* 100% - - -
Dame Anne Pringle* 100% - - -

1 Members of executive management sre invited 1o attend Board Comrmittee meetings as required but do not atlend as members

of those committees

2 Melda Donnelly was appointed to the Nominatrons Committee an 31 Qctober 2012
3 Siman Fraser was appointed to the Audit and Risk Remuneratton and Norminations Commuttees on 31 October 2012
4 Charles Quthwaite and Dame Anne Pnngle joined the Board on 19 February 2013 and have attended il Board meetings since that date

The Board believes that following the completion
of the performance evaluation the performance of
the Directors continues to be effective and that they
coninue to demoenstrate commitment to ther roles

Any Directors who are not mermbers of Board
Committees are also invited to attend meetings
of such Committees as necessary

Board committees

The Board has appointed Audit and Risk,
Remuneration and Nomunatuons Committees
to assist in the execution of 1ts duties

All of these committees operate within written terms
of reference, which are reviewed annually The terrms
of reference of the commitiees are reviewed
annually cansistent wath changes in legislation

and best practice

The charman of each commuttee reports regularly
10 the Board

Each of the commuttees 1s authonsed, at the
Cormpany's expense to obtain external legal or other
professional advice to assist (n carmying out 155 duties
Only the members of each commuttee are entitled
to attend 1ts meetings but others such as senior
rmanagement and external advisors may be invited
10 attend as appropriate

Current membershap of the commuttees 1s shown
in the relevant sections below The composition
of these committees 1s reviewed annually, taking
into consideration the recommendations of the
Nominations Committee

Audit and Risk Committee

During the vear under review the Audit and Risk
Committee compnsed the following Non-executive
Directors and was fully compliant with the Code

Nick Land {Chairman)
Melda Donnelly
Simon Fraser

The Board 15 satisfied that for the year under review
and thereafter Nick Land Melda Donnelty and Simon
Fraser had and have recent and relevant commercsal
and financial knowledge and expenence to satisty
the provisions of the Code MNick Land and Melda
Donnelly are Chartered Accountants and Simon
Fraser has previously served as Global Chief
Investment Oflicer with Fidelity International

A report on the activities of the Audit and

Risk Committee 1s set out below The terms

of reference for the committee take into account
the requirements of the Code and are available
for Inspection at the registered office and at the
Annual General Meeting and can also be found on
the Company website at www ashmoregroup com

The terms of reference for the Audit and Risk
Commuttee include

- monitonng the integnity of the financial statements
of the Comipany, any formal announcements
relating o the Company's financial performance
and any significant financial 1ssues and
judgements contained in them

- reviewing the Group's dratt annual financial
statements and intenm results statement pnor to
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discussion and approval by the Board and reviewing
the external auditor’s detalled repons thereon,

- revtewing the external auditor's plan for the audit
of the Group's financial statements recemving and
reviewing confirmations of auditor ndependence
and approving the terms of engagement and
proposed fees for the audit

- making recommendations to the Board for a
rescfution to be put to sharehclders to approve
the re-appointment of the external auditor

- reviewing the level and amount of external auditor
non-audit senvices,

— reviewing the Group’s internal control and nsk
management systems, reporting to the Board
on the results of this review and receving updates
on kay risks and controls

- overseeing and challenging the day-to-day nsk
rmanagement and oversight arrangements of the
executive and the design and execution of stress
and scenano testing,

- overseeing and challenging due ditgence on nsk
1ssues relating to matenal transactions and strategic
proposals that are subject to approval by the Board

- considenng and approving the remit of the nisk
management function and ensuring that it has
adequate independence,

- reviewing the Audit and Risk Committee s terms
of reference, carrying out an annual performance
evaluation exercise and noting the sausfactory
operation of the Committee, and

- reporting to the Board on how st has discharged
its responsibilities

The Audit and Risk Committee has requested and
received reports from management to enable it to
fulfil its duties under its terms of reference

The Audit and Risk Committee also has responsibiity
for rewewing the Company s arrangernents on
whistle-blowang ensufing that approprate
arrangements are in place for employees to be able to
raise, In confidence matters of possible impropriety
with suitabile subsequent follow-up action

The Audit and Risk Committee has the authority to
seak any information 11 requires to perform its duties
fromn any employee of the Company and to cbtain
outstde legal or other independent professional
adwice as appropnate

The number of Audit and Risk Commitiee
meetings and therr attendance by the Directors

are set out In the table on page 42 Representatives
of KPMG Audit Ple, the Group Finance Director,
Group Head of Risk and Group Iniernal Auditor
attend each meeting as a matter of practice and
presentations are made by the executive
management as required

Remuneration Committee

The Group complied dunng the year with the Code
requirement that the Rermuneranon Comrruttee should
consist of at least three independent Non-executive
Directors The Remuneration Committee was chaired
until 10 September 2012 by Jonathan Asquith with
Michael Benson and Nick Land as members, Michael
Benson and Nick Land served on the Remuneration
Comrmitiee throughout the year Nick Land assumed
the role of the Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee on 10 September 2012 and Simon Fraser
joined the Committee on 31 October 2012

A report on the activities of the Remuneration
Commuttee 15 ncuded in the Rernuneration report
on pages 56 10 66 The ierms of reference for the
Remuneration Commuttee take into account the
requirements of the Code and are available for
inspection at the registered office, at the Annual
General Meeting and can alsc be found on the
Cormpany website at www ashmoregroup com

The terms of reference for the Rermuneration
Committee include

— reviewing the ongaing appropriateness ang
relevance of the remuneration policy,

- reviewing the design of all share incentive plans
for approval by the Board and shareholders,

ensurnng that members of the executive
management of the Company are provided with
appropniate incentives to encourage enhanced
performance and that remuneration incentives
are compatible with the Company's nsk policies
angd systems,

~ making recommendations to the Board as
1o the Company’s frarmmework or broad policy for
the remuneration of the Chairman, the Executive
Directors and the Company Secretary and 1o
determine therr total individual remuneration
packages including bonuses incentive payments
and share options or other share awards

- ensunng that a significant proportion of Executive
Directors’ remuneration 1s structured $o as to ink
rewards to corporate and indmwidual performance
and that performance conditions are stretching
and designed to promote the long-term success
ot the Company, and

— ensuning that contractual terms on terminaton
and any payments made, are farr to the indvidual
and the Company, that failure 1s not rewarded and
that the duty to mitigate loss 15 fully recognised

The number of Remuneration Commuttee meetungs
and therr attendance by the Directors are set out In
the table on page 42 In addition and In accordance
with the terms of reference, the members of the
Remuneration Commitiee were also consulted on
a range of issues during the year, Including specific
matters related to recruiiment
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Corporate Governance continued

Nominations Committee

The Nominations Committee comprises four
Non-executive Directors Michael Benson as
Charman Nick Land, Melda Donnelly and Simon
Fraser Michael Benson and Nick Land served

on the Nominations Committee throughout the year
and Melda Dornelly and Simon Fraser joined the
Committee on 31 October 2012

The terms of reference for the Committee take

into account the requirements of the Code and are
avallable for inspection at the registered office and at
the Annual General Meeting and can also be found on
the Company website at www ashmoregroup com

The terms of reference for the Nominations
Commuttee include

— reviewing the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and expenence)
of the Board and its committees,

- reviewing annually the time required from each
Non-executive Director, using performance
evaluation to assess whether the Non-executive
Director 1s giving sufficient commitment to the role

— grving full consideration 1o succession planmng
1n the course ot its work taking into account the
challenges and opportunities facing the Company
and what skills and expertise are needed on the
Board in the future,

~ ensurng that on appointment to the Beard,
Non-executive Directors receive a formal letter of
appointment setting out clearly what 1s expected
of them in terms of uime commitment comrritiee
service and involvement outside Board meetings

During the year the activities of the Neminations
Committee have included reviewing the requirements
for potenual independent Non-executive candidates
for appointment to the Board proposals for
re-election of Directars at the Annual General
Meeting, and reviewing its terms of reference

For the recent Board recruiiments the Nommations
Committee engaged Blackwood Recruitment LLP
who have no connecucn 1o the Group

The number of Nominations Committee meetings
and theirr attendance by the Directors are set out
in the table on page 42

Relations with shareholders

The Company places great Importance on
communication with its investors and aims

to keep shareholders informed by means of regular
communication with institutional shareholders,
analysts and the financial press throughout the year

Annual and intenm reports and trading updates
are widely distributed to other parties who may
have an interest in the Group s performance

These documents are also made availlable on

the Company's website where formal regulatory
information service anncuncements are also posted
The Chief Executive Officer and Group Finance
Chrector make regular reports to the Board on
investor relations and on speaific discussions with
major shareholders and the Board recerves copies
of all research published on the Company

The 2013 Annual General Meeting will be attended
by all Directors and the Chatrmen of the Audit and
Risk, Nominations and Remuneration Committees
will be available to answer questions Private
Investors are encouraged to attend the Annual
General Meeting

The Senior Independent Director 1s available

to shareholders if they have concerns which
contact through the normat channels of Chairman
Chief Executive Officer or Group Finance Director
has falled to resclve or for which such contact

1S inappropriate The Company continues to offer
major shareholders the opportunity to meet any
or all of the Charman, the Senior Independent
Directer and any new Directors

The Group will announce wia a regulatory information
service the number of proxy votes cast an
resolutions at the Annual General Meeting and any
other general meetngs

Internal control and nsk management

In accordance with the principles of the Code, the
Beard 1s ulimately responsible for the Group's nsk
management and internal control systems and for
reviewing ther effectiveness Such systems and their
review are designed to manage rather than eliminate
the nsk of faiure to achieve business objectives,

and can only provide reasonable and nat absglute
assurance against matenal misstatement or [oss

Within the Group's overarching corporate
governance framewark, through which the Board
aims to maintain full and etective control over
appropriate strategic, financial operational and
complance 1ssues, an internal control framework has
been established, against which the Company 1s able
to assess the effectiveness of its nsk management
and internal control systems The Group's system

of intemal control 1s embedded wathin its routine
operations, and a strong control culture 1s combined
with clear management responsibility and
accountabilties for ndividual control The internal
control framework provides an on-going process

for identifying, evaluating and managing the Group’s
principal risks, and has been in place for the year
under review and up 1o the date of approval of the
annual report and accounts The process s regularly
reviewed by the Board, and accords with the
guidance In the document Internal Control Revised
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Guidance for Directors on the Combined Code,
QOctober 2005 [Turnbull Guidance) published
by the Financial Reporting Council

The Executive Directors oversee the key nsks
and controls and the nsk management process
on a day-to-day basis, and have put In place an
organisationat structure with clearly defined lines
of responsibility and delegation of authority

The Group’s Risk and Compliance Committee (RCC)
which meets monthly 1s responsible for maintairing
a sound nsk management and internal control
environment and for assessing the impact of the
Group s ongoing activiies on tts regulatory and
operational exposures The RCC (s chared by the
Group Head of Risk Management and Control - the
other members are the Chief Executive the Group
Finance Director the Group Head of IT Operations
and Performance Managernent, the Group Head

of Compliance the Group Head of Information
Technology the Group Head of Legal and Transaction
Management the Group Head of Finance the Group
Head of Distribution and the Group Head of Internal
Audit Responsibility for nsk identfication 1s shared
amongst these senior management personnel with
each such indmdual being responsible for day-to-day
control of nsk in therr business area

There are established policies and procedures to
enable the Board through 1ts regular meetings to
monitor the effectiveness of the nsk management
and internal control systems which cover all
significant identified internal and external strategic
operational, financial, compliance and other nsks,
ncluding the Group’s ability to comply wath all
applicable laws, regulations and clients’ requirements

The Board recewves reguiar financial and other
managerment information related to the control
of expenditure against budget and the making
of nvestments, and for monitoring the Group's
business and its performance, and regular
compliance and risk reports

The Board has conducted an annual review and
assessment of the effectiveness of the nsk
management and internal control systems, and

has identfied no significant fallings or weaknesses
duning this review In conducting this review, the
Board has considered the penodic reports receved
throughout the year on compliance and nsk matters,
including reports provided by the internal audit
function, and the annual report on risk management
and internal contro! processes from the RCC The
Board 15 satisfied that appropriate planned actions
continue to be effective in improving controls as the
Group develops, and 1ts overall assessment of the
control framework continues to be satisfactory

The main features of the Group s nsk management
and internal control systems are as follows

Policies

— core values and policies togsether compnsing
the Group's high level pnnciples and conitrols,
with which all staff are expectad to comaply,

— manuals of polices and procedures applicable to
all business units, with procedures for reporting
weaknesses and tor monitoning corrective action,

- acode of business conduct with procedures
for reporting comphance therewith, and

— a defined operational framework ang
organisational structure with appropnate
delegation of authonty with accountability that
has regard 1o acceptable levels of nsk

Processes

— aplanming framework 1s maintained, which
incorporates a Board approved strategic plan,
with objectives for each business unit,

- anin-depth annual budget I1s reviewed and
approved by the Board and 1s regularly subject to
update through a formal re-forecasting process,

— regular reviews of the performance of the Company
and its subsidianes are undertaken by semor
management to proactively manage progress
against the delivery of the Group s strategic plan,

— detaled investment reports are prepared and
discussed at each of the subcommittee meetings
of the Group's Investrnent Committee which take
place weekly or monthly depending on investrment
theme, with follow up actions agreed and
implementad within a strict operational framework

- oversight of the valuation methodologres used for
clents’ fund investrents that cannot be readily
externally pnced 1s the responsibility of the Group's
Pricing Methodology and Valuation Committee
{PMVC} which meets monthly to review the
current valuation methodology for each of these
investrments and to propose an updated valuaticn
methadology where appropriate

— quarterly senior management systems and controls
reviews are undertaken by the Group Finance
Director with the Group Head of Compliance and
the Group Head of Risk Managerment and Contral
in which the Chiet Executive Officer participates at
least annually and which are also coordinated and
documented by the Greup Cornpany Secretary
These reviews include evaluation of the potental
impact and Ukelihood of identified nsks and
possible new nsk areas,
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Corporate Governance continued

a matnx of top nsks idenufies key business,
operauonal financial and comphance nsks, and
considers the likelihood of those risks crystalising
and the resuttant impact The inherent nsk within
each business activity has been identified with
the adequacy and mitgating effect of existing
processes peing assessed to determine a current
residual risk level for each such activity On the
basis that further mitigants may be employed over
time, a target residual risk for each actvity after
one to two years has been defined and progress
1o target 1s formally tracked,

key nisk indicator (KR} statistics are reported to and
analysed by the RCC The KRls indicate trends in the
Group s nsk profile, assist in the reduction of errors
and potental financial kosses and seek to prevent
exposure by proactively deating with a potentual nsk
situation before an event actually occurs,

streng financial controfs are maintained 1o ensure
accurate accounting for transactions appropriate
authonsation hmits to contain exposures and
rehiabihiy of data processing and integnty of
information generated,

Board members receve monthly management
information including accounts and other
relevant reports, which highhght actual financial
performance aganst budgetforecast and prior
year penod,

there are well-defined pracedures governing the
appraisal and approval of corporate investments,
including seeding of funds and purchase of own
shares, with detaled investment and divestment
approval procedures, INCOTPoratng approprate
levels of authonty writhin a framewark of set imits,
and regular postnvestment reviews,

oversight and management of the Group’s foreign
currency cash flows and balance sheet exposures
are the responsibility of the FX Management
Committee which determines the appropriate
level of hedging required and appropnate
accounting treatment

the Group has secure information and
communication systems capable of captunng
relevant and up to date information by relevant
personnel with oversight and direction provided
by the Groups IT Steering Group which
mplements the IT sirategy establishing and
overseeing the operation of all IT projects

the Group Compliance function whose
responsibility 15 to ensure that the Group at all
tmes meets its regulatory obligations and to
integrate regulatory complance procedures and
best practices within the Group, undertakes an
or-going compliance Monitoring programme:
covering all the relevant areas of the Group's
operations to seek to identify any breach of
compliance with applicable financial services

regulation which ncludes realume investment
restrictions monitoring of cient mandate
requrrements Results of the comphance
manitonng programme are reported 1o the RCC n
support of the overall nsk management framework

the development ot new products is an important
part of the Group’s business in responding to
chents’ needs and changes in the financial markets
and is the responsibility of the Products Committee
which approves new product launches,

- a Global Investment Performance Standards {GIPS)

Comrnittee which acis as the prmary decision

making body wathin the Group in relation 10 any
changes to the existing set of composites, and
approving the creation of new composites

Verification

the external auditors are engaged 10 express an
opmnion on the annual financial statements the half
year review and alsc independently and objectively
review the approach of management to reporting
operating results and financial condition,

the Board, through the Audit and Risk Commitiee,
receves half-yearly updates from the Group's
external auditor which include any control matters
that have come to thewr attention,

annual control reports are reviewed independently
by the Group’s external auditor pursuant to the
International Standards on Assurance
Engagements 3402 (ISAE 3402),

the internal audit function undertakes a
programme of reviews of systems, processes and
procedures as deterrmined by the Audit and Risk
Committee, reporting the resuits together with
therr advice and recommendations, and assisting
In the presentation of ther findings to the
Committee The internal audit function has been
untih July 2013 prowided under an outsourcing
arrangement by Ernst & Young but since that date
has been internally resourced by the Company

Ashmore has non-majority interests in three joint
ventures/associates which operate nsk management
and internal control systems that are not dealt wath
as part of the Group for the purposes of this
statement These are

Ashmore CCSC Fund Management Company
Limited

Everbrnght Ashmore (Hong Kong )} Lmirted
VTB-Ashmore Capital Holdings Limited

Cofnpany Secretary
9 September 2013
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Audtt and Risk Committee report

The composition and summary terms of reference
of the Audit and Risk Commutiee are set out on
pages 42 and 43

The principal activities of the Audit and Risk
Committee through the year and the manner in which
it discharged its responsibiites, were as follows

Financial statements

The Audit and Risk Cornmittee reviewed the
FY2012/13 Annual Report, Intenm Results
Preliminary Results and reports from the external
auditor, KPMG Audit Plc on the outcome of therr
reviews and audits in 2013

Significant accounting matters

Durning the year the Committee considered key
accounting 1ssues matters and Judgements In
relation to the Group's financial statements and
disclosures relating to

1) The carrying value of goodwill and
intangible assets

As more fully explained in note 15 on page 91

the goodwill balance within the Group relates
principally to the acquisitton of Emerging Markets
Management LLC {(EMM} in May 2011 During the
year ended 30 June 2013 the Comrmttee critically
reviewed the analyses performed by management
on goodwill and intangibles and agreed with the
adjustments made to intangibles and that no
imparment 1o goodwill was necessary

n} Assessment of contingent
consideration in relation to EMM

Ashmore acquired a 62 94% equity stake in EMM

in May 2011 for which inival and future conskleration
was payable under an earnout provision contingent
on the achievement of agreed milestone targets The
Committee has reviewed the accounting valuations
of the contingent consideration and assessed It to
be ni} as measured at 31 May 2013

) The accounting treatment relating to the
acquisition of a minonty interest in China
Following the acquisition of a 43% stake in Ashmore-
CCSC Fund Management based in China, the
Committee considered IAS 28 {Investments in
Associaies and Joint Ventures) and determmed that
the newly formed entity would be treated as a jont
venture using the equity method of accounting

wv) Seed capital investments

The Committee reviewed and considered a report
from managermnent on the change in treatrnent of
seed capital classified as held-forsale Investrnents
as defined by IAS 39 (Financial Instruments
Recogniton and Measurement) Gains and losses
associated with seed capital classified as held for
sale are reflected in the Consolidated Staternent
of Comprehensive Income

v) Share-based payments

It15 the responsibility of the Remuneratton Commuttee
to address, and report upon compensation matters
including share-based payments made to directors
and employees of the Group The Audit and Risk
Committee considers n 1its review of the financial
statements and recerves a report from the external
auditors on the quantification and accounting
treatment related to such payments which are
explaned in note 10 of the accounts

vi) Future IFRS and UK GAAP
developments

The Committee has received a report from
managementi and discussed future accounung
develapmenits likely to affect the presentation
of the Group's financial statements

vit) Revenue recognition

During the year the Committee receved a
management report from the external auditors
regarding the processing of fee rebates and its
freatment on revenue recogniion The method of
acceunting for revenue recognition 1s descrbed more
fully on pages 81 and 83 in the notes to the accounts

vin) Other accounting matters

Durnng the year, the Committee received
communications from management and from
the external auditer on other accounting matters
including tax strategy revenue recognition and
overseas reporting

UK Corporate Govemance Code

Following the earty adoption by the Company

of the revised version of the UK Corporate Governance
Code which applies to financial years commencing
on or after 1 October 2012 the Board requested that
the Committee advise thern on whether It believes
the annual report and accounts, taken as a whole

15 far balanced and understandable and provides the
information necessary for sharehclders to assess the
Company's parformance, business model and strategy

Extemal auditor

The external auditors attend all meeungs of the
Committee It s the responsibility of the Committee
to monitor the performance objectivity and
independence of the external auditor The Committes
discusses and agrees the scope of the audit plan

for the full year and the review plan for the interim
statement with the auditors

The external auditors provide reports at each
Commuitee meeting on topics such as the
control environment  key accounting matters and
mandatory communications The Commitiee also
receved a comprehensive preseniation from the
auditor demonstrating ta 1its satisfaction how their
indlependence and objectvity 1s maintained when
prowviding noraudii services

mManaA0 diBalens

soueLuiollag ‘

foUeLIaA0G) ‘

SIUBLLSLELS [BIDUBUIY

Ashmore Group plc | Annual Report and Accounts 2013

47



Audit and Risk Commuttee report continued

The Commutiee has agreed the types of permitted
and non-permitted non-audit services and those
which require exphait prior approval All contracts
for non-audit services In excess of £25,000 must
be notified to the Chairman of the Audit and Risk
Committee and approved by him

Duning the year the value of non-audit services
previded by KPMG amounted to £0 6 milion
{FY2011/12 £0 5 milton) Whilst non-audit services

as a proportion of audit services amount to
approximately 1209%, the overall quantum of non-audnt
semces 15 not considered to be rmatenal given that
Ashmore operates within a highly regulated market
and that a significant proportion of the non-audit
semices provided relate to the following matiers

— rgpartung on our half-year financial statemenits,

— providing regular assurance reparts to the FCA
(as the regulator of Ashrmore Investment
Management Limted)

- the provision of tax compliance services,

- actng as reporting accountant in appropriate
crrcumstances provided there 1s no element
of valuation work involved,

- reportuing on iniernal controls as required under
ISAE 3402 pursuant to investment management
industry standards,

- auditing the controls and procedures emplayed by
the Company relating to the production of investment
performance figures over ane three and five year
penads to conform to the investment management
industry’s Glebal Investment Performance Standards

The assurance provided by the Group auditor on the
tems listed above are considered by the Committee
to be strictly necessary In the interests of the business
and, by therr nature, these seraces could not easily

be provided by another professional audiung firm

The provision of tax adwisory services due diigence/
transaction senices and kiigation senaces may be
permitted with the Committee’s prior approval The
provision of internat audit services valuation work and
any other activity that may give nse 1o any pessibility of
self-review are not permitted under any circumstance
Duning the year there were nc circumstances where
KPMG Audit Plc was engaged to provide serices
which rrught have led 1o a conflict ot interests

From time to time during the year the Nonexecutives
met wath the external and iniernal audiors without
the Executive Directors being present so as to provide
a forurn to raise any matters of concern in confidence
The Committee alsc received a report from the
independent KPMG team responsible for the audits
of the Ashmore publicly traded funds

KPMG have acted as the auditor to the Company since
the IPO in October 2006 and the lead audit partner
rotates every five years to assure independence The

Cormmittee recognises the new requirement in the Code
that the external audit contract be put out to tender at
least every ten years The Committee continues to be
satisfied with the work of KPMG and that they continue
to reman objectve and independent The Committee has
therefore recommended to the Board that a resolution be
put to shareholders for the re-appointment of the auditor
and therr remuneraticn and terms of engagement, at the
Annual General Mesting of the Company

Internal controls and nsk management

The Group Head of Risk Management and Control
attends each meeung of the Committee and provides
reports 10 each These reports have addressed a
number of nsk related topics and have demonstrated
how the output of the different Invesiment Risk &
Compliance and Pricing and Valuanon Methodslogy
Commuttee discussions throughout the penod have
been effective in highlighting, tracking and contributing
towards managing key market, counterparty nsk and
operational nsk In particular in relation to operatonal
rsk the Committee has also reviewed and discussed
the Group's Top Risk Matrix which continues tc serve
as an effectve tool to highlight and monitor the principal
nsks of the Group and its continued evoluuion, and
reflects changes in the business profile of the Group
and the corresponding impact to internal controls and
related processes

The Committee also recerved an intenm report on, and
conducted a review and evaluation of the system of
internal controls and risk management operated within
the Company pursuant to the Financial Reporting Counail
guidance Internal Controls Revised Guidance for
Directors on the Combined Cade' (formerty the Turnbuil
Gudance) prior to review by the Board

Intemal audit

Ernst & Young have acted as internal auditor since

1 July 2009 reporting directly to the Cormmittee The
Commuittee has recewved reports on its findings and
programme of reviews at each of #s meetings during
the course of the year Dunng the year the Committee
decded to maove to an internally resourced Internal
Audit function and this was completed i July 2013
with a handover process and timetable agreed with
Ernst & Young

Audit and Risk Committee effectiveness

The members of the Committee conducted a review
of its effectiveness and concluded that 1t was working
effectvely tn FY2011/12 an ndependently faciitated
review of the effectiveness of the Board, its
Committees and the Directors was conducted in

W&on 55 2 of Bhe Code

Nick Land
Chairman of the Audit and Risk Committee

9 September 2013
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Statement of Directors’ responsibilities

The Directors are responsible for prepanng the
Annual Report and the Group and pareni company
financial statements in accordance wath applicable
law and regulations

Company law requires the Directors to prepare
Group and parent company financial statements

for each financial year Under that law they are
required to prepare the Group financial statements

in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU and
applicable law and have elected to prepare the parent
company financial statements on the same basis

Under company iaw the Directors must not approve
the financial staternants unless they are satisfied
that they give a true and far view of the state of
affairs of the Group and parent comparny and of therr
profit and loss for that penod In prepanng each of
the Group and parent company financial statemenis
the Directors are required to

- select surtable accounting policies and then apply
them consistently,

- make judgemenits and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent

- state whether they have been prepared in
accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU and

- prepare the financial staterments on the going
concern basis unless 1t 15 inappropriate 1o presume
that the Group and the parent company will
continue in business

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate
accounting records that are sufficient 10 show and
explain the parent company’s transactions and
disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the
financial position of the parent company and enablg
them to ensure that its financial statements comply
with the Companies Act 2006 They have general
responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably
open 10 them to safeguard the assets of the

Group and 1¢ prevent and detect fraud and

other irregulariies

Under applicable law and regulations the Directors
are also responsible for prepanng a Directors report
Directors’ remuneration report and corporate
governance statement that comply with that law
and those regulations

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance
and integnity of the corporate and financial
information included on the Company s website
Legislation in the UK goverrung the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements may differ
from legislauon in other jurnisdictions

Responsibility statement of the Directors
in respect of the annual financial report

We confirm that 10 the best of our knowledge

- The financial statements, prepared In accordance
with the apphcable set of accounting standards
give a true and farr view of the assets, labilites,
financial posiion and profit or loss of the Company
and the undertakings included in the consolidaton
taken as a whole

- The annual report and financial statements taken
as a whole, provides the information necessary
10 assess the Company's performance business
model and strategy and 1s fair balanced and
understandable, and

- The Directors’ report includes a far review of the
development and performance of the business
and the position of the issuer and the undertakings
included in the consoldation taken as a whole,
together with a description of the principal nsks
and uncertainties that they face

Michael Behson
Chairman

9 September 2013
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Directors’ report

The Directors present therr Annual Repont and
financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2013

The financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Intematicnal Financial Reporting
Standards as adopted by the EU (IFRS)

Pnncipal activity and business review

The pnncipal actvity of the Group 1s the prowvision

of Investment management services The Company
1S required to set out In this report a fair review of
the business of the Group duning the financial year
ended 30 June 2013 and of the posttion of the Group
at the end of that financial year and a description of
the principal nsks and uncertainties facing the Group
{referred to as the business review) The information
that fulfils the requirements of the business review
can be found in the financial and operational
highhghts on page 2 the Chief Executive Officer’s
report on pages 6 1o 9, the Business review on
pages 22 to 29 and the Corporate gaovernance repon
on pages 40 to 46

The principal nsks facing the business are detailed
on pages 32 and 33 and in the Corporate governance
report on pages 40 to 46

Results and dwvidends

The results of the Group for the year are set out
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
Income on page 70

The Directors recornmend a final dividend of

1175 pence per share (2012 1075 pence) which
together with the intenm dividend of 4 35 pence per
share (2012 4 25 pence) already declared, makes a
total for the year ended 30 June 2013 of 16 10 pence
per share (2012 1500 pence} Detalls of the intenm
dmvidend payment are set out in note 14 to the
financial statements

Subject to approval at the Annual General Meeting,
the final dwdend will be paid on 6 December 2013
to shareholders on the register on 8 Novernber 2013
{ex-dividend date betng 6 November 2013)

Related party transactions
Details of related party transactions are set out
n noie 29 to the financial statements

Post-balance sheet events

As set out in note 31 to the financial statements
there were no post-balance sheet events that
required adjustrment or disclosure herein

Directors

The members of the Board together with biographical
detalls are shown on page 39 Charles Quthwaite
and Dame Anne Pringle were appointed to the Board
on 19 February 2013 All other members of the Board
served as Directors throughout the year

Detalls of the service contracts of the current
Directors are shown in the Remuneration report
on page 58

Dertaifs of the constitution and pawers of the Board
and 1ts committees are set out in the Corparate
governance report on pages 40 to 46 The Corporate
governance repart also summarises the Company’s
rules concerning appaintment and replacement

of Directors

Directors' conflicts of interests

Since October 2008 the Companies Act 2006

has imposed upon Directors a new statutory duty
to avoid unauthonsed conflicts of Interest with the
Company The Company has adopted revisions to
its Articles of Associaton which enable Directors to
approve conflicts of interest and which also include
other conflict of interest provisions The Company
has implemented processes to identify potental
and actual conflicts of interest Such conflicts are
then considered for approval by the Board, subjact,
where necessary 1o apprapraie condrions

Executive Directors do not presently hold any
external appointents with any non-Ashmore
related companies

Directors’ share interests

The interests of Directors in the Company's shares
are shown on page 64 within the remuneration report

Significant agreements with provisions
apphcable to a change in control of
the Company

Save as descrnibed, there are no agreements in place
applicable to a change in control of the Company

Resclution 18 in the Notice of Annual General
Meeting will seek approval from shareho'ders to

a waiver of the provisions of Rule 9 of the Takeover
Code in respect of the gbligation that could anse

far Mark Coombs to make a mandatery offer for the
Company in the event that the Company exercises
the authonty to make market purchases of its own
shares Further details are contained in the separate
Notice of AGM
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Substantial shareholdings {disclosed in accordance with DTR5)

Number of Number of

voting nghts voting rights
disclosed as at Pereentage disclosed asat  Percentage
30 June 2013 interests® 9 Septernber 2013 Interests?
Jerome Paul Booth 48,355,024 683 48 365 024 683

Carey Pensions and Benefits Limited as Trustees

of the Ashmore 2004 Employee Benefit Trust' 35607090 489 34 985 224 494
Highfields Capital Management LP 22 291 471 324 22,291,471 324
Schroders plc - - 35641098 504

1 In addition to the interests in the Company’s ordinary sheres referred to above each Director and semor manager whe 15 an
employee of the Group has an interestin the Company's ordinary shares held by Carey Pensions and Benefits Limited under

the terms of the Ashmore 2004 Employee Benefit Trust

[ARNN)

(201 707916 106 shares in issue which excluded 5 368 331in Treasury)

Restrictions on transfer of shares

On 31 May 2011 the Company completed the
acquisition of Emerging Markets Management LLC
{now renamed Ashmore Equites Investment
Management (US) LLC {("AEIMUS"}} A proportion
of the initial and earnout consideration paid and

to be pad to the selling shareholders of AEIMUS 1s
1n Ashmore Group plc shares which are subject to
certain restnictions on sale for a peniod of up to three
years from erther completion or the date of earnout

Dealings in the Company s ordinary shares by
persans discharging managenal responsibilities
emplayees of the Company and 1n each case,
their connected persons, are subject to the Group’s
Dealing Code which adopts the Model Code of the
Listing Rules contained in the Financial Services
Authonty's Handbock

Certain restrictions, customary for a isted company
apply to transfers of shares in the Company

The Board may, at its absolute discretion dechne
to register any transfer of a share whichis not fulty
paid or where there are more than four joint holders

In the case of ceruficated shares registration of a
transfer may also be refused where (1) the instrument
of transfer 1s not duly stamped {unless exempt from
stamping), (1) insufficient evidence of title 1s
produced inrespect of a transfer or () the transferor
has been served with a restriction notce (as defined
in the Aricles) after fallure to prowide the Company
with information concerning interests in those shares
required ta be provided under the Companies Acts,
unless the transfer 15 shown to the Board to be
pursuant to an arm’s length sale Registration of

a transfer of shares may be refused in the case

of uncertificated shares in the circumstances set

out In the Unceruificated Secunties Regulations

(as defined in the Articles)

The shareholding ¢f Mr Mark Coombs a Director and substantal shareholder s disclosed separately on page 64
Percentage nterests are based upon 707372 473 shares in1ssue (which excludes 5,368 331 shares held in Treasury)

Substantial shareholdings

The Company has been notified of the following
significant interests {over 3% In accordance with
the Financial Conduct Authority s { FCA ) Disclosure
and Transparency Rules {other than those of the
Directors wiich are disclosed separately on page 66)
in the Company’s ordinary shares of 0 01 pence each
as set outn the table below

Share capital

The Company has a single class of share capital
which 1s divided into ordinary shares of 0 01 pence
each of which rank pan passu in respect of
participation and voting nghts The shares are in
registered form The 1ssued share capnial of the
Company at 30 June 2013 is 712,740,804 shares
In 1ssue (of which 5,368,331 shares are held

1N Treasury}

Details of the structure of and changes in share capital
are set out N note 23 1o the financial statemenis

Restnctions on voting nghts

A member shall not be entitled to voie at any general
meeting or ¢lass meeting tn respect of any share held
by bum if any call or other sum then payable by hirm in
respect of that share remains unpaid or if a member
has been served with a restriction nouce (as defined
In the Articles) atter falure to prowide the Company
with information concerming Interests I those shares
required to be provided under the Companies Acts
Votes may be exeraised in person or by proxy The
Articles currently prowide a deadline for submission
of proxy forms of 48 hours before the meeting
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Directors’ report continued

Purchase of own shares

In the year under review the Company did

not purchase any of its own shares for treasury
The Company 15 until the date of the next Annuat
General Meeting, generally and unconditionally
authenised to buy back up to 70,666,510 of its own
1ssued shares The Company retains a total of
5,368,331 shares for Treasury which were acquired
at an average price of 129 pence per share The
Company Is seeking a renewal of this authonty

at the 2013 Annual General Meeting

Power to 1ssue and allot shares

The Directors are generally and unconditionally
authonsed to allot unissued shares in the Company
up to & maximum norninal amount of £23 579 08
land £47158 18 in connection with an offer by way
of a rights 1s5ug)

A further authonty has been granted to the
Directors to allot the Company's shares for cash,
up to a maximum norminal amount of £3,556 58,
without regard to the pre-emption provisions of the
Comparies Acts No such shares have been 1ssued
or allotted under these authonties, nor Is there any
current intertion to do so, other than to satisfy
outstanding oblhgations under the employee share
schemes where necessary

These authorities are vahd untl the date of the
next Annual General Meeting A resolution for
the renewal of such authonties will be proposed
at the 2013 Annual General Meeating

Employees

Detalls of the Company’s employrnent pracuces
(including the employment of disabled persons)
can be found in the CSR Report on pages 34 to 38

Carey Pensions and Benefits Lirmited as trustee

of the Ashmore 2004 Employee Benefit Trust (EBT)
has discretion as tc the exercise of voting rights
aver shares which 1t holds in respect of unallocated
shares namely those shares in which no employee
beneficial Interests exist The current arrangement
15 that the EBT will consider a recommendationis)
before voiing such shares at a general meeting of
the Company, subject to an overnding duty to actin
the interests of the class of beneficianes of the EBT

Comorate govemance

The Compary 1s govermed according to the
applicable provisions of company law and by

the Company's Arucles As a isted company the
Company must also comply with the Listing Rules
and the Disclosure and Transparency Rules issued by
the United Kingdom Listing Authonty (UKLA] Listed
companies are expected to comply as far as possible
with the Financial Reporting Council’s UK Corporate
Governance Code, and 1o state how its principles
have been applied A report on corporate governance
and comphance with the provisions of the Code 1s
set out on pages 40 to 46

Board diversity

The Board has noted the recommendations

of the Davies Report 1ssued in February 2011 relating
to Board diversity The Nominations Committee
considers diversity Including the balance of skills,
expernence gender and nationality, amongst many
other factors when reviewing the appointment of
new Directors but does not consider it appropnate

to establish targets or quotas in this regard The Board
currently consists of two executive and siIx non-
executve directors of whom two are women thereby
constituting 25% female representation

The Nominatiens Committee may from time to tme
engage the services of an external search consultant
for the purpose of seeking naw candidates for Board
membership, conditional upon such consultant
having no connection to the Company

Chantable and political contributions

Dunng the year the Group made chartable
donations of £0 1 miflion (FY2011/2012 £0 1 muillion)
The work of the Ashmore Foundation 1s descnbed
in the corporate social responsibility section of this
report on page 36 It s the Group’s policy not 1o
make contributions for political purposes

Creditor payment policy

The Group s policy and practice n the UK 1s 10
follow its suppliers terms of payment and to make
payment in accordance with those terms subject

to receipt of satusfactory invoicing Unless otherwise
agreed payments to creditors are made within

30 days of recept of an invoice At 30 June 2013

the amount owed to the Group's trade creditors in
the UK represented approximately 26 days average
purchases from suppliers {FY2011/12 30 days)
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Auditors and the disclosure
of information to auditors

The Drrectors who held office at the date of approval
of this Directors’ report confirm that, so far as they
are each aware, there 15 no relevant audit iInformation
of which the Company’s auditors are unaware and
each Director has taken all the steps that they ought
to have taken as Directors to make himself or herself
aware of any relevant audit information and 1o
establish that the Company s auditors are aware

of that mformation

Resolutions will be proposed at the Annual General
Meeting to reappoint KPMG Audit Plc as auditor
and 10 authonise the Directors 10 agree their
remuneration Nate 11 ta the financial statements
sets out details of the auditor's remuneration

2013 Annua! General Meeting

The 2013 Annual General Meeting of the Company
will be held at 12 00 noon on Wednesday 30 October
2013 at Kingsway Hall Hotel 66 Great Queen Street,
LondonWC2B 5BX Details of the resolutions to he
proposed at the Annual General Meeting are given

in the separate circular and notice of meeting

Going concern

The Company and Group have considerable

financial resources and the Directors believe that
both are well placed to manage therr business risks
successfully Further information regarding the
Group's business activities together with the factors
likely to affect its future development performance
and posttion 1s set out on pages 20 1o 33

After making enguines, the Directors are satisfied
that the Company and the Group have adequate
resources to continue 1o operate for the foreseeable
future and confirm that the Company and the Group
are going concerns For this reason they continue

to adopt the going concern basis in prepanng these
financial statements

Companies Act 2006

This Darectors' report on pages 50 to 53 inclusive
has been drawn up and presented in accordance
wath and in rehance on English company law and
the liabilities of the Directers N connection with
that report shall be subject to the mitations and
restncuons provided by such law

Retferences in this Directers’ report to the financial
highlights, the Business review, the Carporate
governance report and the Remuneration report
are deemed to be included by reference in this
Directors report

igned on 1ts behalf by

Cérmpany Secretary
2 September 2013
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Remuneration repont

Remuneration Committee Chairman’s summary statement
I am pleased to present the Remuneration report for the year to 30 June 2013

As shareholders will be aware, Ashmore has a 30 June year end, and as a result
1s not required to comply with the new regulations governing disclosure of
Directors’ rermuneration untl 2014 However, the Remuneration Committee has
chosen to present this year's report in accordance with the disclosure
requirements under the new regulations

Ashmore's successful team-based approach to investment management i1s well
supported by our Remuneration Policy, Executive Directors, members of the
investment team, and indeed ali other employees, participate s a single capped
incentive poo! and all employees are long-term shareholders in the business
Ashmore's Remuneration Policy has remained unchanged since the listing of the
business in 2006, and has always been closely aligned to the interests of both
clients and shareholders The policy includes

» A capped basic salary, at £100,000 for Executive Directors, to contan the fixed
cost base,

s A cap on the total vanable compensation available for all employees as a
percentage of profits, which has yet to be fully utilised, and,

» A deferral for five years of a substantial portion of vanable compensation into
Company shares (or equivalent), which, in the case of Executive Directors are
also subject to additional performance condiions measured over five years

As described in detail in other sections of the Annual Report, Ashmore has made
substantial progress during the year in building a more diversified business, with
sohid performance across the Group AuM increased by 22% to US$774 billion,
and despite tougher market conditions towards the year end, investment
performance remains very good with 92% of AuM outperforming benchmarks
over three years The combination of these results has led to sohd financial
performance, with an EBITDA margin of 71% and profit before tax increasing by
6% to £2576 million We are also continuing to make progress in developing our
support functions, although there 1s still more to do in this area Notwithstanding
the progress made over the year, there 1s much to do to capture the diverse
growth opportunities presented by Emerging Markets

This performance 1s reflected in the vanable compensation received by employees
including the Executive Directors for the year under review, with vanable
compensation as a percentage of earnings before vanable compensation, interest
and tax {VC/EBVCIT) being 20% (FY 2011/12 18%)

Annual bonuses for Executive Directors were on average 45% higher than in the
prior year

As In previous years, there have been no increases in base salary for the two
Executive Directors — they remain capped at £100,000

The Directors Remuneration Policy for the forthcoming year 1s set out in the first
section of the report

The Commuittee woutd welcome your support for our Remuneration report

Nick Land
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
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Directors Remuneration Policy

This section of the Remuneration report has

been prepared in accordance with Part 4 of The
Large and Medium-sized Companies and Groups
{Accounts and Reports) (Amendment} Regulations
2013 It sets out the Remuneration Policy for the
Company The Policy has been developed taking
Into account the principles of the UK Corporate
Governance Code 2012 and shareholders’ executive
remuneration guidelines The Policy Report 1s not
required to be subject te a binding shareholder
vote in 2013, the first binding vote on Ashmore’s
remuneraton policy will take place in 2014

Policy overview

The Remuneration Committee (the Committee)
determines and agrees with the Board, the
Company’s policy on the remuneration of the
Board Charrman Executive Directors and other
members of executive management including
employees designated as Code Staff under the
FCAs Remunerauon Code The Committee s terms
of reference are avallable on the Cornpany s website

In determining the Remuneration Folicy, the
Committee takes into account the following

— the need to attract, retam and motivate talented
Executive Directars and senior management

- consistency with the remuneraticn approach
applied to Ashmore employees as a whole

— external compansons to examine current markst
trends and practices and equivalent roles in
similar companies taking into account therr size,
husiness complexity, mternational scope and
relative performance,

- the requirements of the Remuneration Code
of the UK financial services regulator

How the views of shareholders are taken
into account

The Committee regularly compares the Company s
Remuneration Policy with shareholder guidelines
and 1akes account of the results of shareholder votes
Qn remuneration

If any matenal changes 10 the Remuneraticn Policy
are contemplated, the Committee chairman consults
with major shareholders about these in advance

Detalls of votes cast for and against the resclution
to approve last year s Remuneration report are
provided in the annual report on remuneration
section of this report

Considerations elsewhere in the company

The Company applies a consistent remuneration
philosophy for employees at all levels

The cap on base salary means that Executive
Directors’ base salaries are set at the same level as
other senior investment and professional employees
in the Company and the base salary range from
lowest 10 highest in the Campany i1s considerably
narrower than the market norm

All employees are eligible for a performance-related
annual bonus, and the principle of bonus deferral
into Company shares or equivalent applies to annual
bonuses for all employees who have at leasi one
full year's service

Rates of pension contnbution and fringe benefit
Provisions are consistent between executives and
other employees within each country where the
Company operates

The Company does not operate formal employee
consultation on remuneration However employees
are able 10 provide direct feedback on Remuneration
Policy to their ine managers or the Human
Resources depariment The Committee monitors
the eflectiveness of the Company's Remuneration
Policy in recruiting retaining engaging and
motivating employees and receives reports from
the Chief Executive Otficer on how the Company's
remuneration policies are viewed by employees
and whether they are meeting business needs

The Committee does not seek to apply fixed ratios
between the total remuneration levels of different
roles in the Company as thus woukd prevent it from
recruiting and retaining the necessary talentin a
highly-competitive employrment market However,
the base salary muluple between highest and lowest
paxd UK-based employee in the Company 1s less
than 4x (pre-tax)

Future policy table

The table overleaf sumranses the key aspects
of the Company s Remuneration Policy for
Executive Directors effective from 1 July 2013
This policy rermains unchanged from the year
ended 30 June 2013
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Directors Remuneration Policy continued

Figure 1

Remuneration Policy (the Policy) for Executive Directors

Purpose and

hink to short and Operation, performance measures Maximum
Element long-term strategy  and penods, deferral and clawback opportunity
Base salary Provides atevel of fixed  Base salanes are capped The current cap
{Fixed pay) remuneration sufficient 15 £100 000

to permit a zero bonus
payment should that
be appropriate The cap
on base salary helps to
contain fixed costs

The cap 1s reviewed
penodically, the Policy
permits the cap to be
changed If this i1s deemed
necessary 10 meet
business, legislative or
regulatory requirements

Frnnge benehts
(Feced pay)

Provide costeffective
benefits to support the
wellbeing of employees

The Company currently prowvides fringe benefits such
as medical msurance and life insurance In the event of
relocation of an executive, the Company could consider
appropriate relocation assistance Specific benefits
provision may be subject to minor change from tirme

to tme, within this policy

Frninge benefits are not
subject 10 a specific cap
but represent only a small
percentage of total
remuneration

Pension
(Fixed pay}

Provides a basic level of
Company contnbution
which employees can
supplement with ther
contributions

Company contributions are made, normally on a defined
contnbution basis either 1o a pension plan or in the form
of an equivalent cash allowance

The current level of
Company contrbution
15 7% of base salary
The contnbution level
15 reviewed penodically,
the Policy permits the
contribution rate o be
amended If necessary

Vanable
compensation

(Discretionary)

Rewards performance
and aligns executives
closely with other
shareholders

Executive Directors are considered each year for a
discretionary vanable pay award1 depending on personal
and Company performance by applying a range of

performance indicators such as growth in AuM, Investment

performance profits and strategic and gperauonal
achievements The varable pay award compnses a cash
borus {part of which may be voluntanly deferred) and a

long-term incentive in the form of both a resincted share

award and a matching share award on any voluntanty
deferred cash bonus

1 Cash bonus {80% of total award}
The executive may voluntanly commute up to half
the cash bonus in return for the same value In

a Bonus Shares award {or phantom equivalent) deferred

for five years The deferred shares are eligible for
matching shares subject to performance conditions
(see 3 opposite)

1 Executives may request to wave any pertion of therr total award and the Commuttee will then consider a request from the executive for an appropnate equivalent
donation to a registered chanty or charties
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Purpose and
hink to short and Operation, performance measures Maximum
Element long-term strategy  and periods, deferral and clawback opportunity
Variable Rewards performance Long-term incentives under The Company Executive The aggregate variable
compensation and aligns executives Omnibus Incentive Plan - {Omnibus Plan} caompensation poof for
continued Clr?;elr‘: "l':;m other 2 Restricted shares award (40% of total award) al emfloyees |nc|ucgng
(Discreuonary) sharenclcers This 1s compulsonly deferred into Company shares EXECUTIVES IS Cappe

{or phantom equivalent) for a penod of five years
This deferred portion (s subject to performance
condiions on vesting and does not qualfy for
matching The Policy permits the Commuttee to

sei the performance conditions for each award

The performance condition for the most recent award
was relative tota! shareholder return (TSR) measured
against an asset management peer group measured
over five years Zero vests below median TSR 25%
of the award vests at median, 100% vests at upper
quartle (straight-ine proporticnate vesung betweaen
median and upper quartle)

3 Matching shares awarded on the voluntanly commuted

cash bonus {from 1 above)
Matching 1s provided on the voluntarly commuted
cash bonus, subject to the same perfermance condition

as that descnbed in 2 above The maximum match used

to date on any award made under the current policy
was one-forone the policy permits the matching levei
10 be changed for future awards but not to exceed
three-forone

Dmvidends or dividend equivalents on the total number
of Restnicted Matching and Bonus share {or phantom
equivalent) awards will be accrued and paid out at the
tme the award vests and to the extent of vesting

For awards made pnior 10 2013 the dividend or dwdend
equivalent payments are made on shares in full under
previous commitments made to partcipants this policy
was changed by the committee with effect from awards
made i 2013

In additon 1o the TSR conditton described above,
‘claw-back’ can be applied to the long-term incentive
components durning the five-year deferral penod f
performance has been matenally misstated or there
1S gross misconduct

The Remuneration Policy permits the award of deferred
remuneration in alternative forms such as share
options although none has been granted in recent
years and to vary the percentage spht of award
between cash and share awards to meet business,
legislative or regulatory requirements

currently at 25% of
earnings before vanable
compensaton interest

and tax (EBVCIT) The policy
permits the Commitiee

to vary this cap If necessary
ta meet business needs

The policy 1s not to

cap mdvidual vanable
compensation awards
{other than indirectly
through the 1mpact of
the aggregate pool cap)
as this 1s not market
practice for most of the
Company's peer group
and would make the
Company uncompetitive

The high proportion ot
variable compensation
deferral with vesting

after five years and subject
to on-going performance
conditions, encourages

a prudent approach 1o nisk
management, 1n support
of the Company's nsk and
compliance controls
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Directors Remuneration Policy continued

Differences in Remuneration Policy for Executive
Directors compared to other employees

The Remuneration Policy for the Executive Directors I1s generally
consistent with that for employees across the Company as a
whole However, there are some differences which the Committee
believes are necessary to reflect the different responsibilities of
employees across the Company Below executive director level,
whilst the same deferral policy apphes, the deferred portion of

the variable pay award and any matching shares on the voluntarily
commuted cash bonus are not subject to the relauve TSR
performance condition

Extemal Non-executive Director positions

Executive direciors are permitted to serve as Non-executive
Directors of other companies where there is no competition
with the Company's business actviies and where these duties
do not interfere with the indvidual s ability to perform his duties
for the Company Neither of the Executive Directors currently
has such appointments

Where an outside appointment 18 accepted in furtherance

of the Company’s business, any fees received are remitied

1o the Company If the appointment 1s not connected 1o the
Company s business the Executive Director 1s entitled 1o retain
any iees receved

Approach to remuneration for new executive
director appointments

The remuneration package for an externally recruited new
executive director would be set in accordance with the terms
and maximum levels of the Company's approved remuneration
policy in force at the tme of appointment

In additon the Committee may ofter additional cash and/for
share-based elements when 1t considers these to be in the
best interests of the Company {and therefore sharehoiders)

In considenng any such payments the Committee would take
account of remuneration relinguished when leaving the former
employer and the nature vesting dates and any performance
requirements attached to the relinquished remuneration
Sharehaolders will be informed of any such payments at the
time of appointment

For an internal appointment any vanable pay element awarded

in respect of the prior role may be allowed to pay out according o
its terms adjusted as relevant to take into account the appointrent
In addition any other ongeing remuneration obligations existing
prior to appointment may continue provided that they are put

to shareholders for approval at the earliest opportunity

For external and internal appointments, the Company may
meet certan relocation expenses as appropriate

Service contracts and loss of office payment policy

Service contracts normally continue untl the director’s agreed
retrement date or such other date as the parties agree The service
contracts contain provision for early termination Notice periods are
Iirnited to 12 months by ether party Service agreements contamn
no contractual entitlement to receive variable pay participation

In these arrangements Is at the Committee’s discretion

If the employing company terminates the employment of an
executive director without gving the peniod of notice required
under the contract, the executive director would be entitled

to ¢laim recompense for up to one year's remuneration subject
to consideration of the director's obligation to mitigate the loss
Such recompense is expected to be Imited to base salary due
for any unexpired notice penod, any amount assessed by the
Commitiee as represenung the value of other contractual benefits,
and pension, which would have been received dunng the penod
In the event of a change of control of the Company there 1s no
enhancement 1o these terms

In surnmary the contractual provisions are as follows

Provision Detaled terms

Notice penod 12 months

Termunation payment in the Base salary plus value of benefits
event of terrination by the (including pension) paid monthly

Company without due notice and subject to mitigatien
Change of contral

Same terms as above
on termination

Any outstanding share-based entitlements granted 10 an
executive director under the Company s share plans wall

be determined based on the relevant plan rules The default
treatment 1S that any outstanding awards lapse on cessation
of employment However In certain prescribed crcumstances
such as death disability retirerment or other circumstances
at the discretion of the Commuttee {taking into account the
individual s performance and the reasons for their departure)
good leaver status can be appled

An Executive Director’s service contract may be terminated without
nottce and without any further payrment or compensation except
for sums accrued up to the date of termination on the occurrence
of certain events such as gross rmisconduct

Legacy arrangements

For the avoidance of doubt, this Policy report includes autharity

for the Company to honour any comrmitments entered Into

with current or former directors that have been disclosed to
sharegholders in previous Reémuneration reports Details of any
payments to former directors will be set out in the iImplementation
section of this report as they arnise

Reward scenartos

The Company’s Folicy results in the majonty of the remuneration
recaved by the Executive Directors being dependent on
Company performance

As noted earlier, the policy 15 not to cap indvidual awards but
rather the aggregate pocl As such 1115 not possible 10 demonstrate
mimimum, target and maximum remuneration levels In lieu of this
Figure 2 llustrates the mimimum (fixed} rernuneration, and provides
an indication of the potential range of total remuneration using the
highest and lowest vanable pay awards in a rolling five-year penod
and assuming full vesting, five years later, of the long-term
incentive components based on upper quarule TSR
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Figure 2

Executive Director total remuneration at different levels of performance (£'000)

CEQ

Foeediminimum

Lowest
recel in 5 year
rolling panod

Highest pay
recened In G year
rolling penod

GFD ]
Frcad/minimum

Lowest pay
racoved in 5 year
raling pencd

Highest pay
recenvod In 5 year
raling penod

o £1000 £2 000

[ Base salary {] Cash bonus

£4 000

™ Benefits
T Pension

{ ] Share banus
lface value using share price at grant}

{face value using share prce at grant)

Figure 3

[J LTI Restricted Shares and Matching awards

£5000 £6 000 £7 000

Fees policy for the Board Chairrman and other Non-executive Directors

Elernent Purpose and link to strategy

Operation Maximum

To pay an al-nclusive basic
fee that takes account of
the role and responsibilities

Board Charrman fee

The Board Chairman 1s paid a single fee for

all his responsibilities The leve! of the fee s
reviewed perodically by the Committee, with
reference to market levels in comparably sized
FTSE companies and a recommendation 15
then made to the Board (without the Chairman
being present)

The current fee for the Chairman 1s
£150,000 but1s subject to review
penodically under this Policy

Non-executive
Director fees

To pay an all-inclusive basic
tee that takes account of
the role and responsibilities

The Non-executives are paid a single inclusive
basic fee There are no supplements for
Comnittee Charrmanships or memberships

The fee levels are reviewed pencdically by the under this Policy

Chairman and Executive Directors

The current fee for Non-executive
Directors 1s £60,000 butis
subject to review penodically

Nornrexecutive Directors are engaged under letters of appaintment
and they do not have contracts of service They are appointed for

an initial three-year period, subject to annual shareholder re-election
Therr continued engagement 1s subject to the regurements of the
Company’s Articles relating to the relirement of directors by rotation
The letters of appointment are available for inspection at the
Company s registered office during normal business hours

There 1s an aggregate cap on fees for the Chairman and
Non-executive Directors which 1s currently set at £500,000

As a result of the increased number of Non-executive Directors
on the board 1t 1s the Company's intention to increase this cap
1o £750 000 at the 2013 AGM

Comphance with the Remuneration Code

The Committee regularly reviews its remuneration policy's
compliance with the principles of the Remuneration Code

of the UK financial services regulator, as applicable to Ashmore
The remuneration policy is designed to be consistent with the
prudent management of nsk and the sustained long-term
performance of the Company
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Annual report on remuneration

This part of the report has been prepared in accordance with Part 3 of The Large and Medium-sized Cornpanies and Groups
{Accounts and Reports) {Amendment) Regulations 2013 and 9 8 6R of the Listing Rules

Figure 4

Remuneration for the year ending 30 June 2013 - audited information
The table below seats out the remuneration receved by the Directors (n the year ending 30 June 2013

Salary & fees Taxable benefits! Pensions
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Executive Directors
Mark Coombs 345678 100,000 100,000 2,698 2,832 7000 7000
Graeme Dell? 4567 100,000 100,000 2,698 2,832 7000 7000
Non-executive Directors
Hon Michael Benson® 150,000 150,000 - - - -
Jonathan Asquith 20,000 60 00C - - - -
Nick Land® 60,000 60 000 - - - -
Melda Donnelly® 60,000 60 000 - - - -
Sirmon Fraser® 60,000 23,231 - - - -
Charles Quthwaite? 21,846 - - - - -
Dame Anne Pringle DCMG 21,846 - - - - -

[

of dvidends or dvidend equivalents on such awards

w

Benefits for Executive Directors include membership of the Company medical scheme
Long terrn incentives vesting relates to awards with performance conditions where the performance peried has ended in the relevant financiat year and payments

In respect of the year ended 30 June 2012 Mark Coombs chose to waive 10% of any element of his potential vanabla remuneration award in return for the

Remuneration Committee considenng and approving a contrbution to chanty or chanties nominated by himseif The Cash bonus  Voluntarly deferred share
bonus and Total bonus figures are shown excluding the amount warved
4 Mark Coombs and Graeme Dell s vanable compensation 1s made up of 80% cash bonus and 40% deferred restnicted share or restricted phantom awards They
may commute up to 50% of their cash bonus in favour of an eguivalent amcunt of bonus share or bonus phantom awards and an equivalent value in matching
share or matching phantom awards All share or phantom awards will be reported in the Directors share award and phantom award tables in the year of grant

Total bonus award for the year ending 30 June 2013
Chief Executive Officer and Group Finance Director

(GFD) performance measures

The total bonus award for the year under review for the CEQ was
based on annual perfermance against financial chjectives (75%)

and achievement of non-financial business development and

management objectives (25%)

The total bonus award for the year under review for the GFD

was based on annual performance agamnst operational objecuves
related to the departments he manages (70%), contnibution to
business strategy (15%) and communication with stakeholders
(15%) The performance critena and performance outcomes for
both the CEQ and the GFD, as assessed by the Committee are

shown 1n the table cpposite

As described in detail in other sections of the Annual Report,
Ashmore has made substantial progress durning the year ending
30 June 2013 1n bullding a more diversified business, with solid
performance across the Group AuM increased by 22% to
US$774 billion and despite tougher market conditions towards
the year end investment performance remains very good with 92%
of AuM outperforming ther benchmarks aver three years The
combination of these results has led to solid financial performance,
with an EBITDA margin of 70% and profit befare tax increasing

by 6% 10 £2576 milion

For addtional information  Figure 6 shows the history of financial
results for the last five years
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Voluntarily deferred Long term fur.:?;:: for.l\:»(:aa:

Cash bonus share bonus Total bonus Incentives vesting? ended endad

2013 2012 2013 202 2013 02 203 2012 30 June 2013 30 June 2012
2,430,000 810,000 - 810,000 2,430,000 1,620 000 421,668 323677 2961366 2,053,509
420,000 150,000 - 160 000 420,000 300 600 212,838 201,593 742,536 611,425
_ _ - - - - - - 150,000 150 000

_ - - - - — - - 20,000 60,000

- - - - - - - - 60,000 60,000

- - - - - - - - 60,000 60,000

- - - - - - - - 60,000 23,231

- - - - - - - - 21,846 0

— - - - - - - - 21,846 0

§ In respect to deferred share awards which have been wawved te chanty any dwvidend equivalents assocrated with the ameunts waived are paid directly to the
norminated charntes The figures shown exclude the smounts wawved
6 Inrespect of the year ended 30 June 2012 both Mark Coombs and Graeme Dell chose to commute 80% their cash bonus end recewved a share bonus in
respect of this amount The share bonus amount s shawn in the Voluntanly deferred share bonus” cclumn, and the residual cash bonus is shown in the
“cash bonus” column
7 Dmdend equivalents were paid relating to voluntanly deferred Share or Phantom Share Awards in the penad
9 In the year ended 30 June 2013, Mark Coombs chose tc waive 10% of any element of his potential variable remuneration award in return for the Remuneration
Committee considering and approving a contribution to chanty or chenties norminated by himself The Cash bonus and Total bonus figures exclude any amounts
waived to charity

9 Nor-executive Drectors do not recerve any additonal fees for commiitee memberships

Figure 5
CEO and GFD performance measures
Executive Commuttee
Drector  KPI Areas considered within KPI Werghting Assessment
CEQ Business financial Ta achieve higher than budgeted EBIT {minus performance fees) 75% Good
performance to achieve higher than budgeted growth in AuM and to effectively
manage investment performance to deliver consistent growth relative
to each unblended investment theme
CEOQ Non-financial management Strategy development and implementation recruitment staff turnover 25% Good
performance and succession planning and regulatory and comphance adherence
GFD Operational depariment Department performance assessed for Finance, Compliance, 70% Satisfaciory
management Operations, IT & Communicatons, Company Secretanal and Facliies
GFD Business strategy Contribution to the development and implementation of strategic goals 15% Satisfactory
GFD Communication With the Board and internal and external stakeholders 15% Savsfactory
Figure 6
Five-year summary of financial results
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
Aud USShn (at period end) 774 637 658 353 249
Operating profit 2320 2251 2394 2093 150 6
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Annual report on remuneration continued

Long-term incentive scheme interests awarded
dunng the year ended 30 June 2013

Figure 7 below prowides details of the long-term incentive awards
that were made during the year These were made within the
Direciors Remuneration Policy, and represent the mandatory
deferral of 40 per cent of Executive Directors’ bonus award for
the year ended 30 June 2012 into Restricted Shares award and
the Matching Award on the voluntanly commuted portien of cash
bonus n respect of year ended 30 June 2012

Both the Restricted shares and Matching shares awards vest
on the fifth anniversary of the award date, to the extent that the

Figure 7

refative total shareholder return {TSR) performance condition

1s met TSR s measured relative to an asset management peer
group The TSR vesting scale and peer group are shown in Figures
B and 9 respectively TSR 15 a well established and recognised
performance measure, which aligns the interests of the Executive
Directors with these of shareholders In the absence of any other
dedicated emerging markets investmeant management companies,
a comparator group of 18 companies has been selected from the
global investment management sector The Commitiee reviews the
peer group penodically to take account of de-isings, new listings
or other sector changes that are retevant

Long-term incentive awards made during the year ended 30 June 2013 — audited information

Share price on Performance penod

Name Type of award No of shares Date of eward  date of award (D) Face Value (£) end date
Mark Coombs  Phantom! Restricted shares 328009 18 September 2012 £3 2926 £1080002 17 September 2017
Phantorm Matching shares 246 007 18 September 2012 £3 2926 £810003 17 September 2017
Graeme Dell Restricted shares 60743 18 Septembaer 2012 £3 2926 £200,002 17 September 2017
Matching shares 45,557 18 September 2012 £32926 £150 001 17 Septernber 2017

In view of Mark Coombs substantial existing sharehelding and taking account of the requirements of the Takeover Code the Committee has elected to date

to make phantom awards 1o Mark Coombs, which have the samea tarms as Restricted shares and Matching shares but are settled in cash In respect of the
year ended 30 June 2012 Mark Coombs chose 1o wave 10 per eant of any element of his potential vanable remuneration award n return for the Remuneraticn
Commuttee considenng and approving a contribution to chanty or chenties nominated by imself The No of shares and Face Value figures are shown excluding

the amount waived

Figure 8
TSR vesting scale

Performance % of award vesting
Below median of peer group Zero

Median 25%

Upper quartile 100%

(inear interpolation between median and UQ)

Figure 9

TSR peer group'

Company Country of Listing Company Country of Listing
Aberdeen Asset Management UK Franklin Templeton USA
Affillated Managers USA Henderson Group UK

AGF Canada Invesco USA
Alliance Bernstemn usa Janus Capital USA
Azimut Holding Italy Partners Group Holdings Swiizerand
Blackrock usa Schreders UK

Cl Financial Incorme Fund Canada SEl Investments USA

Eaton Vance usa T-Rowe Price USA
Federated Investors usA Waddell and Reed USA

1 The peer group for the award made to Graeme Dell in 2008 was expanded for awarcs made from 2009 forward to include Blackrock, Franklin Templeton Invesco
T-Rawe Price and Waddell and Reed Thus was as a result of four members of the initial peer group ceasing to trade or dedisting  these firms were Bluebay Allco

Finance Group New Star and Babcock and Brown
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QOutstanding share awards
The table below sets out details of Executive Directors’ outstanding share awards

Figure 10
Outstanding share awards — audited information
Number of Numkber of
Type of Market pnce shares at  Granted Vested Lepsed shares &t
Omrmbus on date of 30 June during dunng  dunng 30.June Performance Vesting/release
Executive award Date of award award 2012 year vear year m3 period date
Mark Coombs  PRS 29 Ociober 2010 £31724 617829 - - - 617829  5years 21 September 2015
PBS 29 October 2010 £31724 463,371 - - - 483,371 5years 21 September 2015
PMS 29 October 2010 £31724 463,371 - - - 483371 S years 21 September 2015
PRS 20 September 2011 £38392 649,878 - - — 649878  5years 19 September 2016
PBS 20 September 2011 £38392 487409 - - — 487409  Svyears 19 September 2016
PMS 20 September 2011 £38392 487409 - - ~ 487409  Syears 19 September 2016
PRS 18 September 2012 £3 2926 - 328009 - - 328009 5years 17 September 2017
PBS 18 Sepiember 2012 £3 2926 - 246007 - - 246,007  Syears 17 September 2017
PMS 18 September 2012 £3 2926 - 246,007 - - 246007 5vyears 17 September 2017
Total 3,169,267 820,023 - - 3,989,230
Graeme Dell RS 3 December 2007 £27525 272480 - 272,480 - ~ byears 2 December 2012
RS 17 Octocher 2008 £16210 296,114 - - - 296,114  byears 16 October 2013
BS 17 Cctcober 2008 £16210 222,085 - - - 222085 Gyears 16 October 2013
MS 17 October 2008 £16210 222085 - - - 222085 Syears 16 October 2013
RS  150ctober 2009 £27342 102 406 - - - 102406 Syears 15 Qctober 2014
BS 15 QOctober 2009 £2 7342 76,805 - - - 76,805 Gyears 15 October 2014
MS  150ctcber 2009 £27342 76805 - - - 76805 Svyears 15 October 2014
RS 21 September 2010 £31724 113479 - - - 113479 bSyears 21 September 2015
BS 21 September 2010 £3 1724 85 109 - - - 85109 Svyears 2t September 2015
MS 21 Septernber 2010 £3 1724 85,109 - - - 85,109  Byears 21 September 2015
RS 20 September 2011 £39392 121,853 - - - 121,853  §years 19 September 2018
BS 20 September 2041 £39392 91390 - - — 91390 Syears 19 September 2016
MS 20 September 2011 £39392 91390 - - - 91390 S§vyears 19 September 2316
RS 18 September 2012 £3 2926 - 60743 - -~  B0743  Syears 17 September 2017
BS 18 September 2012 £3 2926 - 45557 - - 45557  Gyears 17 September 2017
MS 18 September 2012 £3 2926 - 45,5657 - — 455687  Byears 17 September 2017
Total 1852110 151,857 272480 — 1,736,487

1 In view of Mark Coombs substantal existing shareholding, and taking account of the requiraments of the Takeover Code the Committee has elected to date
to make phantomn awards to Mark Coombs which have the same terms as Restneted shares and Matching shares but are settied in cash In respect of the years
ending 30 June 2010 30 June 2071 and 30 June 2012 Mark Coombs chose to waive 30 per cent 20 per cent and 10 per cent respectively of any element of his
potential vanable remunaration award in return for the Remuneration Committee considenng and approwving s contnibution to charty or chanties nominated by himself
The Number of shares at 30 June 2012 Granted during year and Number of shares at 30 June 2013 figures are shown excluding the amounts warved On the

vesung/release date any shares waived to chanty will vest to them to the extent that any relevant performance conditions have been satishied

Kay
R$ Restricted shares
BS Bonus shares

MS Matehing shares

PRS Phantom Restricted shares
PBS Phantom Bonus shares
PMS Phantom Matching shares
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Annual report on remuneration continued

The Company’s ebligations under its employee share plans can be
met by newly 1ssued shares in the Company, or shares purchased
In the market by the trustees of an employee benefit trust (EBT)
As detalled in the financial statements, the EBT continues to make
market purchases of shares to satsfy awards

The overall lmits on newy Issuance operated under the existing
share plans were estabhshed on the listing of the Company In
2008 Under these agreed limits, the number of shares which
may be issued in aggregate under employee share plans of the
Company over any 10-year penod following the date of the
Company’s Admission in 2006 s imited to 15 per cent of the

Figure 1

Company s 1ssued share capital As at 30 June 2013 the Company
had 4 per cent of the Company s 1ssued share caprtal outstanding
under employee share plans to its staff

Defined benefit pension entitlements

None of the Directors has any entitlements under Company
defined benefit pension plans

Directors’ shareholding and share interests

Detalls of the Directors interests in shares are shown in the table
below Although there 1s no formal sharehelding requirement, the
Executive Directors have substanual interests in Company shares

Share interests of Directors and connected persons at 30 June 2013 - audited information

Qutstanding restrncted
and matching

QOutstanding voluntarily
deferred share

Benehoally Owned share awards' bonus awards Total interest in shares
Executive Drrectors
Mark Coombs? 291,574,200 2,792,603 1186,787 295 563,490
Graeme Dell - 1,215,541 520 946 1736,487
Non-executive Directors
The Hon Michael Benson 29,000 - - 29,000
MNick Land 43,000 - - 43,000
Melda Donnelly 43,000 - - 43,000
Simon Fraser 25000 - - 25000

Charles Outhwaie ? -

Dame Anne Pringle DCMG -

1 Qutstanding restricted shares and matching shares are subject to performance conditions
2 OQutstanding restricted and matching share awards to Mark Coombs are in the form of phantom shares
3 Mr Charles OQuthwalte acquired 40 000 shares on 3 July 2013

Save as descnbed above there have been no other changes in the shareholdings of the Directors between 30 June and 9 September 2013
The Directors are not permitted to hold therr shares i hedging arrangements or as collateral for [cans without the express permission
of the Board None of the Directors currently holds therr shares in such as an arrangement

Percentage change in the remuneration of the Chief Executive Officer

Figure 12
Percentage change in total remuneration levels

Total Remuneration

Year ended Yeer ended

30 June 2013 30 June 2012 % change
Chief Executive base salary 100,000 100,000 0%
Relevant comparator employees base salary 71,14 72 566 -2%
Chief Executive taxable benelits 2,698 2,832 -5%
Relevant comparator employees average taxable benetits 2,698 2832 -5%
Chief Executive annual bonus 2,430,000 1,620 000 50%
Relevant comparator employees average annual bonus 172,794 153,937 12%

Figure 12 shows the movement in the total remuneration for the Chief Executive between the current and previous finanaal year
compared to that of the total remuneration costs relevant comparator employees as a whole Relevant employees are employees
of Ashmore Group who have been employed throughout the full performance year Figures do not include amounts of cash wawved

to charnity
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Performance chart

The chart below {Figure 13} shows the Company sTSR performance (with dvdends re-invested) against the perfermance of the relevant
indices for the last five years As the chart indicates £100 nvested in Ashmore on 30 June 2008 was worth over £186 five years later

compared with £131 for the same investment in the FTSE 100 index

Figure 13
TSR chart

Total Return Performance Chart to 30 June 2013
Source Thomson Reuters
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The chart shows the value by 30 June 2013 of £100 invested in Ashmare Group on 3¢ June 2008 compared to the value of £100 invested in the FTSE 250
Index andg the FTSE 100 Index The other points are the values at intervening financial year ends Each point at a financial year end is ¢aloulated using an average
total shareholder return value over June e 1 .June 1o 30 June inclusive)

Figure 14 shows the total remuneration figure for the Chief Executive Officer dunng each of the financial years shown in the TSR chart
The total remuneration figure includes the annual bonus and LTI awards which vested based on performance n those years As there

1S no cap on the maximum individual bonus award a percentage of maxmum annual bonus 1s not shown

Figure 14
Chief Executive — audited information
Performance
- related Restncted Percentage of
and Matching Restnctad and
Phantom shares Matching Phantom
Year ended 30 June Salary 8enefits Pensicn Annual benus *2 vested? shares vested? Total
2013 £100,000 £2,698 £7000 £2 430 000 £421 668 N/A £2 961 366
2012 £100,000 £2,832 £7000 £1 620,000 £323677 NfA £2 053,509
20M £100,000 £2,023 £7000 £3,840,000 £145,962 N/A £4 094 985
2010 £100 000 £1689 £7000 £2 940 000 £0 N/A £3,048,689
2009 £100 000 £1636 £7000 £0 £0 NA £108,636

1 Figures do notindude amounts of cash voluntanty deferred share bonus or dvdend equivalents waived to charrty A voluntanty deferred share bonus which 1s waved
to charnity will resultin a cash payment to the chanty on the vesting date of a sum eguivalent to the market value of the number of warved Phantom Bonus shares

vesting on that date Dunng the restricted period the chanty will receve any dividend equivalents assocated with the waived Phantom Bonus shares

2 Mark Coombs vanable compensation 1s made up of 60% cash bonus and 40% deferred Phantom Restricted share awards He may commute up to 50% of his cash
bonus in favour of an eguivalent ameunt of Phantom Bonus share awards and an equivatent valug in Phantom Matching share awards All Phantom share awards will
be reported in the Directors share and Phantom share award tables in the year of grant Mark Coombs received dmvdend equivalents related 1o his Phantom Bonus

shars awards

3 No performance related Phantom Restricted and Matching share awards heve vested during the penods shown the sums shown relate to dwdends paid on

share awards
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Annual report on remuneration continued

Figure 15 shows the relative moverment in profits total staff costs and dividends 1o shareholders, yearon-year

Figure 15

Relative importance of the spend on pay

Metrc 2013 2012 % change
Remuneration paid to or recevable by all employees of the Group (|l e accounting cost) 7917 701 14%
Average headcount 280 251 12%
Distrnbuttons to shareholders {dwvidends and/for share buy backs) 1052 1010 4%

Statement of implementation of Remuneration Policy
in the year commencing 1 Juty 2013

The Committes intends to continue to apply broadly the same
metncs and weightings to annual variable remuneraticn as in the
year ended 30 June 2013

For iong-term incentive awards (Restncted Shares, Matching Shares
and therr Phantom equivalents), the Commitiee iniends to apply the
same relatve TSR performance metnc as used the previous year,
subject to any changes 1o the peer group that may be necessary
1o take account of de-listings, new listings or cther sector changes
that are relevant

Membership of the Remuneration Committee
The members of the Committee are listed in the table below

External advisors

The Rermuneration Cornmittee receved independent advice
from New Bridge Street (NBS) consultants throughout the
penod from 1 July 2012 to 30 June 2013 NBS abides by the
Rermuneration Consuftants’ Code of Coenduct, which requires

1t to provide objectve and impartial adwice NBS fees for the year
ending 30 June 2013 were £30 344 The Company participates in
the MclLagan Partners compensation survey from which refevant
data 1s provided to the Remuneration commitiee Nerther of the
above provide other services 1o the Company

Statement of shareholder voting

At last year's AGM, the Directors Remuneration report received the
following votes from shareholders

All of these are independent Non-executive Directors, as defined Figure 16
under the Corporate Governance Code with the exception ofthe  gharenoider voting
Company Chairman who was independent on his appointment
2012 AGM resclution
Remuneration Committee attendance to spprove the Directors
Remuneration Report
Number of meetings attended out of for the year ended
potential maximur 30 June 2012 % of votes cast
MNick Land 100% Votes cast in favour 540 550,935 94 97%
Simon Fraser 100%  Votes cast against 28,635,810 503%
The Hon Michael Benson 100% Tatal votes cast 569,186,745 100 00%
Abstentions 1,778,153
The Company s CEQ attends the meeting by invitation and
assists the Commutiee in 1ts deliberations, except when his Approval

personal remuneration is discussed No Directors are involved

in deciding thewr own remunerauon The Company Secretary acts
as Secretary 1o the Committee  Other executives may be invited
to attend as the Cormmittee requests

Thus Directors’ Remuneration repont, including both the Directors’
Remuneraton Policy and the Annual report on remuneration have
been approved by the Board of Directors

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors

Nick Land
Chanrman of the Remuneration Committee

9 September 2013

66 Ashmore Group pic | Annual Report and Accounts 2013




Independent Auditor’s report to the members of Ashmore Group plc only

Opinions and conclusions ansing from our audit

Opinion on financial statements

We have audited the financial statements of Ashmore Group plc
for the year ended 30 June 2013 set out on pages 70to 109 In
our opInion

— the financial statements give a true and fair view of the
siate of the Group's and of the parent company’s affars
as at 30 June 2013 and of the Group’s profit for the year
then ended,

— the Group financial statements have been properly prepared
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
as adopted by the European Union (IFRSs as adopted by
the EU),

- the parent company financial statements have been properly
prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU and
as apphed n accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act 2008, and

~ the financia! statements have been prepared n accordance
with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and
as regards the Group financial statements Article 4 of
the IAS Regulation

Our assessment of nsks of material misstatement
In arrving at our audit opmion above on the Group fmancial
statements the nsks of matenal misstatement that had the
greatest effect on our Group audit were as follows

~ Revenue - as detalled in the summary of significant
accounting policies in page 81 and the Audit and Risk
Commuttee report on pages 47 to 48 revenue consists of
primarily management fees and performance fees both net
of rebates 1o investors Performance fees and fee rebates
are considered significant audit nsks due to the guantum and
the complexity of some performance fees and fee rebates
agreements and calculations

We perfermed a recalculation of perfarmance fees earned
dunng the year on a sample basis to deterrmineg whether they
had been calculated in accordance with the fee agreements
This included determining the basis for actual and benchmark
performance data used in the calculauon We inspected the
Investment management agreements for a selection of chents
and funds to test whether the nformation in the fee database,
used to calculate fees, was complete and accurste

For rebates, we assessed the controls around the
mainienance of terms sheets used to record all chents’
enbtlerment to fee rebates We also performed a recalculation
of fee rebates on a sample basis

— Seed capnal iInvestments — as set out in the summary of
accounting policies on page 78 and 79 the Group may, from
ume to time nvest In funds that are managed by a Group
subsicdhary As described in the report from the Audit and Risk
Committee on pages 47 to 48, the seed capital nvestments
may be consolidated or classified as either held-for-sale (HFS)
or as one of two types of financial assets - avallable-for-sale
{AFS) or {air-value-through-profit-and-oss (FVTPL}

The classificatons, which depend on yjudgments about
subjective matters particularly in relation to HFS may make

a matenal difference to the financial statements If 5 fund 1s
consclidated, the fund's gross assets are included in the
Group financial statements on a ine-by-hine basis and a liability
15 also recognised representing the third party investors’

interests If classified as HFS, the gross assets would be
shown as a single kne and third party investors’ interests are
shown as habilities if an asset is classified as AFS or FVTPL
the Group's halding 1n the funds 1s shown as an investment
Gains and losses would also be recognised on different basis
and be presented differently Appropriate classification s
therefore a key audit nsk

We critically assessed the Directors rationale for classifying
seed capital iInvestments as HFS We considered therr plans
to reduce Group's holding in the 12 months following
acguisition to below the consolidation threshold, against the
pattern of reduction of Group’s seed capital investments to
the vear end and against our own expectations based on our
expenence Where as at the year end, an HFS fund had
already been held for a significant pericd we examined the
changes i holding that occurred in the penod and the
Dwrectors’ speafic plans to further reduce the Group s holding
against the particular requirements of accounting standards

Far all iInvestments, we tested Ashmore's holding in absolute
and percentage terms to independent third party
confirmations We independently priced all the underlying
investrnent secunties consolidated into the Group financial
statements using our n-house valuation 100l For HFS
investments and consolidated funds we also recalculated the
interest of external investors which 1s classified as liabilities

Goodwill and intangebles — as detalled in the surmmary of
significant accounting polaes on pages 78 and 79 and the
Audit and Risk Committee report on pages 47 to 48 goodwill
and intangikles are reviewed for impairment using a value in
use model Goodwill remained unimpaired the assessmeant
showed there 15 significant headroom, as set out in note 15
con page 91 There i1s less headroom in the intangible asset
assessment the outcome of which could vary significantly if
different assumptions were apphed in the mode! Therefore
this 15 considered a key audit nisk

Qur audit procedures included among others, testing

the principles and integrity of the model used, comparisen

of the input assumptions to externally and internally denved
data as well as cur own assessments In relation 1o key Inpuis
such as market performance, subscription/redemption levels
and fee rates We assessed the overall consistency of the
assumpuons and of the estmated inputs, including the
potential nsk management bilas We considered the adequacy
of the Group's disclosures (see Note15) In respect of
imparrment testing and whether disclosures about the
sensitivity of the outcome of the iImpairment assessment

to changes In key assumptions properly reflected the nisks
inherent in the key assumptions and the requirements of
accounting standards
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Independent Auditor’s report to the members of Ashmore Group plc only continued

— Share-based payments — The Group 1ssues share awards
to employees under share-based compensation plans As
explained n the report of the Audit and Risk Commitiee on
pages 47 10 48, the key risk associated with share-based
compensation arrangements 15 the quantification of such
arrangements, as certain assumptions need to be taken into
account in determining the farr value of those share-based
compensations that are subject 1o market-based performance
conditons This 1s therefore the key area we focused on
dunng our audit

We assessed the Directors basis for determining the impact
of market-based conditions at the start of the vesting penod
{and both equity and cash-settled share-based schemes) and
at the end of the pencd (applicable only to the cash-settled
scheme) We evaluated those assessments {particularly those
n respect of the cash-settled scheme, which have the greater
financial effect) in the light of the movement in the share price
from the start of the relevant vesting penod to the year end
and the total shareholders return of the peer Group over the
same penod

For all share-based payments we agreed on a sample

basis shares granted exercised and forfeited in the year

to supporting documentation and, based on that together
with the assessed market-based periormance conditions and
other inputs tested the calculaton of charges and habidlities
We also considered the disclosures in note 10 1n refation to
the schemes

Our apphiecation of materniality and an overview of the
scope of our audit

The matenality for the Group financial statements as a whole
was set at £13 0 million This has been calculated using a
benchmark of Group profit before taxation which we beleve

1s the key benchmark used by members of the company in
assessing financial performance

We agreed with the audit committee 1o report to it all corrected
and uncorrected misstatements we identified through our audit
with a value n excess of £0 65 milen, in addition to other audit
misstatements below that threshold that we believe warranted
reporting on qualttative grounds

Audits for Group reporting purposes were performed at the key
reporting components In the fallowing countrnies UK {2 entiiies)
and US (1 entity) These audits covered 96% of total Group
revenue, 94% of Group profit before taxation, and 98% of total
Group assets

The Group audit team performed the audits of the Group
reporting packs of the UK and the US companents in
accordance with the matenality levels used for local audits
which ranged from £0 6 million to £10 1 mullion

Opinion on other matters prescnbed by the

Companies Act 2006

In cur opinion

— the part of the Directors’ Remuneration report to be audited
has been properly prepared in accordance with the
Companies Act 2006, and

- the information given in the Directors’ report for the financial
year for which the financial statements are prepared is
consistent with the financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by
exception

Under the terms of our engagement we are required to report
to you If, based on the knowledge we acquired during our audit,
we have identified other information in the annual report that
contains a matenal inconsistency with either that knowledge or
the financial statements, a matenal misstatement of fact or that
15 otherwise misleading |n particular, we are required 10 report
to you If

- we have identified matenat inconsistencies between the
knowledge we acquired duning our audit and the Directors’
statement that they consider thai the annual report and
financial statements taken as a whole 15 tar, balanced and
understandable and provides the information necessary for
sharehaolders to assess the Group s performance business
model and strategy, or

- the section of the annual report descnbing the work of the
Group Audit and Risk Committee does not appropriately
address matters communicated by us to the Audit and
Risk Committee

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are reguired 1o report to
you If, In our opinion

- adequate accounting records have not been kept by the
parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have not
been recerved from branches not visited by us, or

- the parent company financial statements and the part of
the Directors’ Remuneration report to be audited are not
in agreement with the accounting records and returns, or

- certain disclosures of Directors remuneration specified
by law are not made, or

— wa have not receved ail the informaticn and explanations
wae require far our audit

Under the Listing Rules we are required to review

- the Directors statement set out on page 53, In relation
to going concern

- the part of the Corporate Governance Statement on pages
40 and 46 relating to the company s compliance with the
nine provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code (2010)
specified for our review, and

— certain elements of the report to shareholders by the Board
on Directors’ remuneration marked as audited

We have nothing to report in respect of the above responsibilities
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Respective responsibilities of Directors and auditor

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities
Statement set out on page 49, the Directors are responsible
for the preparation of the financial statements and for being
satisfied that they give a true and fair view OQur responsitility
15 to audit, and express an opimon on, the financial statements
in accordance with apphcable law and International Standards
on Auditing (UK and reland} Those standards require us to
comply with the UK Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of an audit of financial statements performed
in accordance with ISAs (UK and Ireland)

A description of the scope of an audit of financial statements
1s provided on the Financial Reporting Council’s website at
www fre org uk/auditscopeukponvate

The nsks of maienal misstatement detailed in the section

of this report titled *Our assessment of risks of matenal
misstatement  are those risks that we have deemed in our
professional judgment had the greatest effect on the overall
audit strategy the allocation of resources in our audit, and
directsng the efforts of the engagement team QOur audst
procedures relating 1o these risks were designed in the context
of our audit of the financial statements as a whole Qur opinion
on the financial statements 15 not modified with respect to any
of these nsks and we do not express an apinion on these
individual nsks

Matenality 15 a term used to describe the acceptable level of
precision in financial statements Auditing standards describe a
misstaternent or an armission as material” if it could reasonably
be expecied to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of the financial statements The auditor has to apply
Judgrment in identifying whether a rmisstatement or omission 1s
matenal and to do so the auditor \dentifies a monetary amount
as matenalty for the financial statements as a whole

Whilst the audit process I1s designed to provide reasonable
assurance of identifying matenal rmisstatements or omissions
it 1s not guaranteed 10 do so Rather the auditor plans the audit
to determine the extent of testing needed to reduce to an
appropriately low tevel the probabilty that the aggregate of
uncorrected and undetected misstatements does not exceed
matenality for the financial statements as a whole This testing
requires us to conduct sigrificant depth of work en a broad
range of assets, llabilites, ncome and expense as well as
devoting significant time of the most experienced members

of the audrt team, in particular the senior statutory auditor,

to subjective areas of the accounting and reporting process

The purpose of this report and restrictions on its use
by persons other than the members of the Company,
as a body

QOur repert 1s made solely to the company s members as a
hody, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies
Act 2006 and in respect of the reporting as if ISA {UK and
Ireland} 700 {rewised June 2013) applied to this reporung period
on terms we have agreed with the company Qur audit work has
been undertaken so that we might state to the company s
members those matiers we are required 1o state to them i an
auditor's report and, in respect of the reporting as if 1SA {UK and
Ireland) 700 {revised June 2013) applied to this reporting penod,
we have expressly agreed to state to them in our report and for
no other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do
not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the
company and the company s members as a body, for our audit
work, for our report or for the opinions we have formed

Gareth Horner (Semor Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of KPMG Audit Plc, Statutory Auditor

Chartered Accountants
15 Canada Square
London

€14 5GL

9 September 2013
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive iIncome
Year ended 30 June 2013

2013 2012
Notes £m £m
Management fees 3160 3026
Performance fees 334 254
Other revenue 62 62
Total revenue 3556 3342
Distribution costs (48) 37
Foreign exchange 7 47 28
Net revenue 3555 3333
Gains/(losses) on investment securities 21 49 (0 4}
Change in third-party nterests in consoldated funds 21 {12) 04}
Persannel expenses 9 (82 3) (73 0}
Other expenses n (44 9) (34 4}
Operating profit 2320 2251
Finance income 8 266 222
Finance expense 8 (09) {41
Share of profit from associates and a joint venture 28 {01) -
Profit before tax 257 6 2432
Tax expense 12 (56 0) {57 5)
Profit for the year 2016 1857
Other comprehensive income, net of related tax effect
lterns that may be reclassified subseqguently to profit or loss
Exchange adjustments on translation of foreign operations 26 01
Net fair value movements on availlable-for-sale financial assets including tax {18) 42)
Cash flow hedge intnnsic value {losses)/gains including tax (04) 01
Total comprehensive income for the year 2020 1817
Profit attributable to
Equity hotders of the parent 2022 1815
Non-controlling interests {0 6) 42
Profit for the year 2016 1857
Total comprehensive income attributable to
Equity holders of the parent 2022 1772
Non-controlling interests {02) 45
Total comprehensive income for the year 2020 1817
Earnings per share
Basic 13 29 98p 26 82p
Diluted 13 2869 25 80p

The notes on pages 77 to 108 form an integral part of these financial statements
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Consolidated balance sheet
As at June 2013

2013 2012
Notes £m fm
Assets
Non-current assets o
Goodwill and intangible assets 1b 843 981 g
Property plant and equipment 16 37 42 tc-c;‘:
Investment in associates and joint ventures 28 18 23 2
Non-current asset investmenits 21 91 56 E
Other receivables 01 07 %
Deferred acguisition costs 17 06 47
Deterred tax assets 19 210 151
1306 1307
Current assets
Investment securities 21 497 806 ;9_
Avallable-for-sale financial assets 21 556 546 Z
Trade and other recewvables 18 773 64 1 3
Derivative financial instruments 22 - 05 §
Cash and cash equivalents 3955 3466
578 1 5264
Non-current assets held-for-sale 21 1049 499
Total assets 8136 7070
Equity and habilities _
Capital and reserves — attnbutable to equity holders of the parent Q
Issued capital 23 - - g
Share premium 157 57 %
Retaned earmings 608 0 566 O
Foreign exchange reserve 53 31
Avallabie-for-sale farr value reserve 07 25
Cash flow hedging reserve (10) 08
628 7 5373
Non-controlling interests 171 208
Total equity 6458 5581 -
Liabilities 2
Non-current habilthes §
Trade and ¢ther payables 26 - 58 W
Deferred tax habiities 19 30 10 %
30 68 é
Current iabilities @
Current tax 289 279
Third-party interests in consolidated funds 21 128 15
Cenvative financial instruments 22 21 15
Trade and other payables 26 94 1 871 -
1379 1270
Non-current hiabilities held-for-sale 21 269 151
Total habilities 1678 1489
Total equity and habilities 8136 707G
The notes on pages 77 to 109 forp an integral part of these financial statements
Approved by the Board on 9 Seftember 2013 and signed on its behalf by
Marl?omb (
Chiet Fxecutife Officer tor
A /
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Consolidated Statement of changes in equity

For the year ended 30 June 2013

Attnbutable to equity holders of the parent

Available-
Foreign for-sale  Cash flow Non-
Share  Retared exchenge [AFS]  hedging controlling Total
Issued premium earnings reserve reserve reserve Total Interests BqQuity
capital £m £m m £fm tm £m £m £fm £m
Balance at 30 June 2011 - 187 4735 33 67 07) 4985 164 5149
Non-controling interests ansing on
establishment of a subsidiary - - - - - - - 01 01
Profit for the year - - 1815 - - - 1815 42 1857
Other comprehensive income
Translation adjustments on foreign operations - - - {02) - - 02 03 01
Net loss on AFS assets including tax - - - - (38 - (3 8} - 38
Gains on AFS previously recognised in equity - - - - @ 4) - (04} - 0 4)
Cash flow hedge intnnsic value gains - - - - - 01 01 - 01
Purchase of own shares - - {408 - - - 408 - (408
Share-based payments - - 46 - - - 46 57 103
Deferred tax related to share-based payments - - (17 - - - a7 - 07
Proceeds receved on exercise of
vested options - - 056 - - - 05 - 05
Dvidends to equity holders - - {1010 - - - {1010 - 91 Q)
Dividends to nen-controling interests - - - - - - - (59) 59
Balance at 30 June 2012 - 157 5166 3 25 {0B) 5373 208 5581
Profit for the vear - - 2022 - - - 2022 (06) 2016
Qther comprehensive iIncome
Translaton adjustments on toresgn operations - - - 22 - - 22 04 26
Net gain on AFS assets including tax - - - - 01 - 01 - 01
Gains on AFS previously recognised in equity - - - - {19) - {19) - (19
Cash flow hedge intrnsic value losses - - - - - {0 4) (0 4) - (0 4)
Purchase of own shares - - (308) - - - {30 8) {13) (321)
Share-based payments - - 255 - - - 255 35 290
Deferred tax retated to share-based payments - - 07 - - - 07} - (07)
Proceeds received on exeraise of
vested options - - 04 - - - 04 - 04
Dividends to equity holders - - [1052) - - - (1052) - (1052)
Dividends to non-controlling interests - - - - - - - 57 {57)
Balance at 30 June 2013 - 157 608 0 53 07 {10} 6287 171 645 8

The notes on pages 77 to 109 form an integral part ¢of these financial statements
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Consolidated cash flow statement
For the year ended 30 June 2013

2043 2012
£m £m
Operating activities
Cash receipts from customers 3587 3291 o
Cash paid to suppliers and employees (78 5) 903 3
Cash generated from operations 2802 2388 §
Taxes pad (59 4) {58 2} g
Net cash from operating actvities 2208 1806 %
lnvesting activities
Interest received 27 33
Dividends recerved 17 03
Acquisitions {9 0) -
Conungent consideration payments {8 6) - (?—
Changes in upfront consideration relating to acquisitions - 04 =
Purchase of non-current asset nvestments (35 (103) g
Purchase of non-current financial assets held-for-sale {102 6) (59 9 é
Purchase of avallable-for-sale financial assets {42 9) (55}
Purchase of iInvestment securities (62 0) (161 3)
Sale of non-current asset investments 02 -
Sale of held-for-sale financial asseis 325 -
Sale of avallable-for-sale financial asseis 735 135
Sale of iInvestment securities 511 800
Net cash flow ansing on initial consolidation/deconsolidation of seed capital investments 09) 19 o]
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (19) (26} &
Net cash used in (nvesting activiies {69 7) {60 2) §
&
Financing activihes
Dwidends paid 1o equity holders {105 2) {101 Q)
Dmdends paid to non-controlling interests {57} {59)
Subscrptions inte consolidated funds 423 63
Redempticns from consolidated funds {7 9) 52
Distributions paid by consolidated funds (10} -
Purchase of own shares {30 8) a0y I
Net cash used in financing actmities (108 3) {146 6} %
a
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 428 (26 2) %
2
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 3466 3690 é
Etfect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash eguivalents 61 38
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 3955 3466
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year compnse e
Cash at bank and 1n hand 784 1570
Daily dealing iquidity funds 3171 1896
3955 3466
The notes on pages 77 to 109 form an tntegral part of these financial statements
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Company balance sheet

As at 30 June 2013
2013 2012
Notes £m £m
Assets
Non-current assets
Goodwill and intangible assets 15 41 41
Property plant and equipment 16 14 25
Investment in subsicharies 27 201 201
Loans due from subsidianes 1B 189 173
Deferred tax assets 19 137 137
582 57 7
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 18 2578 2152
Cash and cash equivalents 2717 2106
5295 4258
Total assets 5877 4835
Equity and habilities
Capital and reserves
Issued cagital 23 - -
Share premium 157 157
Retained earnings 526 2 4195
Total equity attnbutable to equity holders of the Company 5419 4352
Liabilities
Current habilities
Current tax - 18
Trade and other payables 26 458 485
458 483
Total habilies 458 483
Total equity and habiities 5877 4835

The notes on pages 77 to 109 form anafitegral part of these financial statements

Approved by the Board on 9 Septe

Mark Coombs
Chief Execupve Officer

er 2013 and signed on its behalf by
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Company statement of changes in equity

For the year ended 30 June 2013

Total equity
attnbutable to
Issued Share Retained  equity holders
capial Premium eamngs  of the paent
£m fm fm £m
Balance at 30 June 2011 - 157 356 4 3721
Profit for the year - - 2017 2017
Purchase of own shares - - {40 B} {40 8}
Share-based payments - - 46 a6
Deferred tax related to share-based payments - - 19 19
Proceeds received on exercise of vested options - - 05 05
Dwvidends to equity holders - - {101 O) {101 0)
Balance at 30 June 2012 - 157 4195 4352
Profit for the year - - 2201 2201
Purchase of own shares - - (30 8) (30 8)
Share-based payments - - 229 229
Deferred 1ax related to share-based payments - - 07) [07)
Proceeds received on exercise of vested options - - 04 04
Dividends to eguity holders - - {105 2} {1052)
Balance at 3¢ June 2013 - 157 526 2 5419

The notes on pages 77 to 109 form an integral part of these financial statemenis
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Company cash flow statement
As at 30 June 2013

2013 2012
£m £m

Operating activities
Cash receipts from customers and cther Group companies 797 668
Cash paid to suppliers and employees and other Group companies (47 B) (54 8}
Net cash from operating activities 321 120
Investing activities
Interest received 08 12
Loans to subsidiaries {34 6) (85 5)
Dividends received from subsidiaries 196 7 1948
Purchase of property plant and equipment (07} (V3
Net cash from investing activities 162 2 1082
Financtng activrties
Dwidends paid {105 2} (101 Q)
Purchase of own shares (30 8} 40 8}
Net cash used in financing activities {136 0) (141 8}
Net increase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 583 (20 6)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 2106 2312
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 28 -
Cash and cash equrvalents at end of year 217 2106
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year compnise
Cash at bank and in hand 76 54 1
Daily dealing hquidity funds 264 1 156 5

2n7 2106

The notes on pages 77 to 109 form an integral part of these financial statements
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Notes to the financial statements

1) General information

Ashmore Group plc (the Company) 1s a public mited company
listed on the London Stock Exchange and incorporated and
domiciled in the United Kingdom The consolidated financiat
staterments of the Company and 1ts subsidianes (together the
Group) for the year ended 30 June 2013 were authonsed for
1ssue by the Board of Directors on 9 September 2013 The
principal activity of the Group 1s described in the Directors
report on page 50

2) Basis of preparation

The Group and Company financial staiements have been
prepared in accordance with International Financiat Reporting
Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the European Union (EU}
effective for the Group s reporung for the year ended 30 June
2013 and applied in accerdance with the provisions of the
Companes Act 2006

The financial statements have been prepared on a going
concern basis under the histoncal cost convention, except for

the measurement at fair value of certain financial assets that are

avallable-for-sale or classified as fair value through profit or loss

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption In section
408 of the Companies Act 2006 which allows 1t not to present
1its indmidual statement of comprehensive income and

related notes

The preparation of financial statements requires management
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and
habilibes income and expenses The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and vanous
other tactors that are believed to be reascnable under the
atrcumstances the results of which form the basis of making
the judgernents about carrying values of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources Actual results
may differ from these estimates Further information about key
assumptions and other key sources of estimation and sreas of
Judgement are $et out In note 32

3) Effects of new and amended IFRSs

New standard applied
The following amended IFRS has been adopted by the Group
and the Company during the year

— Amendment to IAS 1 Prasentation of ftems of Other
Comprehensive Income impacts the Group's and Company s
statements of comprehensive iIncome by requiring the
grouping ot nemns presented in other comprehensive income
based on whether or not they will be reclassified 1o profit or
loss in future Adoption of the amendment did not impact
earmngs per share

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted
The Internauonal Accounting Standards Board {|IASB} and
International Financial Reporting Interpretations Commitiee has
recently 1ssued the following new standards and amendments
which are effective for annual pencds beginning on or after

1 January 2014, unless stated otherwise and have not been
apphed In prepanng these consolidated financial statements

— IFRS 9 Financial instruments Classification and Measurement

which 1s the first phase of a wider project 10 replace 1AS 39

Financial instruments Recognition and Measurernent
replaces the current models for classification and
measurement of financial Instrurnents Financial assets are
1o be classithed inio two messurement categornies fair value
and amortised cosi Classification will depend ¢n an entity’s
business model and the charactenstics of contractual cash
flow of the finangial nstrument The standard 1s effective for
annual penods begqinning on or after 1 January 2015

The Group will continue to measure all equity Investments
at fair value with an irrevocable option 10 recognise through
equity farr value, gains and losses on equity investments
that are not held for trading However, gains and losses
recognised through equity cannot be subsequently recycled
10 profit or 10ss on impairment ¢r disposal of the investments
as 15 the case for equity investments currently classified as
avalable-for-sale

As at the tme of publication of these financial statements
the IASB 1s re-delberaung the requirements for classification
and measurement in [FRS 8 while the requirements of latter
phases of IFRS 9 are In development and therefore remain
uncertain The Group continues to monitor developments
and will prowvide an impact assessment once the |ASB has
completed the project subject to endorsement by the EU

IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements revises the
concept of control to relate it to whether an investor has
exercisable power over an investee and conseguently has
exposure or nghts to varnable returns Consolidation
procedures remain unchanged

The expected impact of IFRS 10 1s that some funds managed
by the Group may have to be consoldated resulting in a
grossing up of the Group s assets and labilites but with
minimal net impact on profit or net assets The Group 1S
currently assessing the full impact of the new standard

IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities consolidates
and enhances disclosure requirements relating to interests
of an entity in cther enties It includes the disclosure
requirements for all forms of Iinterests in other entities,
including joint arrangements asscciates special purpose
vehicles and unconsolidated struciures

The new standard i1s likely to result in increased disclosures
regarding interests in other entities particularly in respect of
significant judgments and assumptions made in determining
control and the nature of and changes in the nsks associated
with such interests The Group Is currently assessing the full
impact of the new standard

The foliowing new standards which are relevant for the Group
are not expected to have a matenal impact

- Amendment to IAS 32 Financial instruments Presentation

provides adducnal guidance for offsetting financial assets and
liabilities while amendments to IFRS 7 financial instruments
Disclosures set out corresponding new disclosure
requirements The amendment 15 effective for annual penods
beginning on or after 1 January 2033
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Notes to the financial statements continued

3) Effects of new and amended IFRSs continued

- IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements requires joint ventures to be
accounted for using the equity accounting method while
joint operations are accounted for based on the nghts and
obhgaticns of each party n the arrangement

- IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurementaims 1o improve consistency
and reduce complexity by prowiding guidance on how to
measure fair value where fair value 1s required of permitied
across IFRSs and enhances disclosures requirements
(effective for annual pencds beginning on or after
1 January 2013}

4} Significant accounting policies

The following principal accounting policies have been applied
consistently where applicable to all years presented in dealing
with items which are considered matenal in relation to the Group
and Company financial statements unless otherwise stated

Basis of consolidation

These financial statements consolidate the financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries Subsidianies are those
entities, ncluding investment funds, over which the Company
has the power directly or indiractly, to govern the financial

and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from
1ts acuvities In assessing control, potential voting nghts that
presently are exercisable or convertble are taken intc account
The financial statements of subsidianies are included inthe
consohdated financial statements from the date that contro!

1$ transferred 1o the Group unti! the date that control ceases
Intragroup balances and any unrealised gans and losses or
income and expenses arising from intragroup transactions are
eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements
The results of subsidianes acquired during the year are included
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive iIncome from
the effective date of acquisition

Based on therr nature the interests of third-parties in funds that
are consolidated (consolidated funds) are classified as liabilities
and appear as ‘Third-party interests in consolidated funds' in
the Group s balance sheet

The Group has an Employee Benefit Trust (EBT) that acts
as an agent for the purpose of the employee share-based
compensation plans Accordingly, the EBT 1s included within
the Group and Company financial statements

Associates and joint ventures

Associates are partly owned entities over which the Group has
significant influence but no control Joint ventures are entities
through which the Group and other parties undertake an
economic activity which 1s subject to joint control

Investments in associates and interests In joint ventures are
recognised using the equity method of accounting Under this
method the investments are initially recognised at cost,
including attnbutable goodwill and are adjusted thereafter for
the post-acguisition changes in the Group's share of net assets
The Group's share of post-acquisition profit or loss 1s recognised
in the statement of comprehensive income

Where the Group s financial year Is not cotermmous with those
of 1ts associates or joint ventures, unaudited intenm financial
information 1s used after appropnate adjustments have been made

Foreign currency translation

The Group's financial statements are presented in Pounds
Sterling (Sterling], which 1s also the Company's functional

and presentztion currency ltems included in the financral
statements of each of the Group's entiues are measured

using the currency of the pnmary econcmic environment in
which the entity cperates the functional currency Transactions
in foreign currencies are translated by the Group's entities at
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the date of the transaction

Monetary assets and habilities dencrminated in foreign
currencies at the balance sheet date are translated at the
prevalling exchange rate Foreign exchange differences
arising on translation are recegnised in the statement of
comprehensive income Non-monetary assets and liabilities
that are measured in terms of histoncal cost in a foreign
currency are rranslated using the exchange rate at the date
of the transaction

The assets and lablities of foreign operations including
goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on consolidation
are translated nto Sterling at the foereign exchange rates
ruling at the balance sheet date The revenues and expenses
of foreign cperations are vranslated into Sterling at rates
approximating to the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
dates of the transacuons Foreign exchange differences
ansing on translation are recognised directly in cther
cotnprehensive INcome

Business combinations

Business combinations are accounted for using the purchase
method (acquisition accounting} The cost of a business
combinaticn 1s the aggregate of the farr values at the date

of exchange, of assets given habilities incurred or assumed,
equity Instruments 1ssued by the acquirer and the amount

of non-controlling interest in the acquiree The fair value of

a business combination 1s calculated at the acquisition date
by recognising the acquiree’s iIdentfiable assets, habihities and
contingent habilities that satisfy the recognition criteria at their
fair values at that date Acquisition-related costs are expensed
as incurred The acguisition date 15 the date an which the
acquirer effectively obtains control of the acquirae

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the

acquirer will be recognised at fair value at the acquisiion

date Subsequently, changes to the fair value of the contingent
consideration that is deemed 10 be a liability will be recogrised
in accordance with 1AS 39 in profit or loss If the contingent
censideration 15 classrhied as equity 1t will not be re-measured

Goodwill

The cost of a business combmation in excess of the fair value

of net identrfiable assets or labiiies acquired, mcluding intangible
assets dentified, 1s recognised as goodwill and stated at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses Goodwill has an indafinre
useful life, 15 not subject to amortisation and |s tested annually

for impairment or when there 1s an indication of impairment

Intangible assets

The cost of intangible assets such as management contracts
and brand names acquired as part of a business combinaticn
are therr farr value as at the date of acquisibon The farr value

at the date of acquisition 1s calculated using the discounted cash
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flow methedology and represents the valuation of the net
restdual revenue stream anising from the management contracts
and brand name In place at the date of acquisition

Following iniual recognition, intangible assets are carried at
cost less any accumulated amertisation and impairment losses
Intangible assets are amortised If appropriaie, over their useful
lives which have been assessed as being between 31 months
and 10 years

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment 15 slated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses

Cost s determined on the basis of the direct and indirect costs
that are directly attributable Property, plant and equipment I1s
depreciated using the straight-ine method over the estimated
useful ives assessed to be five years for office equipment and
four years for IT equipment The residual values and useful ives
of assets are reviewed at least annually

Deferred acquisition costs

Costs that are directly attnibutable to securing an investment
management centract are deferred if they can be identified
separately and measured reliably and it 1s probable that they
will be recovered Deferred acquisition costs represent

the contractual nght to benehit from providing investment
management services and are charged as the related revenue
15 recognised

Financial instruments

Recognition and mnitial measurement

Financial instruments are recogmsed when the Group becomes
party 10 the contractual provisions of an instrument, inmally

at fair value plus transaction costs except for financial assets
classified at far value through profit or loss Purchases or sales
ot financial assets are recognised on the trade date, being the
date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset
Financial assets are derecogrused when the nghts to receive
cash flows from the investments have expired or been
transferred or when the Group has transferred substantially

all nsks and rewards of ownership Financial habilities are
derecogrised when the obligation under the habthity has been
discharged, cancelled or expires

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial Instruments depends
on therr classification in accordance with IAS 39

Financial assets

The Group may from ttme to time invest in funds where an
Ashmore Group subsidiary Is the iInvestment manager or an
advisor {seedingl Where the holding in such investments 1s
deemed to represent a controling stake and)s acquired
exclusively with a view to subsequent disposal through sale or
dilution these seed capital investments are recognised as non-
current financial assets held-for-sale in accordance wath IFRS 5
Non-current asseats held-for-sale and discontinued operations
The Group recognises 100% of the investment in the fund as
a "held-for-sale” asset and the interest held by other parties as
a “lability held-for-sale  Where control 1s not deemed to exist,
and the assets are readily realisable they are recognised as
avallable-for-sale financial assets Where the assets are not
readily realisable they are recognised as non-current asset

investments it a seed capital investment remains under
control of the Group for more than one year from the orginal
investment date the underlytng fund 1s consolidated hine by line

Investment securnities

Investment securities represent listed secunties other than
dervatives, held by consclidated funds These securiues are
held at far value with gains anc losses recognised through
the consolidated staterment of cormprehensive income

Non-current financial assets held-for-sale

Non-current {inancial assets held-for-sale are measured at the
lower of therr carnying amount and tair value less costs to seli
except where measurement and re-measurement 15 outside
the scope of IFRS § Where investments that have inrually been
recogrnised as non-current financial assets held-for-sale, because
the Group has been deemed as holding a controlling stake, are
subsequently disposed of or diluted such that the Group's
halding 1s no longer deemed a controlling stake, the investment
will subsequently be cassified as an available-for-sale

financial asset Subsequent movements will be recognised

In accordance with the Group's accounting policy for the

newly adoptad classification

Available-for-saie financial assets

Avallable-for-sale financial assets are erther financial assets
allocated speaifically to this category or are financial assets that
cannol be assigned ta any other category They are carned at
farr vatue and changes n fair values are recognised n other
comprehensive income, until the asset s disposed of or
impaired, at which time the cumulative gamn or loss previously
recognised in other camprehensive income 1s included in profi
for the year as part of comprehensive iIncome

Other fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) financial assets
FVTPL financiat assets include non-current asset investments
and dernvatives

(1 Non-current asset Investments

Non-current asset investments include closed-end funds which
are classified as FVTPL They are held at fair value with changes
in fair value being recogrised through the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income Fair value 1s assessed

by taking account of the extent to which potental dilution of
gains or losses may anse as a result of additional investors
subscriing to the fund where the final close of a fund has

not occurred

(} Derwvatives

Denvatives include foreign exchange forward contracts and
options used by the Group to manage Its foreign currency
exposures and those held in consolidated funds

Derivatives are initially recognised at far value on the date

on which a dervative contract 1s entered and subsequently
re-measured at far value Transaction costs are recognised
immediately in the statement of comprehensive income All
dernivatives are carned as financial assets when the far value 1s
positive and as financial liabllites when the farr value 1s negative

Any gains or losses ansing from changes in the fair value of
dervatives are taken directly in profit or loss except for the
effective portion of cash flow hedges which is recognised
in other comprehensive income
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Notes to the financial statements continued

4] Significant accounting policies continued

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other recewvables are intially recorded at far value
plus transaction costs The fair value on acquisition I1s nermally
the cost Imparment losses with respect to the estimated
irrecoverable amount are recogrised through the statement of
comprehensive income when there 15 appropriate evidence that
trade and other recewvables are impaired However, if a longer-
term receivable carries no interest, the fair value 15 estimated
as the present value of all future ¢ash payments or recepts
discounted using the Group s weighted average cost of capnal
The resulting adjustment Is recognised as interest expense or
Interest income Subsequent to initial recognition these assets
are measured at amortised cost less any impairment

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash represents cash at bank and in hand and cash equivalents
comprise short-term deposits and investrments in money market
instruments with an orrginal maturity of three months or less

Financial habilities

Non-current financial habilities held-for-sale

Non-current financial habilities represent interests held by other
parties in funds in which the Group recogrises 100% of the
investrment in the fund as a held-for-sale financial asset These
lhabilities are carried at far value wath gain or losses recognised
in the statement of comprehensive income within finance
INComMe Or eXpenses

Financial habilities at FVTPL

Financial habilities at FVTPL include denvative financial
instruments and third-party interests in consofidated funds
They are carried at fair value with gains or losses recognised in
the staternent of comprehensive income within finance income
or expense

Other financial habilities

Other financial habilites including trade and other payables are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method

Fair value estimation

Secunties listed on a recognised stock exchange or dealt on any
other regulated market that operates regularly recognised and
open to the public are valued at the last known available closing
bid price If a secunty 1s traded on several actively traded and
organised financial markets the valuation is made on the basis
of the tast known bid price on the main market on which the
securities are traded In the case of securities for which trading
on an actively traded and organised financial market is not
significant but which are bought and sold on a secondary
market with regulated tradmg among security dealers (with the
effect that the price 1s set on a market basis), the valuation may
be based on this secondary market

Where instruments are not sted on any stock exchange or not
traded on any regulated markets valuatien techniques are used
by valuation specialists These techniques include the market
approach the income approach or the cost approach for which
sufficient and relable data 1s avallable The use of the market
approach generally consists of using comparable market
transactions or using techniques based on market observable
inputs while the use of the iIncome approach generally consists

of the net present value of estimated future cash flows,
adjusted as deemed approprate for iquidity, credit, market
and/or other nsk factors

Investments mn epen-ended funds are valued on the basis
of last avallable NAV of the units or shares of such funds

The tarr value of the derivatives 1s their quoted market price
at the balance sheet date

Hedge accounting

The Group applies cash flow hedge accounting when the
transactions meet the specified hedge accounting criteria
Te qgualify, the following condiions must be met

- formal documentation ot the relationship between the
hedging mstrument(s) and hedged tem(s) must exist at
inception,

— the hedged cash flows must he highly probable and must
present an exposure to vanatons in cash flows that could
ultimately affect profit and loss

- the effectiveness of the hadge can be reliably measured and

- the hedge must be highly effective, with effectiveness
assessed on &n ongoing basis

For quahiying cash flow hedges, the change n far value of

the effective hedging instrument 1s Initally recognised In other
comprehensive income and 1s released to profit for the year as
part of comprehensive iIncome In the same period during which
the relevant financial asset or hability affects profit or loss

Where the hedge 15 hughly effective overall, any inetfective
portion of the hadge 1s iImmediately recogmsed in prefit and
loss Where the instrument ceases to be highly effective as a
hedge, cris sold terminated or exercised hedge accounting
1s discontinued

impairment

General

The carrying ameunts ot the Group s assets are reviewed at
each balance sheet date to determing whether there 1s any
indication of impairment If any such indication exists the
asset's recoverable amount s estimated An impairment ioss 15
recogmised whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds
its recoverable amount Impairment losses are recognised in the
statement of comprehensive iIncome

The recoverable amaunt of assets 1s the greater of their farr
value less costs to sell and value In use In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to ther
present value using the Group s weighted average cost of
capital For an asset that does not generate largely independent
cash inflows, the secoverable amount 1s determined for the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs

In respect of assets other than goodwill an imparrment loss
15 reversed If there has been a change in the estmates used
to determine the recoverable ameount An impairment 10ss 1s
reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined net of depreciation or amgrtisation 1f no
ympairment loss had been recogmsed
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Goodwil

Goodwill 1s tested for impairment annually or whenever there I1s
an indication that the carrying amount may not be recoverable
based on management s jJudgements regarding the future
prospects of the business, estmates of future cash flows and
discount rates When assessing the appropriateness of the
carrying value of goodwill at year end the recoverable amount 1s
considered to be the greater of far value less costs to sell or
value in use The pre-tax discount rate applied s based on the
Group's weighted average cost of capntal after making
allowances for spectic risks

The bustness of the Group 15 managed as a single unit with
asset allocations research and other such operatonal practices
reflecting the commonality of approach across all fund themes
Therefore tor the purpaose of 1esting goodwall for impairment
the Group 1s considered to have one cash-generating unit to
which all goodwill 15 allocated and as a result no further spht
of goodwill into smaller cash-genarating units 1s possible and
the impairment review 1s conducted for the Group as a whole

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill 1s not reversed

Revenue

Revenue compnses management fees, performance fees

and other revenue Revenue Is recognised 1n the statement

of comprehensive income as and when the related services are
provided Revenue is recognised to the extent that it 1s probable
that the economic benefits will tlow to the Group and the
revenue can he relably measured Specific revenue recognitson
policies are

Management fees

Management fees net of rebates are accrued over the penad
tor which the servtce 1s provided Where management fees are
received In advance these are recognised over the period of the
provisicn of the asset management service

Performance fees

Performance fees net of rebates relate to the performance of
funds managed during the penod and are recognised when the
guantum of the fee can be estimated reliably and 1t 1s probable
that the fee will crystaliise This s usually at the end of the
performance penod or upon early redemption by a chent

Other revenue

Other revenue includes transaction, structunng and
administration fees, and reimbursement by funds of cosis
incurred by the Group This revenue Is recagnised when the
related services are provided

Distnbution costs
Distribution costs are cost of sales payable to third parties and
are recognised over the perrod for which the service I1s provided

Employee benefits

Obligations for contnbutions to defined contribution pension
plans are recogmsed as an expense In the statement of
comprehensive iIncome when payable in accordance with the
scheme particulars

Share-based payments
The Group Issues share awards to its employees under share-
based compensaticn plans

For equity-settled awards the far value of the amounts payable
10 employees 15 recognised as an expense with a carresponding
Increase In equity over the vesting penod after adjusting for
estimated number of shares that are expected to vest The fair
value 15 measured at grant date using an appropnate valuation
model, taking into account the terms and conditions upen which
the instruments were granied At each balance sheet date prior
1o vestng, the cumulative expense representing the extent to
which the vesting penod has expired and management’s best
estimate of the awards that are ultimately expected to vest s
computed The movement in cumulative expense Is recognised
In the statement of comprehensive income with a
corresponding entry within equity

For cash-setiled awards the far value of the amounts payable
to employees Is recognised as an expense with a corresponding
hability on the Group’s balance sheet The farr value 15 measured
using an appropriate valuation model, taking into account the
estimated number of awards that are expected to vest and the
terms and conditions upon which the instruments were granied
Dunng the vesting penod, the hability recognised represents the
portion of the vesting period that has expired at balance sheet
date multiplied by the fair value of the awards at that date
Movements in the liability are recognised in the statement

of comprehensive income

Operating leases

Payments payable under operating leases are recognised in
the statement of comprehensive iIncome on a straight-line
basis over the term of the lease Lease Incentives received are
recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term and are
recorded as a reduction in premises costs

Finance income and axpense

Finance income includes Interest receivable on the Group's
cash and cash equivalents, realised gains on available-for-sale
financial assets and both realised and unrealised gains on held-
for-sale assets

Finance income also includes adjustments in relation to the
Group’s conungent cons:deration habilities related to
acquisitions and charges in respect of unwinding of net present
value discounts

Finance expense includes the unwind of the discounts apphied
o contingent consideration habilities on the Group s balance
sheet using the effective interest method
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Notes to the financial statements continued

4) Significant accounting policies continued

Taxation

Tax on the profit or loss for the year compnses current
and deferred tax Tax is recognised in the staiement of
comprehensive income except 1o the extent that it relates
to items recogmised directly in equity, In which case itis
recognmised in equity

Current tax

Current tax 1s the expected tax payable on the taxable ncome
for the year using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date in the counines where the Group
operates, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
Previous years

Deferred tax

Deferred tax 1s provided using the balance sheet hiability
method providing for temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and labiliues for financial reporung
purpases and the amounts used for taxation purposes The
follow:ng differences are not prowided for

— goodwill not deductible for tax purposes and

— differences relaung to investments in subsidianes to
the extent that they will probably not reverse in the
foreseeable future

The amount of deterred tax provided Is based on the expected
manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of
assets and habiliues, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date

A deferred tax asset 1s recognised only to the extent that it1s
probable that future taxable prafits will be available against
which the asset can be utihsed Deferred tax assets are reduced
to the exient thatt 1s no longer probable that the related tax
benefit will be realised

Dividends
Dividends are recognised when shareholders’ nghts to receive
payments have been established

Equity shares

The Company’s ordinary shares of 0 01 pence each are
classified as equity instruments Ordinary shares issued by the
Company are recorded at the fair value of the cons:deration
recewved or the market price at the day of 1ssue Direct issue
costs net of tax are deducted from equity through share
premium When share capital 1s repurchased the amount of
consideration paid Including directly attributable costs Is
recognised as a change in equity

Own shares

Own shares are held by the EBT The holding of the EBT
comprses own shares that have not vested unconditionally
to employees of the Group In both the Group and Company
own shares are recorded at cost and are deducted from
retamed earnings

Treasury shares

Treasury shares are recognised in equity and are measured at
cost Consideration received for the sale of such shares s also
recognised in equity with any difference between the proceeds
from the sale and onginal cost being taken to retained earnings

Segmental information

Key management information including revenues, marging,
nvesiment performance, distnbution costs and AuM flows,
which 1s relevant to the operation of the Group s reported to
and reviewed by the Board on the basis of the investment
rnanagement business as a whole and, hence, the Group's
management considers that the Group's services and its
operations are not run ¢n a discrete geographic basis and
compnse one business segment (being prowsion of investrment
management services)

Company-only accounting policies
In addition to the above accounting policies, the following
specifically relate to the Company

Investment in subsidiaries
Investments by the Company in subsidiaries are stated at cost
less where appropriate provisions for impairment
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5} Segmental information

The location of the Group 5 non-current assets at year end other than financial Instruments deferred tax assets and post-
employment benefit assets 15 shown in the table below Disclosures ralating to revenue are in note 6

Analysis of non-current assets by geography

2013 2012

£m £m

United Kingdom 169 123
tnited States 826 968
Other 09 09

6) Revenue

Management fees are accrued throughout the year in ine with fluctuations in the levels of assets under management and
performance fees are recognised when they can be estmated reliably and 1t 1s probable that they will crystallise The Group 1s not
considered to be reliant on any single source of revenue During the year, neng of the Group's funds provided mare than 10%
(FY2011/12 two funds provided 11 3% and 10 5%} of total revenue in the year respectively when considening management fees
and performance fees on a combinad basis

Analysis of revenue by geography

2013 2012

£m £m

United Kingdom earned revenue 3201 294 8B
United States earned revenue 279 347
Other revenue 76 38

7) Foreign exchange
The foreign exchange rates which had a matenal impact on the Group s results are the US dollar the Brazihan real and Indonesian rupiah

Average rate Average rate
Closingrateas  Closing rate as year ended year ended

at 3¢ June at 30 June 30 June 30 June

2013 2012 2013 2012

US dollar 15213 15707 15690 15901
Brazihan real 33907 n/a 32216 nfa
Indonesian rupiah 15,258 nfa 15,183 nfa

The Brazihan rea! and (ndonesian rupiab did not have a maternal impact on the Group’s results for the year ended 30 June 2012

Foreign exchange differences arose as shown below

2013 2012
£m £m
Net realised and unrealised hedging {lesses)/gains (12) 01
Translation gains on non-Sterling denominated monetary assets and habilities 59 27
Total foreign exchange gains 47 28
8) Finance income and expense
2013 2012
£m £m
Finance income
Interest on cash and cash equivalents 32 37
Finance inccme 234 185
266 222
Finance expense {09 i41)
Net finance income 257 181

Included within finance income (s £10 8 miliion (FY2011/12 £18 8 million) in relation to the downward adjustment of the Group's
contingent consideration hiabilities £nil (FY2011/12 £0 4 million) receved as part of an acquisition-related purchase price adjustment
and £12 6 milion (FY2011/12 £0 4 millon} in relation to realised gans on available-for-sale and both realised and unrealised gains on
held-for-sale seed capitat and non-current financial asset Investments

Included within finance expense 1s £0 9 milhon (FY2011/12 £4 1 million) in relation to the unwind of the discounts appled to
centingent consideration llabiities on the Group's balance sheet
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Notes to the financial statements continued

9) Personnel expenses
Personnel expenses durnng the year compnised the following

2013 2012

£m Ermn

Woages and salaries 200 180
Performance-related cash bonuses 259 341
Share-based payments 284 143
Social secunty costs 42 22
Pension costs 12 15
Other costs 26 29
Total personnel expenses 823 730

Personnel expenses in respect of the year ended 30 June 2013 include an amount of £0 6 million (FY2011/12 £0 6 nmullion) that
has been waived by Directors and employees in earlier penods with an eguivalent amount to be paid to charity in the financial year
to 30 June 2013

Number of employees
The number of employees of the Group (iInciuding Directors) during the reporting year all categonsed as investment management
perscnnel, was as follows

Average for Average for

the yearended the year andad At At

30.June2013  30June 2012 30 June2013 30 June 2012

Number Number Number Number

Total employees 280 251 291 257

Directors’ remuneration
Disclosures of Directors remuneration duning the year as required by the Companies Act 2006 are included in the Remuneration
repori on pages 54 to 66

There are retirement benefits accruing to two Directors under a defined contrbution scheme (FY2011/12 two)

10) Share-based payments
The total share-based payments-related cost recognised by the Group in the statement of cornprehensive income 1s shown below

2013 2012
Group £m m
Omnibus Plan 248 89
US subsidiary operating agreement 0z —
Total related 10 compensation awards 251 89
Related to acquisiion of Ashmeore Equities Investment Managemeni {(US) L L C (formerly Ashmore EMM
LLC) 33 54
Total share-based payments expense 284 143

The total expense recogmsed for the year in respect of equity-settled share-based payment transactions was £29 0 mullion
{FY2011/12 £10 4 milhon)
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The Ashmore First Discretionary Share Option Scheme (Option Scheme)

The Option Scheme was set up in October 2000 Options 1ssued under the Option Scheme typically have a life of ten years and vest
after five years from date of grant The pro rata proportion of the fair value of options at each reporting year end has been accounted
for on an equity-settled basis No further aptions will be 1ssued under the Option Scheme

Share options outstanding under the Option Scheme were as follows

Weghted Weighted

2013 average 2012 average

Number of exercise pnce Number of  exercise price

Group and Company options pence ophons pence
At the beginning ot the year 1,898,221 3320 4,228,071 26815
Exercised (1,394,471) 3251 (2,330,850 2042
Forfeited - - - -
Cotiens outstanding at year end 503,750 35N 1,898,221 3320
Options exercisable 503,750 3511 1,898,221 3320

The weighted average share pnce on the date options were exercised dunng the year ended 30 June 2013 was 362 48p
{FY2011/12 368 92p)

Weighted average remaining contractual life of outstanding options

At 30 June At 30 June

Group and Company 2013 2012
Quistanding cptions 503,750 1898221
Weighted average exercise price 3% 11p 3320p
Weighted average remaining contracted fe lyears) 263 356

Range of exercise prices for share options outstanding at the end of the year

Group and Company 2013 2012
Exercise price per share (p) Exercise penods Number Number
10 0C-20 GO 9 December 2010 —- 8 December 2015 328,750 1578750
20 00-30 00 27 Apnl 2011 - 26 Apnl 2018 125,000 143 000
170 00-18D 00 8 December 2011 = 7 December 20186 50,000 176471

503,750 1,898,221

There were ne new share options granted durning the year ended 30 June 2013 (FY2013/12 none)

The Executive Omnibus Incentive Plan (Omnibus Plan}

The Ommibus Plan was intreduced pnor to the Campany hsting in October 2006 and provides for the grant of share awards market
value options, prermium cost options, discounted options linked options phantems and/or nil cost options to employees The
Omnibus Plan will also allow bonuses to be deferred in the form of share awards with or without matching shares These elements
can be used singly or In combiation Awards granted under the Omnibus Plan typically vest after five years from date of grant
with the exception of bonus awards which vest after the shorter of five years from date of grant or on the date of termination

of employment Awards under the Ormnibus Plan are accounted for as equity-settled with the exception of phantoms which

are classihed as cash-settled

The share-based payments relating to the Omnibus Plan represent the combined cash and equity-settled payments

Total expense by year awards were granted

Group and Company 2013 2012
Year of grant £m Em
2007 - (24)
2008 10 an
2009 10 05
2010 18 17
2011 33 21
2012 18 123
2013 159 -

248 89
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Notes to the financial statements continued

10) Share-based payments continued
Awards outstanding under the Omnibus Plan were as follows

1) Equity-settled awards

2013 2013 2012 2012
Number of Woeighted Number of Weghted
shares subject average share shares subect  average share
Group and Company to awards pnice 10 awards price
Restricted share awards
At the beginning of the year 15,877,630 £290 15,988,966 £2 42
Granted 4,836,236 £329 4834808 £393
Vested (2,333,276) £372 (1,108813) £333
Forfented (309,784) £345 (3,837,331) £239
Awards outstanding at year end 18,070,806 £298 15,877,630 £2 90
Bonus share awards
At the beginning of the year 4,906,912 £301 3450279 £2 61
Granied 1,430,420 £329 1559408 £393
Vested (1,203,234) £3 80 (102 775) £373
Forferted - - - -
Awards outstanding at year end 5,134,098 £310 4206912 £3 M
Matching share awards
At the beginning of the year 4,906,912 £301 3,450,279 £2 61
Granted 1,430,420 £329 1,559408 £393
Vested {1,162,885}) £3 81 5213) £3 61
Forfeited {40,349) £2 95 {97 562) £334
Awards outstanding at year end 5,134,098 £310 4,906,912 £3 01
Total 28,339,002 £302 25691454 £2 95
n) Cash-settled awards
2013 2013 2012 2012
Number of Wewghted Nurnber of Weighted
shares subject  avernge share  shares subject  average share
Group and Company to awards pnce to awards price
Restricted share awards
At the beginning of the year 1,806,068 £354 1,265622 £2 92
Granted 409,405 £329 908 239 £393
Vested {1,985) £33 {108 225) £329
Forferted {8,170) £394 {259,568} £254
Awards outstanding at year end 2,205,318 £349 1806068 £354
Bonus share awards
At the beginning of the year 1,300,075 £355 700151 £315
Granted 296,120 £329 638116 £393
Vested - - - -
Forfeited - - (38,192) £270
Awards outstanding at year end 1,596,195 £350 1300075 £355
Matching share awards
At the beginning of the year 1,300,075 £355 700,151 £315
Granted 296,120 £329 638 116 £393
Vested - - - -
Forieited - - (38 192) £2 70
Awards outstanding at year end 1,596,195 £350 1,300,075 £355
Total 5,397,708 £350 4406218 £355
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m} Total awards

2013 2013 2012 2012
Number of Weighted Number of Weighted
shares subject average share shares subject  average share
Group and Company to awards pnce to awards prce
Restricted share awards
At the beginning of the year 17,683,698 £296 17,254,688 £2 46
Granted 5,245,641 £329 5743047 £393
Vested {2,335,261) £272 (1,217,038) £333
Forfeited (317,954) £346 (4,096,899) £2 40
Awards outstanding at year end 20,276,124 £304 17683698 £296
Bonus share awards
At the beginning of the year 6,206,987 £312 4150430 £270
Granted 1,726,540 £329 2,197,524 £393
Vestad {1,203,234) £3 80 {102,775) £373
Forferted - - {38,192) £270
Awards outstanding at year end 6,730,293 £319 6,206 987 £312
Matching share awards
At the beginning of the year 6,206,987 £312 4150430 £270
Granted 1,726,540 £329 2197524 £393
Vested (1,162,885) £381 (5,213) £3 61
Forfeited (40,349) £2 85 (135,754) £316
Awards outstanding at year end 6,730,293 £319 6206987 £312
Total 33,736,710 £310 30,097,672 £304

The fair value of awards granted under the Omnibus Plan 1s determined by the average Ashmore Group plc closing share pnce for

the five business days prior to grant

Where the grant of restricted and matching share awards 1s linked to the annual bonus process the far value of the awards 1s spread
over a period including the current financial year and the subsequent five years to therr release date when the grantee becomes
unconditionally entitled ¢ the underlying shares The fair value of the remaining awards Is spread over the period from date of grant

to the release date

The hability ansing from cash-settled awards under the Omnibus Plan at the end of the year and reported within trade and other
payables in the consolidated balance sheet 1s £12 Omilhon (30 June 2012 £8 7 mullion) of wiich £nii (30 June 2012 £ril) relates

to vested awards

The Approved Company Share Option Plan (CSOP)

The CSOP was also introduced prior 1o the Cormpany histing in QOctober 2006 and 1s an option scheme providing for the grant of
market value options to employees with the aggregate value of outstanding cptions not exceeding £30,000 per employee The
CSOP qualifies as a UK tax approved company share option plan and approval thereto has been abtained frem HMRC To date

there have been no awards made under the CSOP
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Notes to the financial statements continued

10} Share-based payments continued

Other arrangements

US subsidiary operating agreement

Under the terms of a US subsidiary’s operating agreement certain employees are eligible to receive part of therr vanable
compensation in the form of partnership units These awards which typically vest five years from the date of grant depending

on the satisfaction of service conditions, are accounted for as equity-settled share-based payments The far value of awards
granted 15 based on the equity valuation of the subsidiary at the date of grant Upon vesting, the holders are entitled to receive units
in the subsidiary

Share awards outstanding at year end under the operatng arrangement were as follows

2013 2012

2013 Weighted 2 Waighted

Number of average share Number of  average share

shares subject price  shares subject price

Group toawards  [US dollars) 10 awards (US dollars)
At the beginning of the year - - - -
Granted 54,352 $32 05 - -
Vested - - - -
Forfeited - - - -
Awards outstanding at year end 54,352 $3205 - -

Phantom Bonus FPlan

In August 2012 the Phantom Bonus Plan a cash-settled share-based payment plan, was set up 1o provide long-term incentives to
certain employees The units typically vest after 5 years from date of grant, conungent upen continued employment Units awarded
under the plan carry no voting nights The fair value of units granted under the plan i1s determined with reference to the equity
valuation of the underlying employing entity

13,229 awards were granted during the year and none were forfeited or vested during the year As at 30 June 2013 13,229 awards
were outstanding and the related hability reported within trade and other payabtes in the consolidated and Company balance sheet s
£0 1 mulien of which Enil relates to vested awards

Acquisition of Ashmore Equities Investment Management (US) L L C (formerly Ashmore EMM LLC)

On acquisition of Ashmore Equities Investment Management (US) LL C  employees and management held unvested shares
representing 17 9% of its partnership shares These awards, which vest after five years depending on the satisfaction of service
condiions, are accounted for as equity-settted share-based payments in accordance with IFRS 2 Share-based payment which results
in an annual charge 1o the statement of comprehensive income during the perod of vesting Upon vesting the holders are entitled
to receve shares in Ashmore Equities Investment Managerment (US) L L C which may be exchanged for shares in Ashmore Group
plc or cash at the discretion of the Group The grant date fair value was based on the intninsic value proportionate with the value
impled from the purchase consideration paid by the Group to acquire Ashmore Equities Investment Management (US)LL C

Durning the year, no awards were granted (FY2011/12 none) 5 463 awards vested (FY2011/12 none) and 71 587 awards
(FY2011/12 16,760 awards) were forfeited 317,400 awards (30 June 2012 394,450 awards} are outstanding as at year end

11} Other expenses
Other expenses consist of the following

2013 2012

£m £m

Travel 60 59
Professional fees 2% 40
Information technology and communications 52 43
Deferred acquisition costs {note 17) 17 21
Amortisation of intangible assets (note 15} 81 62
Imparment of intangible assets (note 15) 10 12
Operating leases 35 28
Prermises-related costs 12 17
Insurance 09 09
Auditors’ remuneration {see below) 11 09
Depreciation of praperty, plant and eguipment [note 16} 24 16
Other expenses 39 28
439 344
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Auditors’ remuneration

2013 2012
£fm fm
Fees for statutory audit services
- Fees payable to the Company’s auditor for the audit of the Group's accounts 02 02
~ Fees payabie to the Company’s auditor and 1ts asscciates for the audit of the Company's subsidianes
pursuant to leg:slation 03 02
Fees for non-audit services
- Fees payable to the Company s auditor and its associates for tax services 03 02
— Fees payable to the Company's auditor and its associates for other services 03 03
11 09
12) Taxation
Analysis of tax charge for the year
2013 2012
£m Em
Current tax
UK corporation tax on profits for the year 567 565
QOverseas corporation tax charge 39 24
Adjustments in respect of prior years - (16)
606 573
Deferred tax
Ongination and reversal of temporary differences (see note 12} (52) -
Adjustments In respect of prior year 02
Eftect of changes in corporation 1ax rates 06 -
Tax expense for the year 56 0 575
Factors affecting tax charge for the year
2013 2012
£m £rm
Profit before tax 2576 2432
Profit on ordinary activiies multiplied by the blended UK tax rate of 23 75% (FY2011/12 25 5%) 612 620
Effects of
Non-deductible expenses 106 21
Deduction In respect of vested shares/exercised options (Part 12 Corperation Tax Act 2009) 41) {01
Deferred tax anising from ongination and reversal of temporary differences [52) -
Overseas taxes, net of overseas 1ax relief (13) 24
Non-taxable income
Write-off of contingent consideration {2 6) (59}
Other non-taxable Income (22) -
Tax reliet on amortisation and impairment of goodwill and intangibles {(17) (16)
Effect of deferred tax balance from changes in the UK corporation tax rate 06 -
Ciher items 07 -
Adjustments in respect of pnor years - {14)
Tax expense for the year 56 0 575

Non-deductble expenses mainly compnse non-deductible IFRS 2 accounting charges with respect to share-based compensation of

£6 1 million and disallowable amortisation and imparment of intangibles charges of £4 0 million
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Notes to the financial staternents continued

11) Other expenses continued
Charge recognised in equity/other comprehensive income

2013 2012

£m £m

Current tax cn avallable-for-sale financial assets - D1
Deferred tax on available-for-sale financial assets - 02
Deferred tax on share-based payments 07 17
07 20

A reduction to the main rate of UK corporation tax from 24% to 23% was substantively enacted on 3 July 2012 and became
effective from 1 Apnl 2013 The etfect of this rate reducuon has been reflected in the figures set out abeve and the 23% rate used
in the calculation of the UK's deferred tax assets and liabiliies The rate is set to fall to 21% with effect from 1 Apnil 2014 and
thereafter to 20% from 1 Apnf 2015 These rate reductions were substantively enacted on 2 July 2013

13) Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share s calculated by dividing the profit after tax for the financial penod attnibutable 1o equity holders of the
parent of £202 2 milhion {(FY2011/12 £181 5 milion) by the weaighted average number of ordinary shares in 1ssue dunng the period,
excluding own shares

Ciluted earmings per share (s based on basic earnings per share adjusted for all dilutive potential ordinary shares There 1s no difference
between the profit for the year atinbutable to equity holders of the parent used in the basic and diluted earnings per share calculations

Reconcilation of the weighted average number of shares used in calculating basic and diluted earnings per share is shown below

2013 2012

Nurnber of Number of

ordinary shares  ordinary shares

Weighted average number of ardinary shares used in the calculation of basic earmnings per share 674,772,956 676 460 B21
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares — share optionsfawards 30,328,790 26 845937

Weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the calculation of diluted earnings per share 705,106,746 703 306,758

14) Dividends
Dwidends paid in the year

2013 2012
Company £m £m
Final dvidend for FY2011/12 - 10 75p (FY2010/11 10 34p) 750 716
Intenim dividend for FY2012/13 - 4 35p {FY2011/12 4 25p) 302 294
1058 2 1010
In addion the Group paid £5 7 mithon (FY2011/12 £5 9 millien} of dividends to non-controlling interests
Dwvidends declared/proposed in respect of the year
2013 2012
Company pence pence
Intenm dwvidend declared per share 435 425
Final dividend proposed per share 1175 1075
1610 1500

0On 9 September 2013 the Board proposed a final dividend of 11 76p per share for the year ended 30 June 2013 This has not been
recognised as a liability of the Group at the year end as 1t has not yet been approved by shareholders Based on the number of
shares in 1ssue at the year end which qualify to receive a dividend, the total amount payable would be £81 2 million
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15} Goodwill and intangible assets

Furd Crther
management Brand ntangible

Goodwill relatonships name assets Total
Group Em £ £rm £m £m
Cost
At 30 June 2011, 30 June 2012 and 30 June 2013 575 395 18 26 1014
Accumulated amortisation and impairment
A1 30 June 2011 - Q4 - @1) {05)
Amorusation charge for year - 51 02 09 62
Impairment charge for the year - - - (12} {12
At 30 June 2012 - {(55) 02 22 (79
Amarusation charge for the year - {48) - 03 (51)
Impairment charge for the year - (s 4) {16) - {110)
At 30 June 2013 {19 7) {1 8) {25) {24 0)
Neat book value
At 30 June 2011 587 40 1 18 286 1032
Accumulated amortisation and iImpairment movement for the year - (51} 02 21} {74)
FX revaluaton through reserves* 13 08 01 01 23
At 30 June 2012 600 358 17 06 981
Accumulated amorusation and impairment movement for the year - {14 2) {16) {03) {16 1)
FX revaluation through reserves*® 17 07 {0 1) - 23
At 30 June 2013 617 223 - 03 843

* FX revaluation through reserves is a result of the retranslation of US dollar-denominated intangibles and goodwaill

Company Gmméﬂ
Cost

At the beginning and end of the year 41
Net carrying amount at 30 June 2012 and 2013 41
Goodwill

The goodwill balance wathin the Group relates pnncipally 1o the acquisition of Ashmore Equities Investment Management (USILLC
In May 2011

The goodwill balance within the Company relates to the acquisition of the business from ANZ in 1939

The annual impairment review of goodwill was underiaken for the year ending 30 June 2013 The recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit 10 which goedwill has been allocated was determined by a vatue in use calculation The calculation was based on the
forecast future profrtabulity and cash flow projections of the cash-generating umi over a i0-year penod which management believes
15 the most appropnate umescale to review and consider perfarmance Budgets and plans approved by management cover the first
three years of the 10-year projections A pre-tax discount rate of 13 0% based on the Group's cost weighted cost of capital was
used n calculating value in use Adjustments required in deterrmining the discount rate from the weighted cost of capital were not
considered to have a matenal impact No growih was assumed in determining projected cash flows beyond the period covered by
the approved budgets and plans

Based on management’s value 1n use calculation the recoverable amount was in excess of the carrying amount and no rmparrment
was therefore deemed necessary An increase in the discount rate by 5 0% (30 June 2012 5 0%) would not result in the
recoverable amount being lower than the carrying amount

Fund management relationships and the brand name
Intangible assets are compiised of fund management relationships related 1o profit expected to be earned from clients of Ashmore
Equities Investment Management {US) L L C acguired in 2011 and its brand name

Dunng the year to 30 June 2013, as a result of the impairment indicator of the loss of certain histoncal fund management clients and
rebranding of the equities business, 1t was 1dentified that some of the Group’s fund management relationships and brand name were
Iikely to be impaired As a result, a review of the recoverable amounts of the {und management relationships and the brand name

intangible assets was undertaken duning the vear The recoverable amount of each intangible asset was derived from the cumulative
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Notes to the financial statements continued

15) Goodwill and intangible assets continued

pre-tax net earnings anucipated to be generated over the remaining useful economic kife discounted to present value using the
Group's weighted average cost of capital of 13 0% per annum Curnulative net earnings associated with the fund management
relationships intangible asset were denved from the annual operating profit contribution that would arise as a result of the remaining
fund management relationships, adjusted for investment performance and investor atintion Cumulative net earnings associated
with the brand name intangible asset were denved from the forecast annual royalties that would be earned as a result of the
remaining assets under management, adjusted for investment performance and investor attrition

Both intangible assets were determined to be impatred as a result of the recoverable amounts being lower than the carrying values
at the date of the timpairment test and consequently impaired

A combined impairment charge of £11 0 mulion during the year (FY2011/12 £nil} has been included within other expenses in the
Group's consolidated statement of comprehensive income Individual imparment charges in the year for the fund management
relaticnships and the brand name intangible assets were £9 4 million (FY2011/12 £nul) and £1 6 million (FY2011/12 £nil) respectively

The remaining amortsation pertod for fund management relationships is six years {30 June 2012 seven years)

Other intangible assets

In addition 1n order 1o incentivise Amundi, who were formerly a shareholder in Ashmore Equities Investment Management {US)
LLC toretan existing AuM within the business and to further increase AuM there 1s an incentive fee payable alter three years
tied to the level of such AuM at that time  As the purpose of this 1s to benefit the Group going forward, a corresponding intangible
asset was recognised During the year to 30 June 2013 there has been no dewnward adjustment to the net present value of the
incentive fee payable to Amundi at the end of the agreement Conseguently managemeni have concluded that the associated
intangible asset 1s not impaired No imparment charge (FY2011/12 £1 2 million} has been included wathin other expenses in the
Group's consolhdated statement of comprehensive iIncome reducing the carrying value of the intangible asset to its recoverable
amount Other intangible assets are being amortised over a three-year perod up to May 2014

16) Property, plant and equipment

2013 2012
Foctures, Fixtures
fitings and fitirggs and
equipment equipment
Group £m £m
Cost
At the beginning of the year 104 81
Additions 19 2B
Disposals {12) {03
At the end of the year 11 104
Accumulated depreciation
At the beginning of the year 62 47
Depreaation charge for the year 24 16
Disposals (12) 01)
At the end of the year 74 62
Net book value at 30 June 37 42
2013 2012
Foxtures, Fixtures
fittings and fitungs and
equipment equpment
Company £m £m
Cost
At the beginning of the year 68 55
Additions 07 13
At the end of the year 75 68
Accumulated depreciation
At the beginning of the year 43 32
Depreciation charge for year 18 11
At the end of the year 61 43
Net book value at 30 June 14 25
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17} Deferred acquisition costs

2013 2012
Group £m fm
Cost o
At the begmning of the year 143 144 §
Deferred acquisiion costs recovered (2 4} on %
At the end of the year 19 143 g
<
Accumulated charge %
At the beginning of the year 96 75
Charge for the year {note 11} 17 21
At the end of the year 13 96
Carrying value at the end of the year 06 47
The deferred acquisition costs shown above are in respect of the launch of Ashmore Global Opportuniies Limited (AGOL), a publicly :;Ei
hsted closed-ended investment company mcorporated in 2007, and are being charged to the Group’s statement of comprehensive g
INCOME QVET SEVEN years g
During the year, the Group recovered £2 4 million of deferred acquisition costs related to the managed wind down of AGOL which 8
was proposed and approved by AGOL shareholders in March 2013 The wind down entitles the Group to receive a reimbursement
of certain launch costs which were borne at the tme of AGOL's IPO 1n 2007
18) Trade and other receivables
Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
£fm fm £m £m
Current g
Trade debtors mo 558 18 26 §
Prepayments 28 21 17 10 §
Loans due from subsidiaries - - 2495 1998 ®
Amounits due from subsidianes - - 20 68
Other recevables 35 62 28 50
773 641 2578 2152
Non-current
Loans due from subsichanes - - 189 173
- - 189 173
Total trade and other recervables 773 641 2767 2325 g
Group trade debtors in¢lude all billed and unbilled management fees due to the Group at 30 June 2013 in respect of investment 68-_,
management services provided to that date §
143
z
&
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Notes to the financial statements continued

19) Deferred taxation

Deferred tax assets and Iabilities recognised by the Group and Company at year end are attributable to the following

2013 2012
Other Other
temporary  Share-based temporary Share-based
differences payments Total differences payments Total
Group £m £m £m £m £m fm
Deferred tax assets 77 133 210 14 137 151
Deferred tax habilmes {30) - (30) {10 - {10
47 133 180 04 137 141
2013 2012
Other Other
temporary  Share-based emporary Share-based
differences paymemts Totat differences payments Total
Company £m £€m £m £m £m £m
Deferred tax assets 04 133 137 - 137 137
Movement of deferred tax balances
The movement in the deferred tax balances between the balance sheet dates has been reflected in equity or the statement of
comprehensive income as follows
QOther
temporeny Share-based
differences payments Tatal
Group £m £m £m
AL 1 July 2011 {186 179 163
Creditedficharged) 10 the consolidated statement of comprehensive incorne 22 {2 5} {03
Charged 10 equity 02 (7 (19
At 30 June 2012 04 137 141
Credited to the consolidated statement of comprehensive tncome 43 03 46
Charged 10 equity - {07) 07}
At 30 June 2013 47 133 180
Other
temporary Share-based
differences payments Total
Company £m £m £m
At 1 July 2011 - 179 179
Charged to the siaterment of comprehensive income - 23 {23)
Charged to equity - (19) (19
At 30 June 2012 - 137 137
Credited to the statement of comprehensive income 04 03 07
Charged to equity - {07) 07
At 30 June 2013 04 133 137

Please refer to the details in note 12 in relation to future changes to the UK corporation tax rate The overall effect of a further tax

reduction in this rate from 23% 1o 20% if applied 1o the deferred tax balance above as at 30 June 2013 would be to further
decrease the Group deferred tax assets by approximately £1 8 milhion and the Company deferred 1ax assets by £1 8 mitiion
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20} Fair value of financial instruments

There are no matenal differences betwaen the carrying amounts of financial assets and labilities and their fair values at the balance

sheet date
Fair value hierarchy @
The Group measures far values using the following fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of inputs used in making the %
measurements ©
— Level 1 Valuation is based upon a quoted market price in an acuve market for an identical instrument %
— Level 2 Valuation techmiques are based upon observable inputs, either directly {1 e as prices) or indirectly {i & denved from prices) =
— Level 3 Valuation techniques use significant unobservable inputs g
The farr value hierarchy of financial instruments which are carned at fair value at year end (s summansed below
2013 2012
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£m £m £m Em £m £m £m £m
Financial assets &
Investrment securities 407 90 - 4937 278 328 - 606 <_::§‘|
Nen-current financial assets held-for-sale - 1049 - 104 9 - 499 - 499 g
Avallable-for-sale financial assets 04 552 - 556 04 542 - B4 6 &
Non-current asset iInvestments - 91 - 91 - 56 - 56
Denvative inancial instruments - - - - - 05 - 05
411 1782 - 2133 2872 1430 - 1712
Financial habilities
Third-party interests in consolidated funds 80 as - 128 48 57 - 105
Derivative financial instruments - 21 - 21 15 - 15
Naon-current financial labilities held-for-sale - 269 - 269 - 151 - 151 Py
Contingent consideration - - 05 05 - - 107 107 %
90 328 05 423 48 223 107 378 %
(o]
Level 3 financial abilities relate to contingent consideration payable in connection with the acquisiticn of Ashmore Equities
Investment Management (US) L LC 1n 2011 The movement and valuation technigues used to estimate 1ts farr value 1s described
in note 26
There were no transfers between Level 1 Level 2 and Leve! 3 duning the year (FY2011/12 ncne)
There were no material unhsted investrment securities requinng use of valuauon techniques
y
=2
%}
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Notes to the financial statements continued

21) Seed capital Investments

Seed caprtal Investments represent interests taken up by the Group in funds for which the Group 15 the Investmant manager to
provide inibial scale and faciktate marketing of the funds to third-party investors The movements of seed capital nvestments and
related items during the year ended 30 June 2013 are as fcliows

Investment

Net secunties Other Thirc-party

noncurrent  Available-for frelsting to relating to interests n
financial assets sale financial consclidated consolidated consolidated Non-current
held-for sale assets funds) funds)* funds INVestments
Group Fm Fm £m £m fm £m
Carrying amount at 30 June 2011 46 2 14 - - - 35
Net transfers — held-for-sale to available-for-sale (10 0) 100 - - - -
Net transfers — held-for-sale to consolidated funds (32 4) - 361 38 {7 5) -
Net purchases, disposals and fair value changes 310 32 245 - 30 21
Carrying amount at 30 June 2012 348 54 6 60 6 38 {10 5) 56
Net transfers — held-for-sale to consoldated funds (25 2) - 293 07 {4 8) -
Net transfers — held-for-sale to available-for-sale (4 8) 48 - - - -
Net transfers - consclidated funds to available-for-sale - 236 {55 0) 2mM 334 -
Net purchases, disposals and fair value changes 732 (27 4) 148 07 (30 9} 35
Carrying amount at 30 June 2013 780 556 497 32 (12 8) 91

* Relates to cash dervatives and other assets contained in consolidated funds that are not investment securities

a) Non-current assets and non-current habilities held-for-sale

Where Group companies inject seed capital Into funds operated and controlled by the Group and the Group 1s actively seeking to
reduce its investrment and 1t 1s considered highly prabable that it will relnquish control within a year the interests in the funds are
treated as held-for-sale and are recegnised as financial assets and hatilities held-for-sale Durning the year, six funds (FYZ011/12
three) were seeded in this manner met the above critena and consequently the assets and habilities of these funds were initially
classified as held-for-sale

The non-current assets and fiabiies held-for-sale at 30 June 2013 were as follows

2013 2012

£m fm

Non-current financial assets helg-for-sale 1049 499
Non-current financial lisbilities held-for-sale (26 9) {18 1)
Seed capital investments classified as being held-for-sale 780 348

Investments held for less than a year cease to be classified as held-for-sale when they are no longer controlled by the Group A loss
of control may happen either through sale of the investment and/or dilution of the Group’s holding When investments cease to be
ciassified as held-for-sale they are classified as available-for-sale financial assets (see below) One such investment (FY2011/12 two)
was transferred to avallable-for-sale assets after the Group reduced its interests following investment inflows from third parties
There was no iImpact on net assets or profit or loss as a result of the reclassification

If the fund remains under the control of the Group for more than one year from the onginal Investment date it will cease to be
classifted as held-for-sale and will be conschdated Iine-by-line after considening the proximity of loss of contro! and the extant to
which consolidation of the fund on a line by line basis would be material to the presentation of the Group's financial statements
During the year two such funds (FY2011/12 six) with an aggregate carrying amount of £25 2 million (FY2011/12 £32 4 million}
were transferred to consolidated funds There was no 'mpact on net assets or profit or loss as a result of the transfer

As the Group considers i1tself to have cne segment (refer to note 1), no additionai segmental disclosure of held-for-sale assets
or habilities 1s applicable

Gains and losses in relation to held-for-sale investments are included within finance Income and expenses respectively (refer to note §)
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b) Consalidated funds
Consolidated funds represent seed capital investments where the Group has held 1ts position for a period greater than one year and
Its interest represents a controlling stake in the fund These funds are consolidated hne by line

2013 2012

£fm Em

Investment secunties 497 606
Cash and cash equivalents 16 26
Net denvatve hinancial nstrurnents - 03
GCther 16 09
Third-party inierests in consohdated funds (12 8) (10 5)
Consolidated seed capital investments 401 539

Investment secunties include Iisted and unlisted equities and debt secuntes Other includes trade recewvables, trade payables and accruals

Included within the consolidated statement of comprehensive income 1s a3 net gain of £4 6 mullion (FY2011/12 £0 5 mullion) relating
to the Group's share of the results of the individual staternents of comprehensive income for each of the consolidated funds This
includes finance income of £1 6 million (FY2011/12 £1 3 million} and £4 9 rmullion gain (FY2011/12 £0 4 million loss} on investment
secuniues offset by £1 2 milion {FY2011/12 £0 4 million) allocated to third-party interests in consolidated funds and expenses of
£0 7 milion (FY2011/12 £nl)

As of 30 June 2013 the Group's consolidated funds were domiciled in Brazil, Luxembourg and the United States

c) Available-for-sale financial assets
Avarlable-for-sale financial assets held at farr value at 30 June 2013 comprnised the following

2013 2

£m fm

Equities - listed 04 04
Equity funds = unhsted 106 30
Debt funds - unlisted 4486 B12
Seed capital classified as avallable-for-sale 556 B4 6

d) Non-current asset investments
Non-current asset iInvestments relate 1o the Group s holding in closed-end funds and are classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

2013 012
£m £m
Nen-current asset investments at far valus 921 56

MNon-current asset investments relate to the Group s holding in closed-end funds and are classified as financial assets at fair value
through proiis or loss Fair value 1s assessed by taking account of the extent to which potential difution of gains or losses may anse
as a result of additional investors subscribing to the fund where the final close of a fund has not occurred

tncluded within finance income 1s £1 2 mulbon (FY2011/12 £0 7 million) of gasns on the Group's non-current asset investments

MaIAIaAC DIalens

QoueLLIOpRY ‘

A2UBUIDACD

Siuawalels jeue

Ashmore Group plc | Annual Report and Accounts 2013 97




Notes to the financial statements continued

22} Financial instrument sk management

Group

The Group 15 subject to strategic, business Investment operational and treasury risks throughout 1S business as discussed In the

Busmess Review This note discusses the Group's exposure to and management of the following principal nsks which anse from

financial instruments 1t uses credit nsk lquidity sk, interest rate nisk, foreign exchange nsk and price nsk Where the Group holds I
units In Investment funds, classified as either held-for-sale avallable-for-sale or non-current asset Investment financial assets, the |
related financial instrument nisk disclosures in the note below categorise exposures based on the Group's direct interest in those
funds without looking through to the nature of underlying securues

Risk management 1s the direct responsibility of the Group’s senior management as noted in the Corporate Governance report on
pages 44 to 46

Capital management
It 1s the Group's policy that all entities within the Group have sufficient capital to meet regulatory and working capital requirements
and conducts regular reviews of its capital requirements relative to 1ts capita! resources

As the Group 1s regulated by the United Kingdom’s Financial Conduct Authonty {FCAI, it 1s required to maintain appropriate capital

and perform regular calculauons of capsal reguirements This includes development of an Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment

Process (ICAAP), based upon the FCA's methodologies under the Capital Requirements Directive An overview of the ICAAP can be

tound on our website at www ashmoregroup com The Group's Pillar 3 disclosures coverning the year to 30 June 2013 indicated that

the Group had surplus capital of £453 8 million (year 1o 30 June 2012 surplus of £381 8 million} over the level of capital required to

meet operational nisks under a Pillar Il assessment The objective of the assessment is 1o check that the Group has adequate capital

to manage Wenufied nsks and the process includes conducting stress tests to idenuly capital and liquidity requirements under '
different future scenanos including a potential downturn

All regulated entities with the Group have complied with regulatory requirements and filings that apply in the junsdictions they operate
Equity as referred to in the Group s balance sheet, 1s the capital for the business

Credit nsk
The Group has exposure 1o credit nisk from its normal activities where the nisk 1s that a counterparty will be unable to pay in full
amounts when due

Exposure to credit nisk 1s monitored on an ongoing basis by senior management and the Group's Risk Management and Control
team The Group has a counterparty and cash management policy in place which, 1n addition to other controls restrnicts exposure to
any single counterparty by setting exposure mits and requinng approval and diversification of counterparty banks and other financial
instituttons  The Group’s maximum exposure to credit nisk 1s represented by the carrying value of its financial assets The table
below lists financial assets subject to credit risk

2013 2012

Notes £m £m

Investment securities 21 497 606
Non-current financial assets held-for-sale 21 1049 499 |

Avallable-for-sale financial assets 21 556 546

BCenvative financal Instruments - g5

Trade and other receivables 18 773 641

Cash and cash equivalents 3955 3466

Total 683 0 5763

Investment secunties, denvative financial nstruments non-current financial assets held-for-sale and available-for-sale financial asseis
expose the Group to credit nsk from varous counterparties which 1s monitored and reviewed by the Group

The Group's cash and cash equivalents, compnised of short-term deposits with banks and hguidity funds, are predeminantly held
with counterpartes with credit ratings ranging from A- to AAAm as at 30 Juneg 2013 (30 June 2012 A to AAAM)

All trade and other receivables are considered to be fully recoverable and none were overdue at year end {30 June 2012 none)
They include fee debtars that arise principally within the Group s investment management business They are monitored regularly
and historically, default levels have been insignificant, and unless a client has withdrawn funds there 15 an ongoing relationship
between the Group and the chent There 1s no significant concentration of credit nsk in respect of fees owing from clients

Liquidity risk
Liquidity nsk 1s the risk that the Group cannot meet 1ts abligations as they fall due or can only do so at a cost

In order to manage inherent lguidity nsk there 15 a iquidity policy wathin the Group to ensure that there 1s suficient access 1o funds
to cover all forecast committed requirements for the next 12 months
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The matunity profile of the Group’s contractual undiscounted financial iabilties 1s as follows

At 30 June 2013
More than

Within 1 year 1-5 years Syears Total
£m £m £m £m
Non-current liabiiues held-for-sale 269 - - 269
Third-panty iInterests in consalidated funds 128 - - 28
Dernvauve financial instruments 21 - - 21
Nen-current trade and other payables - - - 05
Current trade and other payables 941 - - 9“1
1359 - - 1359

At 30 June 2012

More than

Within 1 year 1-5 years 5 years Total
Em £m Em £m
Non-current habiities held-for-sale 151 - - 151
Third-party interests in consoldated funds 105 - - 105
Dervative financial instruments 15 - - 15
Non-current trade and other payables - 58 - 58
Current trade and other payables 871 - - 871
114 2 58 - 1200

Detalls on leases and other commitments are provided i note 30

Interest rate risk
Interest rate nisk 1s the nisk that the tair value or future cash flows of financial iInstruments will fiuctuate because of changes in
market interest rates

The principal interest rate risk 1s the nsk that the Group will sustain a reduction in interest revenue through adverse movements in
Interest rates This relates to bank deposits held 1n the ordinary course of business The Group has a cash management policy which
requires management to moniior cash levels and returns within set parameters on a continuing basis

Bank and similar depostts held at year end are shown on the consolidated balance sheet as cash and cash equivalents The effective
interest earned on bank and similar deposits during the year 15 given In the table below

Effective interest rates applicable to bank deposits

2013 2012
% %
Deposits with banks and hquidity funds 085 079

Deposits with banks and higuidity funds are repnced at intervals of less than one year

At 30 June 2013 1f interest rates over the year had been 50 basis points higher or 50 basis points lower (30 June 2012 50 basis
points higher or 50 basis peints lower) with all other vanables held constant, post-tax profit for the year would have been £1 5 million
higher/£1 5 million lower (FY2011/12 £1 3 nulhion higher/E1 2 millicn lower), mainly as a result of higher/lower interest on cash
balances An assumption that the far value of assets and liabilities will not be affected by a change in interest rates was used In the
model to calculate the effect on post-tax profits

The Group Is also exposed to interest rate risk from seed capntal investments The following table provides a summary of the
Group s direct exposure to interest rate risk from investments held by the Group as investment secunties In consohdated funds

Investment securities

Fixed rate Floating rate Other Total

£ fm frn fm

As at 30 June 2013 - - 497 497
As at 30 June 2012 434 37 1356 606

The Group 1s Indirectly exposed 10 interest rate nsk from units in funds which invest in debt secunties and the Group holds seed
capital investments n those funds

MBIAIBAC 3I59].EJ15‘

aoueuLIOL3d ’

S0UBLLIBADD) ’

SIUBLLIBIELS |RIDUBUIH

Ashmore Group plc | Annual Report and Accounts 2013 99




Notes to the financial statements continued

22) Financial instrument nsk management continued

Foreign exchange nsk
Forgign exchange nisk is the nisk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial Instruments wil! fluctuate because of changes
in foreign exchange rates

The Group s revenue 1s almost entirely denominated in US dollars, whilst the majonity of the Group's cosis are Sterling-based
Consequently, the Group has an exposure to movements in the GBR/USD exchange rate In addion, the Group operates globally
which means that 1t may enter into contracts and other arrangements denominated in local currencies in various geographic areas
The Group also hofds a number of seed capital investments which are denominated mainly in erither US dollars Brazihan real or
Indonesian rupiah

The Group's policy 1s to hedge the Group’s revenue by using a combination of forward foreign exchange contracts and options for
up to two years forward The Group also sells US dollars at spot rates when opportunities anse

The table below shows the Group s sensitivity to a 1 0% exchange movement in the US dollar Brazilian reat and Indonesian rupiah,
net ot hedging activities

2013 2012

Impact on Impact on
profit Impact on prafit Impact on
before tax equrty before tax equity
Currency sensitivity test £m £m fm fm
US dallar +/- 1% 29 27 11 18
Brazilian real +/- 1% 01 02 02 02
Indonesian rupiah +/-1% a5 04 nfa nfa

Price risk
Price nsk is the nsk that the fair value or future cash flows of hinancial Instruments will fluctuate because of market changes

Seed capital

The Group 1s exposed to the nsk of changes in market prices in respect of seed capital investments Such price risk 1s borne by the
Group directly through interests in avallable-for-sale and non-current asset seed capital nvestrments or indirectly either through line
by line consclidaticn of underlying financial performance and positions held in certain funds or potential impairments when farr values
less costs to sell of seed investments held-for-sale are less than carrying amounts Details of seed capital Investments held at year
end are given 1n note 21

The Group has well defined procedures governing the appraisal and approval as well monitoring the performance of sead caprtal
Investments

At 30 June 2013 a 5% movement in the fair value ot these investments would have had a £7 7 million (FY2011/12 £7 3 miliion)
impact on nat assets and impact on profit before tax would have been £4 9 milion (FY2011/12 £3 3 million}

Management fees

The Group 15 also indiractly exposed 1o gnce nsk in connection with the Group’'s management fees which are based on a percentage
of value of AuM and fees based on performance Movements in market prices, exchange and interest rates could cause the AuM to
fluctuate which in turn could affect fees earned Performance fee revenues could also be reduced in severe market conditions

Management and performance fees are diversified across a range of investment themes and are not measurably correlated to any
single market indices in Emerging Markets In addition, throughout Ashmaore s history the policy of having funds with year ends
staged throughout the financial year has meant that in periods of steep market decling, some performance fees have stil! been
recorded The profitability impact s hikely to be less than this, as cost mitigation actions would apply including the reduction of the
vanable compensation paid 10 employees

Based on the year end AuM of US$77 4 billion and the year's average net management fee rate of 68bps, a 5% movement In
assets under management wou'd have a US$26 3 million impact on management fee revenues (FY2011/12 based on assets under
management of $63 7 bilhon and an average net management fee rate of 74bps a 5% movament In assets under managernent
would have had a US$23 6 million impact on management tee revenues)

Hedging activities

The Group uses forward exchange contracts and options to hedge its exposure to foreign currency nsk These hedges which have
peen assessed as effective cash flow hedges as at 3C June 2013, protect a proportion of the Group's revenue cash flows from
foreign exchange movements and occur consistently throughout the year The cumulauve fair value of the outstanding fereign
exchange hedges liability at 30 June 2013 was £2 1 million (30 June 2012 £1 3 mulhon] and 1s included within the Group s dernvative
financial instrument habiities
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2013 2012

Fair value Fair value
Notional assets/ Notional assets/
amount {habiltties) amount {labihtes)
£fm £m £m £m n
Cash flow hedges @:
Foreign exchange nil-cost option collars 894 (13} 738 07 §
Foreign exchange forward contracts 33 {01} 303 06) g
927 (14) 1041 N3 <
The matunty profile of the Group s outstanding hedges 15 shown below g
Nauonal amount wath matunty date (fm)
2013 2012
Forward Forward
Collars contracts Total Collars contracts Total
Within 6 months 381 33 414 343 136 479 o
6 -12 months M4 - 414 302 136 438 =
>12 months 99 - 99 93 31 124 3
894 33 927 738 303 041 3
When hedges are assessed as effective intrinsic value gains and losses are imiially recognised in other comprehensive income and
later reclassified to comprehensive income as the carresponding hedged cash flows crystallise Time value in relation to the Group s
hedges 1s excluded from being part of the hedging item and, as a result, the net unrealised loss related 1o the time value of the
hedges 1s recognised In the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year
A E£0 4 mulion intrinsic loss (FY2011/12 £0 1 milion gain] on the Group s hedges has been recognised through other comprehensive
income and £nil intnnsic value (FY2011/12 £nil) was reclassified from equity to the statement of comprehensive income in the year
Included within the realised and unreahsed hedging loss of £1 2 milllon {note 7} recogrised at 30 June 2013 (0 1 milion gan 8
at 30 June 2012) are &
- a £0 5 million loss in respect of foreign exchange hedges covenng net management fee income for the financial year ending g
30 June 2014 (FY2011/12 £0 5 million loss in respect of foreign exchange hedges covering net management fee income for the @
financial year ended 30 June 2013}, and
- a £0 7 mithon loss in respect of crystallised foreign exchange contracts (FY2011/12 £0 6 million gain)
Company
The nsk management processes of the Company including those relating to the specific nsk exposures covered below are aligned
with those of the Group as a whole unless stated otherwise
In addition, the nisk definitions that apply to the Group are also relevant for the Company
Credit nisk §
The Company s maximum exposure to credit nsk is represented by the carrying value of its tinancial assets The table below lists o
financial assets subject to credit nsk by credit rating ;_.
2013 2012 %
£m £m {3D
Cash and cash equivalents n7? 2106 2
Trade and other receivables 2767 2325
Total 548 4 4431

The Company’s cash and cash eguivalenis comprise short-term deposits held with banks and iquidity funds which have credit
ratings ranging from A to AAAmM as at 30 June 2013 (30 June 2012 A to AAAmM)

All trade and other recevables are considered to be fully recoverable and none were overdue at vear end (30 June 2012 none}

Liguidity nsk
The contractual undiscounted cash flows relating to the Company’s financial habihisies alt fall due within one year

Detaills on leases and other commitments are prowvided in note 30
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Notes to the financial statements continued

22} Financial instrument nsk management continued

Interest rate risk
The principal interest rate nisk for the Company 1s that it could sustain a reduciion in interest revenue from bank deposits held in the
ordinary course of business through adverse movements in interest rates

Bank and similar deposits held at year end are shown on the Company's balance sheet as cash and cash equivalents The effective
interest earned on bank and similar deposits during the year i1s given in the table below

Effective interest rates applicable to bank deposits

2013 2012
% %
Deposits with banks and liquidity funds 034 081

Deposits with banks and liquidity funds are repriced at intervals of less than ¢ne year

At 30 June 2013 1t interest rates over the year had been 30 basis points higher/30 basis points lower (30 June 2012 50 basis points
higher/60 basis points lower) with all other vanables held constant, post-tax profit for the year would have been £0 4 million
higher/£0 4 milhon lower (FY2011/12 £0 6 milkon higher/£0 & mullion lower) mainly as a result of higher/lower interest on cash
balances An assumption that the fair value of assets and liabilities will not be affected by a change in interest rates was used In the
model to calculate the effect on post-tax profits

Foreign exchange risk
The Company 1s exposed to foreign exchange risk in respect of US dollar cash balances and primarily US dollar-deneminated
Intercompany balances However such nsk s not hedged by the Company

At 30 June 2013, if the US dellar had strengthened/weakaned by 10 cents aganst Sterling with all other vanables held constant
profit before tax for the year would have increased/decreased by £24 9 million/E£21 8 million respectively (FY2011/12
increased/decreased by £11 8 rullionf£10 2 muthon)

23} Share capital
Authorised share capital

2013 2012

2013 Nomunal 2012 Nominal

Number of value Number value

Group and Company shares £000 of shares £000

Crdinary shares of 0 01p each 900,000,000 90 200 000,000 90
Issued share capital — allotted and fully paid

2013 2012

2013 Nonunal 2012 Nerminal

Number of value Muember velue

Group and Company shares £000 of shares £ 000

Qrdinary shares of 0 01p each 712,740,804 71 712740804 71

All the above ordinary shares represent equity of the Company and rank pan passu in respect of participation and voting nghts

During the year, no (FY2011/12 543,633) ordinary shares were cancelled as part of an acquisition-related purchase price adjustment
The nomuinal value of cancelled shares i1s credited to a capital redemption reserve which 1s not presented on the face of the
consolidated balance sheet as it1s de mimmis

At 30 June 2013 there were 503,750 (30 June 2012 1,888,221) options in 1ssue with contingent nights to the allotment of ordmary
shares of 0 0%p in the Company There were also equity-settled share awards 1ssued under the Omnibus Plan totalling 28 339,002
(30 June 2012 25 691 454) shares that have release dates ranging from Octaber 2013 to Qctober 2017 Further detalls are provided
in note 10
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24) Own shares

The EBT was established to act as an agent to facilitate the acquisition and holding of shares in the Company with a view to
facihtating the recruitment and motivation of the employees of the Company As at the year end, the EBT owned 35 205 106

(30 June 2012 32,668,764) ordinary shares of 0 01p with a norminal value of £3 520 (30 June 2012 £3 267) and sharsholders' funds
are reduced by £115 8 milion (30 June 2012 £88 9 millien} in this respect Itis the intention cof the Directors to make these shares
avallable to employees by way of sale through the share-based compensation plans The EBT 1s peniodically funded by the Company

for these purposes

25) Treasury shares
Treasury shares held by the Company

2013 2012
Group and Company Number £m Numnber £m
Ashmere Group plc ordinary shares 5,368,331 69 5368331 69
Reconciliation of treasury shares
2013 2012
Number Number
At the beginning and end of the year 5,368,331 5,368,331
The market value of treasury shares was £18 4 midlion (30 June 2012 £18 7 million) at year end
26) Trade and other payables
Group Group Company Company
2013 2042 2013 2012
£m £m £m £rm
Current
Trade and other payablas 455 2986 403 263
Accruals and deferred incorme 481 526 53 184
Amounts due to subsidiaries - - 02 18
Contingent consideration 05 49 - -
941 871 458 465
Non-current
Contingent consideration - 58 - -
Qther non-current habiliues - - - -
- 58 - _
Total trade and ather payables 941 929 458 465
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Notes to the financial statements continued

26) Trade and other payables continued

Contingent consideration

The Group's contingent consideration liabihties comprise amounts payable in future penods subject 1o achievement of agreed
milestone targets by the relevant maturnity date of 31 May 2014 The total contingent consideration hability of £0 5 mulhion s
considered o be payable in less than one year and classified as a current habdity

Movemaent of contingent consideration

Contingent
consideration
fm
A1 30 June 2011 320
Net present value discount unwind 41
Fair value adjustment (16 8)
Constderaton that ¢rystalised dunng the year (9 5)
FX revaluation 09
At 30 June 2012 07
Net present value discount unwind 09
Fair value adjustment (10 8)
Consideration that crystallised during the year -
FX revaluation {(03)
At 30 June 2013 05

The Group s contingent consideration labilities were adjusted down at the end of the year in ine with accounting standards, to
reffect its far value Such a movement in fair value was driven principally by the levels of equities AuM managed by Ashmare
Eguities Investment Management (US) L L C at 30 June 2013 compared with the relatively hugher levels forecast when the fair
values of the contingent consideration hiabihties were established

The fall in the fair value of contingent consideration hiabilities at 30 June 2013 resulied in a downward adjustment £10 8 million
{FY2011/12 £16 8 mihon) at that date The reduction of the discounted liability, the corresponding entry to which 1s reported
within finance income, reflects a reduction in the Group's expected payments as a result of performance against contingent
consideration milestones to date

The potential undiscounted value of future annual payments that the Group could be required to make under contingent
consideration arrangements is between £n1l and a maximum of £40 7 millon/US$61 9 millton {30 June 2012 mil and

£65 3 mithon/US$E102 5 mullien} In addition 1o the annual earn-out paymenis the Group could be required to pay a further

£44 4 milhon/US$67 5 mulhon (FY2011/12 £17 1 million/US$26 9 milhion) as a result of catch up provisions relating to prior
pencds The fair value of the contingent consideration was calculated by reference to forecast management fee earmings over
the remaimng pernod to 31 May 2014 and discounted using the Group s weighted average cost of capital of 13 0% The
assumptions are reviewed on a regular basis to assess the potential sensitivives and impact on the Group The undiscounted
value of the estimatied payments was £0 6 milionfJS$0 9 mullion {30 June 2012 £12 5 millien/US$ 19 7 million} At maturity
contingent consideration will be settled using a combination of cash and new Ashmare ardinary shares at the prevailing market
price The current estimate of the undiscounted contingent consideration 1s all due to be settled in cash, with no further option
for Ashmore to settle in equity (30 June 2012 £3 & mithon/US$4 7 mullion of the then estimate of the undiscounted contingent
consideration amount could be settled with equity) The discount applied to the contingent consideration will unwind until the
tme when the final payment 1s made 1n May 2014

It 1s management's judgement that a 10 0% moverment in key assumptions would not matenally impact the value of contingent
consideration habilities
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27) Subsidianes

Operating subsidiaries
Movements In investments In subsidisnes durnng the year were as follows

2013 2012
Company £m fm
Cost
At the beginning and end of the year 201 201

In the opinion of the directors, the following subsidiary undertakings principally affected the Group's results or financial position
A full ist of subsidiary undenakings at 30 June 2013 will be annexed to the next annual return of Ashmaore Group plc filed with the
Registrar of Companies

Country of
incarporation/formation % of equity
and pnncipal place of - shares held by

Name operation the Group
Ashmore investments (UK} Limited England 100 00
Ashmore Investment Management Limited England 100 00
Ashmore Management Company Limited Guernsey 100 00
Ashmore Investrment Management (Singapore) Pte Lid Singapore 100 00
AA Development Capital Investment Managers {Mauritius) LLC Mauritius 55 00
Ashrmore Investments (Brasil) Limited Guernsey 9125
Ashmore Investments {India) Limited Mauritius 100 00
Ashmore Investments {Turkey) NV Nethertands 9120
Ashmore Investment Management (US} Corporation USA 100 00
PT Ashmore Asset Management Indenesia (formerly PT Buana Megah Abad) Indonesia 7391
Ashmore Investments (Colombia) SL Spain 100 00
Ashmore Japan Co Limited Japan 100 00
Ashmore Investment Consultng {Bening) Co Limited China 100 00
Ashmore EMM Holding Carp USA 100 00
Ashmore EMM LL C USA 6363

¥ Wath effect from 1 July 2013 the names of Ashmore EMM Helding Corp and Ashmore EMM L L € changed to Ashmore Equities Holding Carporation and
Ashmore Equiies Investment Management {US) L L. C respectively

Consolidated funds
The following investment funds over which the Group 1s deemed to have control have been consoldated into the Group's results

Country of % of net
incorporaticnyformation  assats value
and prncipal plece of held by the

Narne Type of fund operation Group
Ashmore Emerging Markets Equity Fund Equity UsA 65 7%
Ashrmore Emerging Markets Small-Cap Equity Fund Equrty USA 73 0%
Ashmore Brasil Agoes FIC FIA Equity Brazil 72 3%
Ashmore SICAV 3 Multi Strategy Fund Multrstrategy Luxembourg 82 7%
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Notes to the financial statements continued

28) Investments 1n associates and Joint ventures

Grou
Moverzents N Investments In associates and joint ventures durning the year were as follows
2013 2012
Associates  Joint ventures Total Associates  Joint ventures Total
£fm £m £m ja fm fm
At the beginning of the year 23 - 23 23 - 23
Additions - 99 99 - - -
Share of profit 03 {0 4} {01}
Distnbutions {03) {03) - - -
At the end of the year 23 95 118 23 - 23

During the year the Group entered into an agreement 1o acquire a 49% interest 1n a fund management joint venturg with Centrat
China Securties Co Ltd n China Under the terms of the agreement and upon being granted the required approvals by the China
Secunties Regulatory Cemmussion and other relevant government authonties, the Group contnbuted its share of the initial

capitaisation equwvalent to £9 9 milhion, by January 2013

The hst of associates and joint ventures in which the Group holds interests at year end are shown below

Associates and |oint ventures at 30 June 2013

Country of incorporation/

tormation and principal % of equity shares
Name Type Nature of business place of operation held by the Group
VTB-Ashmore Caprtal Holdings Limited Associate Investment management Russia 50%
Everbright Ashmore Associate Investment management China 30%
Central China Secunties Co Limited Joint venture Investrment management China 49%
The associates and the joint venture are unhsted
Associates
The summarised aggregate financial information on associates 1s shown below

2013 2012

Group £m £m
Total assets 47 44
Total habilities {14) {14
Net assets 34 30
Group’s share of net assets 11 03
Revenue tor the year to 30 June 2013 49 32
Profit for the year to 30 June 2013 11 04
Group's share of profit for the year 03 01

The carrying value of the investments in associates include attnbutable goodwill that arose on acquisition of the associates Although
the Group's share of net tangible assets of the associates 1s currently below the aggregate carrying value of the asscciates reflected
cn the consolidated balance sheet, the Group has considered that this position, which has anisen as the associates progress through

initial establishment phases, 1s temporary No permanent impairment 1s believed to exist relating to the associates

The Group has undrawn capital commitments of £6 4 million (30 June 2012 £9 6 million) to Investment funds managed by

the associates

Further details are provided in note 30
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Joint ventures
Summarised financial mformation on the Group's share In the joint ventura 1s shown below

2013 2012
£m £m o
Current assets 57 - o
Nen-current assets 01 - §
Current llabilities {01) - 2
D
Non-current habilies - - %
Total equity 57 - z
Income 04 -
Expenses {08) -
Loss for the year [04) -
29) Related party transactions ﬁ
Related parties of the Group include key management personnel, close family members of key management personnel, subsidianes, %
associates, joint ventures, Ashmore Funds the EBT and the Ashmore Foundation 5
(%]
Key management personnel Group and Company ©
The compensation paid to or payable 10 key management for employee services 1s shown below
2013 2012
£m £m £m
Short-term employee benefiis 27 27
Detined contribution pension costs - -
Share-based payment benefits 17 26
]
44 52 %
Share-based payment benefits represent the far value charge to the statement of cemprehensive income of share awards g
Cr
Detalls of the remuneration of Directors are given in the Remuneration report on pages 54 to 68 @
During the year, there were no other transactions entered into with key management personne! (FY2011/12 ncne) Aggregate key
management personnel interests 1IN consolidated funds at 30 June 2013 was £3 5 million {30 June 2012 £nil)
Transactions with subsidiaries — Company
Details of transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries are shown below
2013 2012
£m £m _—
Transactions during the year én
Management fees received 791 654 2
o1
Net dividends receved 1967 1948 w
Loans given to subsidianes 513 96 1 2
3
Amounts recewvable or payable to subsidianes are disclosed in notes 18 and 26 g
w

Transactions with Ashmore Funds — Group

Duning the year, the Group received £337 0 million gross management fees and performance fees (FY2011/12 £270 4 million) from
the 75 funds (FY2011/12 72 funds) it manages and which are classified as related parties As at 3G June the Group has receivables

due from funds of £567 6 million {30 June 2012 £50 3 million)
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Notes to the financial statements continued

29) Related party transactions continued

Transactions with the EBT- Group and Company

The EBT which acts as an agent for the purpose of the employee share-based compensation plans has been provided a loan facility
1o allow 1t to acquire Ashmore shares in order to satisfy outstanding unvested shares awards The EBT I1s included within the results
of the Group and the Company As at year end the loan outstanding was £112 7 mithon {30 June 2012 £82 7 mulkon)

Transaction with the Ashmore Foundation — Group and Company

The Ashmore Foundation is a related party to the Group The Foundation was set up to provide financial grants to worthwhile causes
within the Emerging Markets geocgraphies in which Ashmore operates with a view to giving back into the countrnies and communities
in which the Group invests and which contnbute to Ashmore’s income and profitability The Group donated £0 1 mullion to the
Foundauon dunng the year (FY2011/12 £0 1 million}

30} Commitments

Operating lease commitments

The Group and Company have entered into certain property leases The leases have no escalation clauses or renewal or purchase
options, and no restriclions iImposed on them The future aggregate minmum lease payments under these non-cancellable cperating
leases fall due as follows

Group
2013 2012
£fm fm
\Within 1 year 29 29
Between 1 and 5 years 85 92
Later than 5 years 67 79
181 200
Company
2013 2012
£m fm
Within 1 year 12 12
Between 1 and 5 years 46 46
Later than 5 years 63 75
121 133
Operating lease expenses are disclosed in note 11
Undrawn investment commitments
2013 2012
£m £m
VTBC-Ashmore Real Estate Partners | L P 34 34
Everbright Ashmore China Real Estate Fund 30 62
Ashmore | - FCP Colembia Infrastructure Fund 49 88

Company
The Company has undrawn loan commitments to other Group entities totalling £84 5 milion (30 June 2012 £31 3 mithon) to support
therr investment activities but has no investment commitments of its own (30 June 2012 none)

31) Post-balance sheet events

There were nc post-balance sheet events that required adjustment of or disclosure in the financial statements for the year ended
30 June 2013
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32) Accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and judgements used in prepaning the financial staterments are regularly evaluated and are based upon management's
assessment of current and future evenis The principal estimates and Judgements that have a significant effect on the carrying
amounts of assets and labiliues are discussed helow

Goodwill

The Group tests goodwill and intangible assets annually for imparrment The recoverable amount 1s determined based upon value In
use calculations prepared on the basis of management’s assumptions and estimates The carrying value of goodwill and iniangibles
on the Group's balance sheet at 30 June 2013 was £84 3 rulhon (30 June 2012 £98 1 mulhan) Management considers that
reasonable possible changes in any of the key assumptions applied weuld not cause the carrying value of goodwill ta matenally
exceed Its recoverable value

Performance fees

The Group assesses the recognition of performance fees to determine whether receipt of the fees 1s considered probable and

the amount reliable The assessment 1s made using management’s judgement of the crcumstances relevant 1o each performance
{ee entitlement

There were no outstanding performance tees recevable at 30 June 2013 (30 June 2012 none)

Earnout arrangements

The Group assesses the expeacted payments to be made under earnout arrangements to determine whether the estimates are
reasonable based on current information The assessment 1s made using management’s Judgement of the likelihcod of the
conditions of the earnout being met taking into account the revenue earning capabibty of the underlying AuM The farr value of the
conhtingent consideration 1s then calculated by reference to those estimates, weighted according to management's estmates of ther
probabiities and discounted using the Group's weighted average cost of capital The combined hability of all earnout arrangements
on the Group’s balance sheet at 30 June 2013 was £0 5 milion (30 June 2012 £10 7 million) (refer to note 26}

Contingent consideration

A number of assumptions are made In denving the estimated farr value of the contingent consideration including assumptions
around future net management fee margins, net subscriptions market performance and the average cost of capital While the Group
believes that a set of prudent assurmptions and esumates have been used that best reflect current market conditions there rermains
a degree of uncertainty In the event ithat future results or revised assumptions contnbute to an upward rewsion in the contingent
consideration, the reduction recognised dunng the period reported within finance income could be partally or fully reversed

It1s possible that this docurment could or may contain forward looking statements that are based on current expectations or beheis,
as well as assumptions about future events These forward looking statements can be idenufied by the fact that they do not relate
only to historical or current facts Forward looking statements often use words such as anticipate, target, expect estimate intend
plan, goal, beheve, wilt, may, should would could or other words of stmilar meaning

Undue relance should not he placed on any such statements because by their very nature, they are subject to known and unknown
nsks and uncertainties and can be affected by other factors that could cause actual results, and the Group’s plans and objectives, to
ditfer matenially from those expressed or impled in the forward looking statements There are several factors that could cause actual
results to differ materially from those expressed or implied in forward looking statements Among the factors that could cause actual
results to differ matenally from those descnbed in the forward looking staiements are changes in the global, palitical, economic
business, competitive, market and regulatery forces, future exchange and interest rates changes in tax raies and future business
combinations or dispositions The Group undertakes no obligation to revise or update any forward looking statement contamed within
this document regardless of whether those statements are affected as a result of new informatan, future events cr ctherwise
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Five-year summary

2013 2012 201 2010 2009
£m Em fm £m fm
Management fees 3160 3028 2509 1921 1868
Performance fees 334 54 854 829 525
Other revenue 62 62 65 64 64
Total ravenue 3556 3342 3428 2814 2457
Distribution costs (48) 37 (16} 22 (2 6)
Foreign exchange 47 28 {7 4} 70 (38 6)
Net revenue 3555 3333 3338 286 2 2035
Gain/{Loss) on investment secunties 49 (0 4} - - -
Change n third-party interests in consohdated funds {12} {0 4) - - -
Personnel expenses (25 1) (23 6) (153) (128 (11 58)
Vanable compensation (57 2) (49 4} {56 2) (46 0} (24 5)
Qther operating expenses (44 9) (34 &) 122 9) {18 1} (16 9)
Total operating expenses {123 5) {108 2) (94 4) {76 9} (52 9)
Operating profit 2320 2251 2354 2093 1506
Finance income 266 222 65 79 92
Finance expenses (09) {4 1) - - -
Share of proht from associates and joint venture {01) - - - -
Profit before tax 2576 2432 2459 2172 1598
Tax expense {56 0} {57 5) (55 7) {56 6) {44 3)
Profit for the year 2016 1857 1902 1606 1155
EPS [basic) 300p 268p 28 1p 239p i7 1p
Other operating data (unaudited)
AuM at penod end {USEon) 774 637 658 353 249
AuM at penod end {£bn) 509 406 a0 236 151
Average AuM {£bn} 450 402 290 198 173
Average £/US$ exchange rate for the year 157 159 159 1868 160
Pernied end £AJSS exchange rate for the year 152 157 161 149 165
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Information for shareholders

Ashmore Group plc
Registered in England and Wales
Company No 3675683

Registered office

61 Aldwych

London WC2B 4AE

Tel +44 (0) 20 3077 6Q00
Fax +44 (0} 20 3077 6001

Principal UK trading subsidhary
Ashmore Investment Management Limited

Registered in England and Wales, Company No 3344281
Business address and registered office as above

Further information gn Ashmere Group plc can be found on the
Company's website www ashmaregroup com

Financial calendar
Announcement of results for year ended 30 June 2013
10 September 2013

First quarter intenm management statement
10 October 2013

Annual General Meeting
30 October 2013

Ex-dmdend date
6 November 2013

Record date
& November 2013

Final dwvidend payment date
6 December 2013

Second quarter AuM statement
January 2014

Announcement of unaudrted intenm results for the six months
ended 31 December 2013

February 2014

Third quarter intenm management statement
Apri 2014

Announcement of results for the year ended 30 June 2014
September 2014

Registrar
Equiniti Registrars
Aspect House
Spencer Road
West Sussex
BN99 6DA

UK shareholder helphne 0871 384 2812 (Calls to this number
cost 8p per minute from a BT landline other providers’ costs
may vary Lines are open 8 30am 1o 5 30pm Monday to Friday )

International sharehalder helpline +44 121 415 7047

Further information about the Registrar is avallable on thetr
website www equiniti com

Up-to-date information about current holdings on the register
Is also avallable at www shareview co uk

Shareholders will need therr reference number (account
number) and postcode to view information on their own holding

Share price information
Share price information can be found at ww ashmoregroup com
or through your broker

Share dealing

Shares may be sold through a stockbroker or share deahing
service There are a vanety of services avallable Equintu
Registrars ofter a secure free and easy-to-use internet-based
share dealing service known as Shareview Dealing

You can log on at www shareview co uk/dealing to access
this service or contact the helpline on 0845 603 7037 to deal
by telephone

You may also use the Shareview service 1o access and manage
your share investments and view balance movements

indicative share prices, information on recent dividends portfolio
valuation and general information tor shareholders

Shareholders must register at www shareview co uk entering
the shareholder reference on the share certificate and other
personal detalls

Having selected a personal PIN a user ID will be 1ssued
by the Registrar

Electronic copies of the 2013 Annual Report and
financial statements and other publications

Copies of the 2013 Annual Report and financial statements, the
Notice of Annual General Meeting, other corporate publications,
press releases and announcements are available on the
Company's website at www ashmoregroup com
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Information for shareholders continued

Sharegift

Shareholders with only a small number of shares whose value
makes them uneconomic to sell may wish to consider donating
to chanty through Sharegift, an independent charity share
donation scheme

For turther information, please contact either the Registrar or
see the Sharegift website at www sharegift org

Frequent shareholder enquiries

Enquinies and notifications concerning dividends, share
ceruficates or transiers and address changes should be sent to
the Registrar, the Company’s governance reports, corporate
governance guidelines and the terms of reference of the Board
committees can be found on the Company s website at

www ashmoregroup com

Notifying the Company of a change of address
You should notify Equinits Registrars in writing

If you hold shares in joint names the notification to change
address must be signed by the first-named shareholder
You may choose to do this online, by logging on to

www shareview co uk You will need your shareholder
reference number to access this service — this ¢an be found
on your share certificate or from a dividend counterfor!

You will be asked to select your own PIN and a user |D wil
be posted to you

Notfying the Company of a change of name

You should notify Equinib Registrars in writing of your new
name and previous name You should attach a copy of vour
marriage certficate or your change of name deed together with
your share certificates and any un-cashed dividend cheques In
vour otd name, so that the Registrar can reissue them

Dividend payments directly into bank or building
society accounts

We recommend that all dvdend payments are made directly
into a bank or bullding society account Dividends are paid via
BACS, providing tighter security and access to funds more
quickly To apply for a dvidend mandate form, contact the
Registrar, or you can find one by logging on to

www shareview co uk {under Frequently Asked Questions) or
by caling the helpline on 0871 384 2812 (calls to this number
cost 8p per minute from a BT landline other providers’ costs
ray vary Lines are open 8 30am to 5 30pm, Monday to Friday)

International shareholder helpline +44 121 415 7047

Transferring Ashmaore Group plc shares

Transferring some or all of your shares to someone else (for
example your partner or 8 member of your family) requires
compleuion of a share transfer form which 1s available from
Equinii Registrars The form should be fully completed and
returned with your share certificate representing at least the
number of shares baing transferred The Registrar will then
process the transter and 1ssue a balance share certificate to you
if applicable The Registrar will be able to help you with any
questions you may have

Lost share certificate(s)

Shareholders who lose their share certificate(s) or have

therr ceruficate(s) stolen should inform Equiniti Registrars
mmediately by calling the shareholder helpline on

0871 384 2812 {calls to this number cost Bp per minute from
a BT landline other providers’ costs may vary Lines are open
8 30am to 5 30pm Monday to Friday)

International shareholder helpline +44 121 415 7047

Disability helpline
For shareholders with hearing difficulties a special text phone
number is avallable +44 (0)871 384 2265
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